FILED December 27, 2017 Data Center Missouri Public Service Commission

Exhibi + No: Issue: Witness: Type of Exhibit: Sponsoring Party: 038 ROE

Pauline M. Ahern, CRRA Direct Testimony Laclede Gas Company; Missouri Gas Energy GR-2017-0215; GR-2017-0216 April 11, 2017

Case Nos.: Date Prepared:

LACLEDE GAS COMPANY MISSOURI GAS ENERGY

GR-2017-0215 GR-2017-0216

DIRECT TESTIMONY

OF

PAULINE M. AHERN, CRRA

APRIL 2017

Jeire Exhibit No. 38 Date 12-11-17 Reporter DH File No. GR. 2017. 0215 G-R. 2017-0215

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY
SUMMARY 4
GENERAL PRINCIPLES
INVESTMENT RISK
Business Risk
Financial Risk
NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP 15
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS AND LONG-TERM DEBT COST RATE 17
COMMON EQUITY COST RATE MODELS
Discounted Cash Flow Model ("DCF")19
The Risk Premium Model ("RPM")26
Capital Asset Pricing Model ("CAPM")
DCF, RPM and CAPM Analyses for the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group
INDICATED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE 46
ADJUSTMENTS TO THE INDICATED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE TO REFLECT FLOTATION COSTS, AND THE BUSINESS RISK OF THE COMPANIES 47
Flotation Cost Adjustment
Business Risk Adjustment
CONCLUSION OF COMMON EQUITY COST RATE FOR

APPENDIX A

Resume of Pauline M. A.	hern, CRRA
-------------------------	------------

SCHEDULES

		~	~~~~~~	
PMA-D1 - S	ummary of (Cost of Capital :	and Fair l	Rate of Return

- PMA-D2 Financial Profile of the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies
- PMA-D3 Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Discounted Cash Flow Model
- PMA-D4 Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Risk Premium Model
- PMA-D5 Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Capital Asset Pricing Model
- PMA-D6 Basis of Selection for the Non-Price Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the Natural Gas Proxy Group
- PMA-D7 Cost of Common Equity Models Applied to the Comparable Risk Non-Price Regulated Companies
- PMA-D8 Estimation of the Flotation Cost Adjustment
- PMA-D9 Estimated Market Capitalization for LAC/MGE and the Natural Gas Proxy Group

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF PAULINE M. AHERN

- 2 Q. PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
- A. My name is Pauline M. Ahern. I am an Executive Director of ScottMadden, Inc. My
 business address is 1900 West Park Road, Suite 250, Westborough, MA 01581. My

5 mailing address is 3000 Atrium Way, Suite 241, Mount Laurel, NJ 08054.

6 Q. PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE AND 7 EDUCATION BACKGROUND.

A. I have offered expert testimony on behalf of investor-owned utilities before thirty-one
state regulatory commissions in the United States and Canada on rate of return issues
including, but not limited to, common equity cost rate, fair rate of return, capital structure
issues, relative investment risk and credit quality issues. I am a graduate of Clark
University, Worcester, MA, where I received a Bachelor of Arts degree with honors in
Economics. I have also received a Master of Business Administration with high honors
and a concentration in finance from Rutgers University.

On behalf of the American Gas Association ("A.G.A."), I calculate the A.G.A. Gas Index, which serves as the benchmark against which the performance of the American Gas Index Fund ("AGIF") is measured monthly. The A.G.A. Gas Index and AGIF are a market capitalization weighted index and mutual fund, respectively, comprised of the common stocks of the publicly traded corporate members of the A.G.A.

I am a member of the Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts ("SURFA") and currently serve on its Board of Directors, having previously served two terms as President, from 2006 – 2008 and 2008 – 2010, and as its Secretary/Treasurer from 2004 – 2006. In 1992, I was awarded the professional designation "Certified Rate

1		of Return Analyst" ("CRRA") by SURFA, which is based upon education, experience
2		and the successful completion of a comprehensive written examination.
3		I am also an associate member of the National Association of Water Companies,
4		serving on its Finance/Accounting/Taxation and Rates and Regulation Committees; a
5		member of A.G.A.'s State Affairs Committee; a member of the Advisory Council of the
6		Financial Research Institute – University of Missouri – Robert J. Trulaske, Sr. College of
7		Business; a member of the American Finance and Financial Management Associations;
8		and, a member of Edison Electric Institute's Cost of Capital Working Group.
9		The details of my educational background, expert witness appearances,
10		presentations I have given and articles I have co-authored are contained in Appendix A.
11	Q.	HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY FILED TESTIMONY BEFORE THIS
12		COMMISSION?
13	A.	Yes. I have previously filed testimony before the MOPSC in the following rate cases:
14		Union Electric Company, d/b/a Ameren Missouri: ER-2016-0179, Missouri Gas Energy:
15		GR-2014-0007, Missouri American Water Company: WR -2011-0337 / SR-2001-0338,
16		WR-2010-0131, WR-2008-0311 / SR-2008-0312, WR-2007-0216, WR-2003-0500 / WC-
17		2004-0168, and Arkansas Western – ANG Division (Missouri): GR-97-272.
18		PURPOSE OF TESTIMONY
19	Q.	WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?
20	A.	The purpose is to provide testimony on behalf of Laclede Gas Company ("Laclede") and
21		its two operating units, Laclede Gas (LAC) and Missouri Gas Energy ("MGE")
22		(collectively "the Companies") relative to the appropriate overall fair rate of return,
23		including the appropriate capital structure ratios, long-term debt cost rate and investor-

required return on common equity, which they should be afforded the opportunity to earn on their respective jurisdictional rate bases.

3 Q. WHAT IS YOUR RECOMMENDED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE?

,

<u>ن</u>

1

2

8 9

10

A. I recommend that the Missouri Public Service Commission ("MOPSC" or "the
Commission") authorize the Companies the opportunity to earn an overall rate of return
of 7.700%, including a common equity cost rate of 10.35%, on their jurisdictional rate
bases. This recommendation is summarized on Schedule PMA-D1 and in Table 1 below:

<u>Table 1</u> LAC / MGE

11								
12		Type of	<u>Capital</u>	<u>Ratios</u>	Cost Rate	<u>e V</u>	Veighted Cost Ra	te
13								
14		Long-Te	rm Debt	42.80%	4.15	9%	1.780%	
15		Common	1 Equity	<u>57.20%</u>	10.35	0%	<u>5.920%</u>	
16								
17		Total		<u>100.00%</u>			<u>7.700%</u>	
18								
19	Q.	HAVE	YOU	PREPARED	SCHEDULES	THAT	SUPPORT	YOUR
20		RECOM	IMENDI	ED COMMON E	QUITY COST R	ATE?		
21	A.	Yes. The	ey have b	een designated as	Schedules PMA-E	01 throug	h PMA-D9.	

2

3

4

Q.

A.

SUMMARY

PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR COMMON EQUITY COST RATE ANALYSIS.

Because the Companies' common stock is not publicly traded, their market-based

common equity cost rate cannot be directly observed. Consequently, I have assessed the

market-based common equity cost rates of companies of relatively similar, but not 5 necessarily identical risk, *i.e.*, a proxy group, for insight into a recommended common 6 equity cost rate applicable to Laclede, and its operating units. Using companies of 7 relatively similar risk as proxies is consistent with the principle of a fair rate of return 8 established in the $Hope^1$ and $Bluefield^2$ cases, adding reliability to the informed expert 9 judgment necessary to arrive at a recommended common equity cost rate. 10 However, no proxy is identical in risk to any single entity. Accordingly, an 11 assessment of relative risk between the Companies and a proxy group of publicly traded 12 natural gas utilities ("Natural Gas Proxy Group"), whose selection is discussed in further 13 14 detail later in this testimony, must be made to determine whether any adjustments to the Natural Gas Proxy Group's indicated common equity cost rate are necessary. 15 In determining my recommended common equity cost rate, I first applied several 16 well-recognized cost of common equity models (i.e., the Discounted Cash Flow ("DCF"), 17 the Risk Premium Model ("RPM") and the Capital Asset Pricing Model ("CAPM")) to 18 the market data of the Natural Gas Proxy Group as well as a Non-Price Regulated Proxy 19 20 Group whose selection will also be discussed below. The results derived from each are as follows: 21

¹ Federal Power Commission v. Hope Natural Gas Co., 320 U.S. 591 (1944).

² Bluefield Water Works Improvement Co. v. Public Serv. Comm'n, 262 U.S. 679 (1922).

2		Summary of Common Equity Cost Rate
3		Natural Gas Proxy Group Discounted Cash Flow Model ("DCF") 8 68%
		Risk Premium Model ("RPM") 10 57%
		Capital Asset Pricing Model ("CAPM") 9.11%
		Non-Price Regulated Proxy GroupCost of Equity Models Applied to Comparable Risk, Non-Price Regulated Cos.10.45%
		Common Equity Cost Rate Before Adjustment
		Flotation Risk Adjustment 0.16%
		Business Risk Adjustment 0.20%
		Common Equity Cost Rate After Adjustment 10.36%
		Recommended Common Equity Cost Rate10.35%
4		
5		GENERAL PRINCIPLES
-		
6	Q.	WHAT GENERAL PRINCIPLES HAVE YOU CONSIDERED IN YOUR
7		COMMON EQUITY COST RATE ANALYSES?
8	А.	The cost of capital is defined as that return which investors require to be willing to make
9		an investment in a given firm. From the firm's perspective, that required return, whether
10		it is provided to debt or equity investors, has a cost. Individually, these are known as the
11		"cost of debt" and the "cost of equity" and are collectively referred to as the "cost of
12		capital."
13		The cost of capital (including the costs of both debt and equity) is based upon the
14		economic principle of "opportunity cost," meaning that investing in any asset / security

Table 2

i 1

ł

³ As discussed later in this testimony, currently, the application of the DCF model understates the required return on common equity by nearly 490 basis points due to currently significantly high market-to-book ratios. Accordingly, the results of that model should be given only very limited weight in deriving a reasonable return on equity in this proceeding.

implies a forgone opportunity to invest in alternative assets / securities. Because investments with similar risks should offer similar returns, the opportunity cost of an investment should equal the return available on investments of comparable risk.

Although both debt and equity have required costs, they differ fundamentally. 4 The cost of debt is contractually defined and can be directly observed in the market as the 5 interest rate or yield on debt securities.⁴ In contrast, the cost of common equity does not 6 have a contractual obligation, nor can it be directly observed in the market. Rather, 7 because common equity investors have a claim on a firm's cash flows only after debt 8 holders⁵ are paid, it is the uncertainty (or risk) associated with those residual cash flows 9 that determines the cost of common equity. Because common equity investors bear this 10 "residual risk," they require higher returns than debt holders. In that sense, common 11 equity and debt investors are distinct: they invest in different securities; face different 12 risks; and, require different returns. That is not to say that the risks facing debt and 13 equity investors are separate and distinct as discussed above, with the two having much 14 in common, but only to a point. Nonetheless, commentary from both debt and equity 15 analysts is instructive and helps inform the determination of the required return within a 16 range of analytical results. 17

The cost of capital, specifically the cost of common equity or the investor required return on common equity, is also an economic and financial concept which refers to the *ex-ante*, or the *expected* return on an investment at the market value of the publicly traded common shares of a corporation. According to the basic financial principle of risk and return, the investor required return on investment is a function of the

1

2

⁴ Some firms also finance with preferred stock, which, like debt, has a contractual cost, *i.e.*, dividend rate.

⁵ And preferred stockholders.

level of investor perceived risk as reflected in the market prices paid by investors. The higher / lower the investor perceived risk, the higher / lower the investor required return. The investor required return is also forward-looking, or expectational, as it is the return which the investor <u>expects</u> to receive in the future for investing capital today and is based upon expected economic and capital market conditions.

ł

1

2

3

4

5

É÷

In unregulated industries, the competition of the marketplace is the principal 6 determinant of the price of products or services. For regulated public utilities, regulation 7 8 must act as a substitute for marketplace competition. A sufficient level of earnings is 9 required to assure that the utility can: 1) fulfill its obligation to provide safe and reliable 10 service at all times; 2) maintain the integrity of presently invested capital through future reinvestment; and, 3) attract needed new capital at a reasonable cost and on reasonable 11 terms in competition with other firms of comparable risk. This is consistent with the 12 previously noted fair rate of return standards established by the U.S. Supreme Court in 13 the Hope and Bluefield cases. 14

In rate base / rate of return regulation, the authorized (allowed) return on common 15 equity is defined as the investor required market return. In turn, the investor required 16 return is defined as the return required by the investor on the funds invested in the 17 publicly traded common stocks of firms. As stated previously, the cost of common 18 equity is not directly observable in the capital markets since there is no contractual basis 19 or obligation on the part of a firm to provide a return to its common shareholders, unlike 20 the contractual coupon or interest rate on its debt obligations. Therefore, the cost of 21 common equity must be estimated from market (economic and financial) data, using 22 financial models developed for that purpose, such as the CAPM, DCF and RPM. 23

Therefore, my recommended common equity cost rate is based upon the marketplace data of a proxy group of utilities that are as similar in risk as possible to the Companies based upon selection criteria discussed below. Because quantitative financial models produce a range of results from which the 4 market, or investor, required return must be estimated, that estimation must be based 5 upon a comprehensive review of relevant data and information, both qualitative and 6 quantitative, and not necessarily left to a strict mathematical estimation. The key 7 8 consideration in estimating the common equity cost rate is to ensure that the overall analysis reasonably reflects investors' expectations in light of capital markets in general, 9 and the relative investment risk of the subject company (in the context of the proxy 10 companies), in particular. 11

Because empirical financial models for determining the cost of common equity are subject to limiting assumptions or other constraints, most finance texts recommend using multiple approaches to estimate the cost of common equity. As a practical matter, no individual model is more reliable than all others under all market conditions. The use of multiple common equity cost rate models adds reliability to the estimation of the investor-required return. This fact is well supported in the academic literature with respect to regulatory finance and utility regulation.

19 For example, Roger A. Morin⁶ ("Morin") states:

1

2

3

Each methodology requires the exercise of considerable judgment on the reasonableness of the assumptions underlying the methodology and on the reasonableness of the proxies used to validate a theory. The inability of the DCF model to account for changes in relative market valuation, discussed below, is a vivid example of the potential shortcomings of the DCF model when applied to a given company. Similarly, the inability of

⁶ Roger A. Morin, <u>New Regulatory Finance</u> (Public Utility Reports, Inc., 2006) 428-431.

1	the CAPM to account for variables that affect security returns other than
2	beta tarnishes its use.
3	
4	No one individual method provides the necessary level of precision for
5	determining a fair return, but each method provides useful evidence
6	to facilitate the exercise of an informed judgment. Reliance on any
7	single method or preset formula is inappropriate when dealing with
8	investor expectations because of possible measurement difficulties and
9	vagaries in individual companies' market data. (emphasis added)
10	
11	××××
12	The financial literature supports the use of multiple methods. Professor
13	Eugene Brigham, a widely respected scholar and finance academician,
14	asserts (lootnote omitted)
15	
16	Three methods typically are used: (1) the Capital Asset
17	Pricing Model (CAPM), (2) the discounted cash flow (DCF)
18	method, and (3) the bond-yield-plus-risk-premium approach.
19	These methods are not mutually exclusive – no method
20	dominates the others, and all are subject to error when used
21	in practice. Therefore, when faced with the task of
22	estimating a company's cost of equity, we generally use all
23	three methods and then choose among them on the basis of
24	our confidence in the data used for each in the specific case
25	at hand.
26	
27	
28	
29	Both the use of the market data of a proxy group of similar risk, as well as the use
30	of multiple common equity cost rate models, adds reliability to the informed expert
31	judgment used in estimating the common equity cost rate. Therefore, it is both prudent
32	and appropriate to use multiple methodologies to mitigate the effects of limiting
33	assumptions and inputs associated with any single approach. As such, I have considered
34	the results of three well-tested market models: the DCF, RPM and CAPM in arriving at
35	my recommended common equity cost rate for the Companies.

1.1

1		<u>INVESTMENT RISK</u>
2		Business Risk
3	Q.	PLEASE DEFINE BUSINESS RISK AND EXPLAIN WHY IT IS IMPORTANT
4		TO THE DETERMINATION OF A FAIR RATE OF RETURN.
5	A.	The investor-required return on common equity reflects investors' assessment of the total
6		investment risk of the subject firm. Total investment risk is often discussed in the context
7		of business and financial risk.
8		Business risk reflects the uncertainty associated with owning a company's
9		common stock without the company's use of debt and / or preferred stock financing. One
10		way of considering the distinction between business and financial risk is to view the
11		former as the uncertainty in the expected earned return on common equity assuming the
12		firm is financed with no debt.
13		Examples of business risks generally faced by utilities include, but are not limited
14		to, the regulatory environment, mandatory environmental compliance requirements,
15		customer mix and concentration of customers, service territory economic growth, market
16		demand, risks and uncertainties of supply, operations, capital intensity, size, the degree of
17		operating leverage, and the like, all of which have a direct bearing on earnings.
18		Although analysts, including rating agencies, may categorize business risks according to
19		individual categories, as a practical matter they are inter-related and are not wholly
20		distinct from one another. Therefore, it is difficult to specifically and numerically
21	,	quantify the effect of any individual factor on investors' required return, <i>i.e.</i> , the cost of
22		capital. For determining an appropriate return on common equity, the relevant issue is
23		where investors see the subject company as falling within a spectrum of risk. To the

·. ;

extent investors view a company as being exposed to additional risk, the required return will increase, and vice versa.

1

2

For regulated utilities, business risks are both long- and near-term in nature. 3 Whereas near-term business risks are reflected in year-to-year variability in earnings and 4 cash flow brought about by economic or regulatory factors, long-term business risks 5 reflect the prospect of an impaired ability of investors to earn a return on and of their 6 capital. Moreover, because utilities accept the obligation to provide safe, adequate and 7 reliable service at all times (in exchange for the opportunity to earn a fair return on their 8 investment), they generally do not have the option to delay, defer, or reject capital 9 investments. Because those investments are capital-intensive, utilities generally do not 10 have the option to avoid raising external funds during periods of capital market distress, 11 if necessary. 12

Because utilities invest in long-lived assets, long-term business risks are of 13 considerable concern to equity investors. That is, the risk of not recovering the return on 14 15 and of their investment extends far into the future. But, the timing and nature of events that may lead to losses also are uncertain and consequently, those risks and their 16 implications for the required return on equity tend to be difficult to quantify. That does 17 not mean, however, that the risk is of no consequence to investors. Analysts may apply, 18 for example, simulation-based methods to assess the potential risk, but in the final 19 analysis (like the investors that commit their capital) regulatory commissions must 20 review a variety of quantitative and qualitative data and apply their reasoned judgment to 21 determine how long-term risks weigh in their assessment of the market-required return on 22 common equity. 23

Q. DOES THE SMALLER SIZE OF THE COMPANIES RELATIVE TO THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP INCREASE THEIR BUSINESS RISK RELATIVE TO THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP?

A. Yes. The Companies' smaller collective size relative to the Natural Gas Proxy Group
 indicates greater relative business risk for each Company because, all else being equal,
 size has a material bearing on risk.

Size affects business risk because smaller companies generally are simply less
able to cope with significant events that affect sales, revenues and earnings. For
example, smaller companies face more risk exposure to business cycles and economic
conditions, both nationally and locally. Additionally, the loss of revenues from a few
larger customers would have a greater effect on a small company than on a much bigger
company with a larger, more diverse, customer base.

Further evidence that smaller firms are riskier is the fact that investors demand greater returns to compensate for the lack of marketability and liquidity of the securities of smaller firms. Duff & Phelps 2016 Valuation Handbook Guide to Cost of Capital – <u>Market Results through 2015 ("D&P – 2016"</u>) discusses the nature of the small size phenomenon, providing an indication of the magnitude of the size premium based upon several measures of size. In discussing "Size as a Predictor of Equity Premiums," <u>D&P</u> – 2016 states⁷:

The size effect is based on the empirical observation that companies of smaller size are associated with greater risk and, therefore, have greater cost of capital [sic]. The "size" of a company is one of the most important risk elements to consider when developing cost of equity capital estimates for use in valuing a business simply because size has been shown to be a *predictor* of equity returns. In other words, there is a significant (negative)

⁷ Duff & Phelps <u>2016 Valuation Handbook Guide to Cost of Capital – Market Results through 2015</u>, Wiley 2016 4-1.

1 2 3	relationship between size and historical equity returns – as size <i>decreases</i> , returns tend to <i>increase</i> , and vice versa. ^(footnote omitted) (emphasis in original)
4	Furthermore, in "The Capital Asset Pricing Model: Theory and Evidence,"8 Fama
5	and French note that size is indeed a risk factor which must be reflected when estimating
6	the cost of common equity. On page 14, they note:
7 8 9 10	the higher average returns on small stocks and high book-to-market stocks reflect unidentified state variables that produce undiversifiable risks (covariance's) in returns not captured in the market return and are priced separately from market betas.
11 12	Based upon this evidence, Fama and French proposed their three-factor model
13	which includes a size variable in recognition of the effect of size on the cost of common
14	equity.
15	Also, the fact that it is the use of funds invested, and not the source of those funds,
16	which gives rise to the risk of any investment, is a basic financial principle. ⁹ Brigham ¹⁰ ,
17	a well-known authority, states:
18	A number of researchers have observed that portfolios of small-firms have
19	earned consistently higher average returns than those of large-firms
20	stocks; this is called "small-firm effect." On the surface, it would seem to
21	be advantageous to the small firms to provide average returns in a stock
22	for the small firms what the small firm effect means is that the conital
23	for the small finn, what the small-firm effect means is that the capital
24 25	otherwise similar stocks of the large firms (emphasis added)
25 26	other wise similar stocks of the large mins. (comphasis added)
27	Consistent with the financial principle of risk and return discussed above, such
28	increased relative risk due to small size must be considered in the allowed rate of return

, ·

· ·

 ⁸ Eugene F. Fanta and Kenneth R. French, "The Capital Asset Pricing Model: Theory and Evidence," Journal of Economic Perspectives, Volume 18, Number 3, Summer 2004 25-43.
 ⁹ Brealey, Richard A. and Myers, Stewart C., <u>Principles of Corporate Finance</u> (McGraw-Hill Book

Company, 1996) 204-205, 229. ¹⁰ Brigham, Eugene F., <u>Fundamentals of Financial Management, Fifth Edition</u> (The Dryden Press, 1989)

^{623.}

1		on common equity. Therefore, the MOPSC's authorization of a cost rate of common
2		equity in this proceeding must appropriately reflect the Companies' respective and
3		relevant unique risks, including the impact of their small size, and is justified and
4		supported by evidence in the financial literature as well as in financial markets as will be
5		discussed subsequently.
6		Financial Risk
7	Q.	PLEASE DEFINE FINANCIAL RISK AND EXPLAIN WHY IT IS IMPORTANT
8		TO THE DETERMINATION OF A FAIR RATE OF RETURN.
9	A.	Financial risk is created by the introduction of senior capital, i.e., debt and preferred
10		stock, into the capital structure. It is the additional risk that a company may not have
11		sufficient cash flows to meet its financial obligations. The higher the proportion of senior
12		capital in the capital structure, the higher the financial risk which must be factored into
13		the common equity cost rate, consistent with the previously mentioned basic financial
14		principle of risk and return, i.e., investors demand a higher common equity return as
15		compensation for bearing higher investment risk.
16	Q.	CAN THE COMBINED BUSINESS RISKS (I.E., INVESTMENT RISK) OF AN
17		ENTERPRISE BE PROXIED BY BOND AND CREDIT RATINGS?
18	A.	Yes, similar bond / issuer credit ratings reflect and are representative of similar combined
19		business and financial risks, <i>i.e.</i> , total risk faced by bond investors. Although specific
20		business or financial risks may differ between companies, the same bond / credit rating
21		indicates that the combined risks are similar, albeit not necessarily equal (as the purpose
22		of the bond / credit rating process is to assess credit quality or credit risk and not common
23		equity risk).

• •

1		However, one must keep in mind that a long-term issuer credit or bond issue rating
2		is an opinion regarding the particular company's overall financial capacity to pay its
3		financial obligations as they become due and payable. It is not an assessment of the risk
4		faced by equity investors. The claims of equity holders are subordinate to the claims of
5		debt holders and are perpetual in life. As noted above, whereas bondholders can be
6		assured of the probability that a particular company will be able to meet its financial
7		obligations (and thus have higher credit/bond ratings), common equity holders bear the
8		residual risk of insufficient or volatile cash flows in perpetuity. For that fundamental
9		reason, the risks of owning common equity do not directly correspond to the risks of
10		owning bonds. The two have similar considerations, but only up to a point.
11		NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP
12	Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU CHOSE THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP.
13	A.	I chose the Natural Gas Proxy Group by selecting those companies which met the
14		following criteria:
15		1) They are included in the Natural Gas Utility Group of Value Line's Standard
16		Edition (December 2, 2016);
17		2) They have 50% or greater of 2015 total operating income derived from, and 50% or
18		greater of 2015 total assets devoted to, regulated natural gas operations;
19		3) They had not publicly announced involvement in any major merger or acquisition
20		activity (i.e., one publicly-traded utility merging with or acquiring another) at the
21		time of the preparation of this testimony;
22		4) They have not cut or omitted their common dividends during the past five years or
23		through the time of the preparation of this testimony;

, ·

¢ 1

1		5) They have <i>Value Line</i> and Bloomberg adjusted betas;
2		6) They have a positive <i>Value Line</i> five-year dividends per share ("DPS") growth rate
3		projection; and,
4		7) They have Value Line, Reuters, Zacks or Yahoo! Finance, consensus five-year
5		earnings per share ("EPS") growth rate projections.
6		The following seven companies meet these criteria:
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14		 Atmos Energy Corp. (ATO); Chesapeake Utilities Corp. (CPK); New Jersey Resources Corp. (NJR); Northwest Natural Gas Co. (NWN); South Jersey Industries, Inc. (SJI); Southwest Gas Corp. (SWX); Spire, Inc. (SR).
15	Q.	HAVE YOU REVIEWED FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE NATURAL GAS
16		PROXY GROUP?
17	A.	Yes. Page 1 of Schedule PMA-D2 contains comparative capitalization and financial
18		statistics for the Natural Gas Proxy Group for the years $2011 - 2015$. As shown on page
19		1, during the five-year period ending 2015, the historically achieved average earnings rate
20		on book common equity for the group was 10.70%. The average five-year common
21		equity ratio based upon permanent capital (excluding short-term debt) was 55.81%, and
22		the average dividend payout ratio was 57.83%.
23		In addition, total debt outstanding as a percentage of EBITDA for the years $2011 -$
24		2015 ranged between 3.23 and 4.62 times, averaging 3.98 times, for the five-year period,
25		while funds from operations relative to total debt ranged between 19.53% and 29.74%,

÷ ۱

CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS AND LONG-TERM DEBT COST RATE Q. WHAT CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS DO YOU RECOMMEND FOR USE IN DETERMINING THE OVERALL COST OF CAPITAL FOR THE COMPANIES AND WHY?

- A. I recommend that the pro forma consolidated capital structure ratios and embedded longterm debt cost rate of Laclede at December 31, 2016 be used to establish an allowed
 overall rate of return for the Companies. These ratios, as well as corresponding cost
 rates, are shown on Schedule PMA-D1. They consist of 42.80%, long-term debt at an
 embedded cost rate of 4.159% and 57.20% common equity, at my recommended
 common equity cost rate of 10.35%.
- Q. ARE THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED LACLEDE ACTUAL CAPITAL
 STRUCTURE RATIOS AT DECEMBER 31, 2016 APPROPRIATE FOR USE IN
 A COST OF CAPITAL DETERMINATION?
- Yes. The pro forma consolidated Laclede capital structure ratios at December 31, 2016 14 Α. are reasonable to use for both the Companies because: 1) they are the "actual" pro forma 15 16 capital structure ratios of Laclede, in other words, the long-term debt is issued by Laclede based upon the utilities' mortgage of assets and the common equity represents Laclede's 17 common stock and retained earnings; 2) MGE is a division of Laclede; and, 3) the ratios 18 are consistent with the capital structure ratios maintained on average by the Natural Gas 19 Proxy Group upon whose market data I relied in deriving my recommended common 20 equity cost rate. 21

Q. HOW DOES LACLEDE'S LONG-TERM DEBT RATIO OF 42.80% PRO FORMA AT DECEMBER 31, 2016, COMPARE WITH THE LONG-TERM DEBT

į

2

RATIOS MAINTAINED ON AVERAGE BY THE COMPANIES IN THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP?

A. Laclede's long-term debt ratio of 42.80% pro forma at December 31, 2016 is similar, but slightly less than the long-term debt ratio based upon permanent capital (excluding shortterm debt) of 44.98%, maintained on average in 2015 by the companies in the Natural Gas Proxy Group. In addition, the long-term debt ratios based upon permanent capital of the Natural Gas Proxy Group companies ranged from 30.68% to 54.06% in 2016, with a midpoint of 42.37%, as shown on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D2.

9

COMMON EQUITY COST RATE MODELS

10 Q. ARE THE COST OF COMMON EQUITY MODELS YOU USE MARKET-11 BASED MODELS?

Yes. The DCF model is market-based in that market prices are utilized in developing the 12 A. dividend yield component of the model. The RPM and CAPM are also market-based in 13 that the bond / issuer ratings and expected bond yields / risk-free rate used in the 14 application of the RPM and CAPM reflect the market's assessment of bond / credit risk. 15 In addition, the use of beta to determine the equity risk premium also reflects the 16 market's assessment of market / systematic risk, as betas are derived from regression 17 analyses of market prices. In addition, market prices are used in the development of the 18 monthly returns and equity risk premiums used in the Predictive Risk Premium Model 19 Selection of the companies included in the Non-Price Regulated Proxy ("PRPM"). 20 Group is market-based in that the selection criteria are based upon statistical regression 21 analyses of market prices. 22

, ·

Discounted Cash Flow Model ("DCF")

Q. WHAT IS THE THEORETICAL BASIS OF THE DCF MODEL? 2 Α. The theory underlying the DCF model is that the present value of an expected future 3 4 stream of net cash flows during the investment holding period can be determined by discounting those cash flows at the cost of capital, or the investors' capitalization rate. 5 DCF theory assumes that an investor buys a stock for an expected total return rate which 6 is derived from cash flows received in the form of dividends plus appreciation in market 7 price (the expected growth rate). Mathematically, the dividend yield on market price plus 8 a growth rate equals the capitalization rate (i.e., the total common equity return rate 9 expected by investors). 10 11 Q. WHICH VERSION OF THE DCF MODEL DO YOU USE? I utilize the single-stage constant growth DCF model. The single-stage DCF model is 12 Α. expressed as: 13 $K = (D_1 / P_0) + g$ 14 Where: K = Cost of Equity Capital 15 D_1 = Expected Dividend Per Share in one year 16 $P_0 = Current Market Price$ 17 G = Expected Dividend Per Share Growth 18 19 20 Q. PLEASE DESCRIBE THE DIVIDEND YIELD YOU USED IN YOUR 21 **APPLICATION OF THE DCF MODEL.** The unadjusted dividend yields are based upon a recent (January 30, 2017) indicated 22 Α. dividend, divided by the average of closing market prices for the 60 days ending January 23 31, 2017, as shown in Column [1] on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D3. 24 PLEASE EXPLAIN THE ADJUSTED DIVIDEND YIELD SHOWN ON PAGE 1 **Q**. 25 OF SCHEDULE PMA-D3 COLUMN [7]. 26

A. Because dividends are paid quarterly, or periodically, as opposed to continuously (daily),
 an adjustment must be made to the dividend yield. This is often referred to as the
 discrete, or the Gordon Periodic, version of the DCF model.

DCF theory calls for the use of the full expectational growth rate, referred to as 4 D₁, in calculating the dividend yield component of the model. However, since the 5 various companies in the Natural Gas Proxy Group increase their quarterly dividend at 6 various times during the year, a reasonable assumption is to reflect one-half the annual 7 dividend growth rate in the dividend yield component, referred to as $D_{1/2}$. This is a 8 conservative approach because it does not overstate the dividend yield, which should be 9 representative of the next twelve-month period. Therefore, the actual average dividend 10 yields in Column [1], page 1 of Schedule PMA-D3, have been adjusted upward to reflect 11 one-half the average projected growth rate shown in Column [6]. 12

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE BASIS OF THE GROWTH RATES OF THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP WHICH YOU USE IN YOUR APPLICATION OF THE DCF MODEL.

A. Investors with more limited resources than institutional investors are likely to rely upon widely available financial information services, such as *Value Line*, Reuters, Zacks and Yahoo! Finance. Investors recognize that such analysts have significant insight into the dynamics of the industries and individual companies they analyze, as well as an entity's historical and future ability to effectively manage the effects of changing laws and regulations and ever changing economic and market conditions.

1		Security analysts' earnings expectations have a significant, but not sole, influence
2		on market prices and are therefore reasonable indicators of investor expectations. ¹¹ As
3		noted by Morin ¹² :
4		
5		Because of the dominance of institutional investors and their influence on
6		individual investors, analysts' forecasts of long-run growth rates provide a
7		sound basis for estimating required returns. Financial analysis exert a strong influence on the expectations of many investors who do not possess
9		the resources to make their own forecasts, that is, they are a cause of g
10		[g = growth] = 1.12222222222222222222222222222222222
11		
12		Over the long run, there can be no growth in DPS without growth in EPS.
13		Thus, the use of earnings growth rate forecasts in a DCF analysis provides a better
14		matching between investors' market price appreciation expectations and the growth rate
15		component of the DCF. Therefore, I have relied upon security analysts' five-year
16		forecasts of EPS growth in my application of the DCF model.
17	Q.	PLEASE SUMMARIZE THE DCF MODEL RESULTS.
18	A.	As shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D3, the average result of the single-stage DCF
19		model is 8.65%, while the median result is 8.70%. I have averaged these two results in
20		arriving at a conclusion of a DCF-indicated common equity cost rate of 8.68% for the
21		Natural Gas Proxy Group. By doing so, I have not only considered the DCF results for
22		each company, but have not given undue weight to outliers on either the high or the low
23		side.
24	Q.	PLEASE COMMENT UPON THE APPLICABILITY OF THE DCF MODEL IN
25		ESTABLISHING A COST OF COMMON EQUITY.

ς. -

1.1

¹¹ Morin 298-303. ¹² Morin 298.

The DCF model has a tendency to mis-specify the investor required common equity A. 1 return rate when the market value of common stock differs significantly from its book 2 value. Mathematically, because the "simplified" DCF model traditionally used in rate 3 regulation assumes a market-to-book ratio of one, it understates / overstates investors' 4 required return rate when market value exceeds or is less than book value. It does so 5 because, in many instances, market prices reflect investors' assessments of long-range 6 market price growth potentials (consistent with the infinite investment horizon implicit in 7 the standard regulatory version of the DCF model) not fully reflected in analysts' shorter 8 range forecasts of future growth in earnings per share (EPS), an accounting proxy. Thus, 9 10 the market-based DCF model will result in a total annual dollar return on book common equity equal to the total annual dollar return expected by investors only when market and 11 book values are equal, a rare and unlikely situation. In recent years, the market values of 12 natural gas utilities' common stocks have been well in excess of their book values as 13 shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D2 ranging between 149.16% and 190.88% for the 14 five years ending 2015. 15

Under DCF theory, the rate of return investors require is related to the market price 16 paid for a security. Thus, market prices form the basis of investment decisions and 17 investors' expected rates of return. In contrast, a regulated utility is generally limited to 18 earning on a net book value (depreciated original cost) rate base. Although market prices 19 are significantly influenced by analysts' EPS growth forecasts, market values can diverge 20 from book values for a myriad of macroeconomic reasons including, but not limited to, 21 EPS and DPS expectations, merger or acquisition expectations, interest rates, investor 22 sentiment, unemployment levels, monetary policy, fiscal policy, etc. 23

1		Traditional rate base / rate of return regulation, where a market-based common
2		equity cost rate is applied to a book value rate base, presumes that market-to-book ratios
3		are at unity or 1.00. However, there is ample empirical evidence over sustained periods
4		which demonstrate that this is an incorrect presumption. Since market-to-book ratios of
5		unity or 1.00 are rarely the case as discussed above, regulatory allowed returns on
6		common equity, <i>i.e.</i> , earnings, have a limited effect on utilities' market/book ratios as the
7		market prices of utility common stocks are also influenced by factors beyond the direct
8		influence of the regulatory process.
9 10		As noted by Phillips: ¹³
11		Many question the assumption that market price should equal book value.
12		believing that the earnings of utilities should be sufficiently high to achieve
13		market-to-book ratios which are consistent with those prevailing for stocks
14		of unregulated companies.'
15		
16		In addition, Bonbright ¹⁴ states:
17		
18		In the first place, commissions cannot forecast, except within wide limits,
19		the effect their rate orders will have on the market prices of the stocks of the
20		companies they regulate. In the second place, whatever the initial market
21		prices may be, they are sure to change not only with the changing
2 2		prospects for earnings, but with the changing outlook of an inherently
23		volatile stock market. In short, market prices are beyond the control,
24		though not beyond the influence of rate regulation. Moreover, even if a
25		commission did possess the power of control, any attempt to exercise it
26		would result in harmful, uneconomic shifts in public utility rate levels.
27		(emphasis added)
28	~	
29	Q.	IS IT REASONABLE TO EXPECT THE MARKET VALUES OF UTILITIES
30		COMMON STOCKS TO CONTINUE TO SELL WELL ABOVE THEIR BOOK
31		VALUES?

 ¹³ Phillips, Charles F., <u>The Regulation of Public Utilities – Theory and Practice</u> (Public Utility Reports, Inc., 1993) 395.
 ¹⁴ James C. Bonbright, Albert L. Danielsen and David R. Kamerschen, <u>Principles of Public Utility Rates</u> (Public Utilities Reports, Inc., 1988) 334.

Α. Yes. Market-to-book ratios of regulated utilities vary from year to year, due to such 1 influences as the effects on the "Great Recession", subsequent economic and capital 2 market turmoil and the ongoing economic recovery and the like. In my opinion, the 3 common stocks of utilities will continue to sell substantially above their book values, on 4 average, because many investors will likely continue to commit a greater percentage of 5 6 their available capital to common stocks in view of lower interest rate alternative investment opportunities. The recent past and current capital market environment is in 7 stark and historical contrast to the late 1970's and early 1980's when very high (by 8 historical standards) yields on secured debt instruments in public utilities were available. 9 Despite the fact that the market declined significantly during late 2001 through 2003, 10 following the September 11, 2001 tragedy and dipped to a low in March 2009 as the 11 "Great Recession" unfolded and the U.S. is now recovering from the "Great Recession" 12 at a moderate pace, the majority of utility stocks, on average, have continued to sell at 13 market prices well above their book value. In addition, as previously discussed, such 14 sustained high market-to-book ratios have been influenced by factors other than 15 fundamentals such as actual and reported growth in EPS and DPS. 16

Q. CAN THE UNDER- OR OVERSTATEMENT OF THE INVESTORS' REQUIRED RATE OF RETURN ON THE MARKET BY THE DCF MODEL BE DEMONSTRATED MATHEMATICALLY?

A. Yes. Page 2 of Schedule PMA-D3 demonstrates how a market-based DCF cost rate of
 8.65%¹⁵ applied to a book value which is below market value will understate the investor
 required return on market value. As shown, there is no realistic opportunity to earn the
 expected market-based rate of return on book value. In Column [1], investors expect an

8.65%, the average DCF result for the proxy group, return on a market price of \$59.536.¹⁶
Column [2] shows that when the 8.65% return rate on market value is applied to a book
value of \$25.848¹⁷ which is approximately 43% of market value, the total annual return
opportunity is just \$2.236 on book value. With an annual dividend of \$1.703, there is an
opportunity for growth of \$0.533 which is just 0.90% in contrast to the 5.79% growth in
market price expected by investors.

7

8

The converse is also true. When the market-to-book value is below 1, the DCF cost rate will overstate the investor required return on market value.

9 Hence, the DCF model mis-specifies, that is, it either understates / overstates 10 investors' required cost of common equity capital when market values exceed / are less 11 than their underlying book values. Therefore, as stated above, to add reliability to the 12 estimation of the cost of common equity, multiple cost of common equity models should 13 be relied upon, rather than exclusive reliance upon the DCF model, when estimating 14 investors' expectations.

In view of all the foregoing, at this time the traditional application of the DCF mis-specifies investor required return. Specifically, it understates investor required return because of the confluence of recently rising market prices, the use of accounting measures as proxies for capital appreciation in the DCF, the recent dramatic rise in interest rates in response to recent Federal Reserve comments and the expected continued rise in interest rates and capital costs discussed below. The magnitude of this understatement can be found in the difference between the 5.79% growth in market

¹⁶ Average market price for the Natural Gas Proxy Group at January 30, 2017 from Column [4] on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D10.

¹⁷ Average book value at year end 2015 for the Natural Gas Proxy Group from Column [1] on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D10.

1		values, <i>i.e.</i> , growth in EPS, shown in Column [1] on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D3 and the
2		growth in market value of 0.90%, shown in Column [2], when the 8.65% DCF cost rate is
3		applied to book value, or nearly 490 basis points. Coupled with the added reliability and
4		accuracy that the use of multiple cost of common equity models provides in the
5		estimation of the cost of common equity, it is more imperative than ever to not give
6		exclusive or even primary reliance to the DCF analysis currently. In fact, in my opinion,
7		it would be inappropriate to give any greater weight to the DCF analysis than I already
8		have in deriving my multi-model return on equity recommendation.
9		The Risk Premium Model ("RPM")
10	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE THE THEORETICAL BASIS OF THE RPM.
11	Α.	The RPM is based upon the basic financial principle of risk and return, namely, that
12		investors require greater returns for bearing greater risk. The RPM recognizes that
13		common equity capital has greater investment risk than debt capital, as common equity
14		shareholders are last in line in any claim on an entity's assets and earnings, as previously
15		discussed. Therefore, investors require higher returns from investment in common stocks
16		than from investment in bonds to compensate them for bearing the additional risk.
17		While, as also discussed previously, it is possible to directly observe bond returns
18		and yields, the investor required common equity return cannot be directly determined or
19		observed. According to RPM theory, one can estimate a common equity risk premium
20		over bonds, either historically or prospectively, and then use that premium to derive a
21		cost rate of common equity. In summary, according to the RPM, the cost of common
22		equity equals the expected cost rate for long-term debt capital plus a risk premium over

2

that cost rate to compensate common shareholders for the added risk of being unsecured and last-in-line for any claim on a corporation's assets and earnings.

3 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU DERIVED YOUR INDICATED COST OF 4 COMMON EQUITY BASED UPON THE RPM.

A. I relied upon the results of the application of two risk premium methods, as shown in
 Schedule PMA-D4. The first method is the Predictive Risk Premium Model (PRPM).
 The second method is a risk premium model using an adjusted total market approach.

8

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE PRPM.

9 A. The PRPM, published in the Journal of Regulatory Economics (JRE)¹⁸ and
10 <u>The Electricity Journal (TEJ)</u>¹⁹, was developed from the work of Robert F. Engle, who
11 shared the Nobel Prize in Economics in 2003, "for methods of analyzing economic time
12 series with time-varying volatility ("ARCH")"²⁰ (with "ARCH" standing for
13 autoregressive conditional heteroscedasticity). Engle found that the volatility in market
14 prices, returns, and equity risk premiums clusters over time, making them highly
15 predictable and available to predict future levels of risk and risk premiums.

The PRPM estimates the risk / return relationship directly as the predicted equity risk premium is generated by the predictability of volatility, or risk. Thus, the PRPM is not based upon an <u>estimate</u> of investor behavior, but rather upon the evaluation of the <u>actual</u> results of that behavior, *i.e.*, the variance of historical equity risk premiums.

¹⁸ "A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities", Pauline M. Ahern, Frank J. Hanley and Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D. <u>The Journal of Regulatory Economics</u> (December 2011), 40:261-278.

¹⁹ "Comparative Evaluation of the Predictive Risk Premium Model[™], the Discounted Cash Flow Model and the Capital Asset Pricing Model", Pauline M. Ahern, Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University, Dylan W. D'Ascendis, and Frank J. Hanley, <u>The Electricity Journal</u> (May, 2013).

²⁰ www.nobelprize.org

1		The inputs to the model are the historical returns on the common shares of each
2		publicly traded utility in the Natural Gas Proxy Group, minus the historical monthly yield
3		on long-term U.S. Treasury securities, through January 2017. Using a generalized form
4		of ARCH, known as GARCH, each natural gas utility's projected equity risk premium
5		was determined using Eviews [©] statistical software. When the GARCH model is applied
6		to the historical return data, it produces a predicted GARCH variance series ²¹ and a
7		GARCH coefficient. ²² The forecasted 30-year U.S. Treasury Bond yield of 3.65% is
8		based upon consensus forecasts for the six quarters ending with the second quarter 2018,
9		derived from the February 1, 2017 Blue Chip Financial Forecasts (Blue Chip), averaged
10		with the long-range forecasts for $2018 - 2022$ and $2023 - 2027$, from the December 1,
11		2016 Blue Chip. The average PRPM indicated common equity cost rate is 11.43%, while
12		the median is 11.81% for the Natural Gas Proxy Group, as shown in Column [7].
13		Consistent with my use of the average of the average and median DCF results, I rely
14		upon the average of the average and median PRPM results of 11.62% ²³ as my conclusion
15		of the PRPM equity cost rate, also shown in Column [7] of Schedule PMA-D4.
16	Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN THE ADJUSTED TOTAL MARKET APPROACH RPM.
17	A.	The adjusted total market approach RPM adds a prospective public utility bond yield to

the average of: 1) an equity risk premium derived from a beta-adjusted total market 18 equity risk premium; 2) an equity risk premium based upon the S&P Utilities Index; and, 19 3) an equity risk premium based upon the authorized returns for natural gas companies 20 over Moody's A rated public utility bonds. 21

²¹ Illustrated in Columns [1] and [2] on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D4.
²² Illustrated in Column [4] on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D4.

 $^{^{23}}$ 11.62% = (11.43% + 11.81%)/2.

Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE BASIS OF THE ADJUSTED PROSPECTIVE BOND YIELD OF 4.89% APPLICABLE TO THE NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP, SHOWN ON LINE NO. 5 ON PAGE 3 OF SCHEDULE PMA-D4.

A. The first step in the adjusted total market approach RPM analysis is to determine the 4 expected bond yield. Because both ratemaking and the cost of capital, including the 5 common equity cost rate, are prospective in nature, a prospective yield on long-term debt, 6 7 similarly rated to the Natural Gas Proxy Group, is essential. Since Blue Chip does not publish consensus yield forecasts for the Moody's A rated public utility bonds, I began 8 9 with the February 1, 2017 Blue Chip consensus forecast of about 50 economists of the expected yield on Aaa rated corporate bonds for the six calendar quarters ending with the 10 second calendar quarter of 2018, averaged with the long-range forecasts for 2018 - 2022, 11 and 2023 – 2026, from the December 1, 2016 Blue Chip²⁴. As shown on Line No. 1 of 12 page 3, the average expected yield on Moody's Aaa rated corporate bonds is 4.68%. In 13 order to derive a prospective Moody's A rated public utility bond yield, an adjustment of 14 15 0.21%, or the average spread between Moody's Aaa rated corporate bond yields and Moody's A rated public utility bond yields for the three months ending January 2017^{25} 16 must be made to the average Aaa corporate bond yield, which results in a bond yield of 17 4.89% applicable to a Moody's A rated public utility bond.²⁶ 18

19 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE METHOD OF ESTIMATING THE EQUITY RISK 20 PREMIUM IN THE ADJUSTED TOTAL MARKET APPROACH.

- 21 A. The total beta-derived equity risk premium shown on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D5 is
- 22 based upon an average of:

²⁴ See pages 9 and 10 of Schedule PMA-D4.

²⁵ See page 4 of Schedule PMA-D4.

 $^{^{26}4.89\% = 4.68\% + 0.21\%}$.

1		1)	The arithmetic mean monthly historical equity market equity risk premium of
2			large company common stocks, relative to Moody's Aaa / Aa corporate bonds
3			from 1928 – 2015;
4		2)	The PRPM predicted monthly equity risk premium of large company common
5			stocks relative to Moody's Aaa / Aa corporate bonds from January 1928 -
6			January 2017;
7	. ·	- 3)	The results of a regression analysis of the monthly equity risk premiums of large
8			company common stocks relative to Moody's Aaa / Aa corporate bonds from
9			1928 – 2015;
10		4)	The 3-5 year median total market price appreciation projections and expected
11			market dividend yield for the thirteen weeks ending February 10, 2016 reported
12			by <i>Value Line</i> ; and,
13		5)	A forecasted equity risk premium based upon the S&P 500 market-value
14			weighted projected market appreciation and dividend yield.
15	Q.	HOW	DID YOU DERIVE THE LONG-TERM HISTORICAL MARKET EQUITY
16		RISK	PREMIUM?
17	A.	To de	rive a historical market equity risk premium, I used the most recent Morningstar
18		data d	on holding period returns for the large company common stocks from the
19		Morni	ngstar [®] SBBI [®] Appendix A Tables ("Morningstar - 2016"), ²⁷ and the average
20		histori	cal yield on Moody's Aaa and Aa rated corporate bonds for the period 1928-2015.
21		The u	se of holding period returns over a very long period of time is useful because it is

 ²⁷ Table A-1. Morningstar[®] SBBI[®] Appendix A Tables, Morningstar Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation | 1926 - 2015, [©] 2016. Morningstar has decided to stop publishing the Ibbotson Classic Yearbook, but has provided the Appendix A Tables.

- consistent with the long-term investment horizon by investing in a going concern, *i.e.*, a company expected to operate in perpetuity.
- Morningstar's long-term arithmetic mean monthly total return rate on large company common stocks is 11.68% and the long-term arithmetic mean monthly yield on Moody's Aaa and Aa rated corporate bonds is 6.16%. The resultant long-term historical equity risk premium on the market as a whole is 5.52%, shown on Line No. 1 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.

2

I used arithmetic mean monthly total return rates for the large company stocks 8 and yields (income returns) for Moody's Aaa / Aa corporate bonds because they are 9 appropriate for cost of capital purposes. The use of arithmetic mean return rates and 10 yields are appropriate because ex-post (historical) total returns and equity risk premiums 11 differ in size and direction over time, providing insight into the variance and standard 12 deviation of returns needed by investors in estimating future risk when making a current 13 investment. Absent such valuable insight into the potential variance of returns, investors 14 cannot meaningfully evaluate prospective risk. If investors alternatively relied upon the 15 geometric mean of ex-post equity risk premiums, they would have no insight into the 16 potential variance of future returns because the geometric mean relates the change over 17 18 many periods of time to a constant rate of change, thereby obviating the period-to-period fluctuations, or variance, critical to risk analysis. 19

20 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE DERIVATION OF A PRPM MARKET EQUITY RISK 21 PREMIUM.

A. I used the same PRPM approach described previously to develop a second market equity
 risk premium estimate. The inputs to the model are the historical monthly returns on

large company common stocks from Morningstar – 2016, minus the monthly yields on
 Aaa and Aa rated corporate bonds during the period January 1928 through January 2017.
 Using the previously discussed GARCH model, the market's projected equity risk
 premium was determined using Eviews[®] statistical software. The resulting predicted
 market equity risk premium based upon the PRPM is 6.38%, shown on Line No. 2 on
 page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.

5

7 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE DERIVATION OF THE REGRESSION BASED 8 MARKET EQUITY RISK PREMIUM.

To derive the regression analysis-derived market equity risk premium of 7.40%, shown 9 A. on Line No. 3 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4, I used monthly annualized total returns 10 on large company common stocks relative to the monthly annualized yields on Moody's 11 Aaa / Aa corporate bonds from 1928-2015. The relationship between interest rates and 12 the market equity risk premium was modeled using the observed monthly market equity 13 risk premium as the dependent variable, and the monthly yield on Moody's Aaa / Aa 14 corporate bonds as the independent variable. I used a linear Ordinary Least Squares 15 ("OLS") regression, in which the market equity risk premium is expressed as a function 16 of the Moody's Aaa / Aa corporate bonds yield: 17

18

$RP = \alpha + \beta (R_{Aaa/Aa})$

19 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE DERIVATION OF A PROJECTED MARKET EQUITY

20

RISK PREMIUM BASED UPON VALUE LINE DATA.

A. As noted previously, because both ratemaking and the cost of capital, including the cost
 rate of common equity, are prospective, a prospective market equity risk premium is
 essential. Consistent with the development of the dividend yield component of my DCF

1		analysis, the fourth prospective market equity risk premium of 4.60%, shown on Line No.
2		4 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4, is derived from an average of the 3-5 year estimated
3		median market price appreciation potential provided by Value Line, plus an average of
4		the median estimated dividend yield for the common stocks of the approximately 1,700
5		firms covered in Value Line's Standard Edition, both for the thirteen weeks ending
6		February 10, 2017.
7		The average median expected price appreciation is 32%, which translates to an
8		7.19% annual appreciation and, when added to the average (similarly calculated) median
9		dividend yield of 2.09%, equates to a forecasted annual total return rate on the market as
10		a whole of 9.28%. The forecasted Aaa bond yield of $4.68\%^{28}$ is deducted from the total
11		market return of 9.28%, resulting in an equity risk premium of 4.60%.
12	Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN THE DERIVATION OF A MARKET EQUITY RISK
13		PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES.
13 14	A.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected
13 14 15	А.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields
13 14 15 16	Α.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields and projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation.
13 14 15 16 17	Α.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields and projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation. The expected market-value weighted total return for the S&P 500 is 13.08%. Subtracting
13 14 15 16 17 18	Α.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields and projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation. The expected market-value weighted total return for the S&P 500 is 13.08%. Subtracting the prospective yield on Moody's Aaa rated corporate bonds of 4.68% results in an
13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Α.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields and projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation. The expected market-value weighted total return for the S&P 500 is 13.08%. Subtracting the prospective yield on Moody's Aaa rated corporate bonds of 4.68% results in an 8.40% projected market equity risk premium, shown on Line No. 5 on page 8 of Schedule
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Α.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES. Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expected total return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yields and projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation. The expected market-value weighted total return for the S&P 500 is 13.08%. Subtracting the prospective yield on Moody's Aaa rated corporate bonds of 4.68% results in an 8.40% projected market equity risk premium, shown on Line No. 5 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.
 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 	А. Q.	PREMIUM BASED UPON THE S&P 500 COMPOSITE INDEX COMPANIES.Using data from Bloomberg Professional Services, a market-value weighted expectedtotal return for the S&P 500 companies can be derived using the expected dividend yieldsand projected long-term growth in earnings per share as a proxy for capital appreciation.The expected market-value weighted total return for the S&P 500 is 13.08%. Subtractingthe prospective yield on Moody's Aaa rated corporate bonds of 4.68% results in an8.40% projected market equity risk premium, shown on Line No. 5 on page 8 of SchedulePMA-D4.WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION OF THE MARKET EQUITY RISK PREMIUM

²⁸ See page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.

,

۰^۱

 $, \ell$

А.	It is 6.46% as shown on Line No. 6 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4. In arriving at this
	conclusion, I averaged: 1) the historical market equity risk premium of 5.52%; 2) the
	PRPM based market equity risk premium of 6.38%; 3) the regression based market equity
	risk premium of 7.40%; 4) the Value Line-based forecasted market equity risk premium
	of 4.60%; and, 5) the S&P 500 market-value weighted projected market equity risk
	premium of 8.40% shown on Line Nos. 1 through 5 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4. ²⁹
Q.	WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION OF A BETA DERIVED EQUITY RISK
	PREMIUM FOR USE IN YOUR TOTAL MARKET APPROACH RPM
	ANALYSIS?
A.	The conclusion of the market equity risk premium of 6.46% is then adjusted by beta to
	account for the market risk of the Natural Gas Proxy Group. Beta is a measure of relative
	risk to the market as a whole and a logical means by which to allocate an entity's/proxy
	group's share of the total market's equity risk premium relative to corporate bond yields.
	As shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D5, Column [3], the average of the mean and
	median Value Line and Bloomberg betas for the Natural Gas Proxy Group average is
	0.69. Multiplying a beta of 0.69 by the market equity risk premium of 6.46%, on Line
	No. 6 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4, results in a beta adjusted equity risk premium of
	4.46% for the Natural Gas Proxy Group, as shown on Line No. 8 on page 8 of Schedule
	PMA-D4.
Q.	PLEASE EXPLAIN THE DERIVATION OF AN EQUITY RISK PREMIUM
	BASED UPON THE S&P UTILITY INDEX.
A.	I calculated four estimated equity risk premiums based upon the S&P Utility Index. First,
	I derived the long-term monthly arithmetic mean equity risk premium between the S&P

(,
1		Utility Index total returns of 10.49% and monthly Moody's A rated public utility bond
2		yields of 6.64% from 1928 – 2015, to arrive at an equity risk premium of 3.85% . ³⁰
3		Second, I applied the PRPM using historical monthly equity risk premiums from January
4		1928 through January 2017, to arrive at the PRPM derived equity risk premium of 4.34%
5		for the S&P Utility Index. ³¹ Third, I derived a regression based analysis of the monthly
6		equity risk premiums of the S&P Utility Index relative to Moody's A rated public utility
7		bonds from 1928 – 2015, of 5.50%. ³² Fourth, I derived an expected market-value
8		weighted total return on the S&P Utility Index of 8.25% using data from Bloomberg
9		Professional Services, and subtracting the prospective Moody's A rated public utility
10		bond yield of 4.89%, resulting in an equity risk premium of 3.36%, as shown on Line No
11		6 on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4.
12		I rely upon the average of the historical (3.85%); the PRPM (4.34%); the
13		regression based (5.50%); and, S&P Utility Index (3.36%) derived equity risk premiums,
14		which is 4.26%, shown on Line No. 7 on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4. ³³
15	Q.	HOW DID YOU DERIVE AN EQUITY RISK PREMIUM OF 5.15% BASED ON
16		AUTHORIZED RETURNS ON COMMON EQUITY FOR NATURAL GAS
17		COMPANIES?
18	A.	The equity risk premium of 5.15% shown on Line No. 3, page 7 of Schedule PMA-D4 is
19		the result of a regression analysis based on regulatory awarded returns on common equity
20		related to the yields on A-rated public utility bonds. That analysis is summarized on page
21		12 of Schedule PMA-D4, which presents the graphical results of a regression analysis of

³⁰ As shown on Line No. 3, on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4. ³¹ As shown on Line No. 4, on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4. ³² As shown on Line No. 5, on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4. ³³ 4.26% = ((3.85% + 4.34% + 5.50% + 3.36%) / 4).

752 rate cases for natural gas utility companies which were fully litigated during the 1 period from January 1, 1980 through December 31, 2016. The data used were the 2 implicit equity risk premium relative to the yields on A-rated public utility bonds 3 immediately prior to the issuance of each regulatory decision.³⁴ An inverse relationship 4 between the yield on A-rated public utility bonds and equity risk premium is clearly 5 6 visible in the chart on page 12. In other words, as interest rates decline, the equity risk premium rises and vice versa, a result consistent with regulatory financial literature on 7 the subject.³⁵ Given the expected A-rated utility bond yield of 4.89%, it can be 8 interpolated that the indicated equity risk premium applicable to that bond yield is 5.15%, 9 which is shown on Line No. 3, page 5 of Schedule PMA-D4. 10

Q. WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION OF AN EQUITY RISK PREMIUM FOR USE IN YOUR ADJUSTED TOTAL MARKET APPROACH RPM ANALYSIS?

A. The equity risk premium applicable to the Natural Gas Proxy Group is 4.62%,³⁶ derived by averaging the beta-derived premium of 4.46% (Line No. 8 on page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4), the equity risk premium of 4.26% based upon the holding period returns of public utilities with Moody's A rated bonds (Line No. 7 on page 11 of Schedule PMA-D4) and the 5.15% equity risk premium based upon the regression analysis of authorized returns on common equity for natural gas companies (page 12 of Schedule PMA-D4).

³⁴ The implied equity risk premium is calculated by subtracting the prevailing yield on Moody's A rated public utility bonds from the authorized return on common equity for each case.

³⁵ Robert S. Harris and Felicia C. Marston, Estimating Shareholder Risk Premia Using Analysts' Growth Forecasts, Financial Management, Summer 1992 63-70; Eugene F. Brigham, Dilip K. Shome, and Steve R. Vinson, The Risk Premium Approach to Measuring a Utility's Cost of Equity, Financial Management, Spring 1985 33-45; and Farris M. Maddox, Donna T. Pippert, and Rodney N. Sullivan, An Empirical Study of Ex Ante Risk Premiums for the Electric Utility Industry, Financial Management, Autumn 1995 89-95.

 $^{^{36}4.62\% = (4.46\% + 4.26\% + 5.15\%)/3).}$

1	

Q. WHAT IS THE RPM-BASED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE BASED UPON

- 2 THE ADJUSTED TOTAL MARKET APPROACH?
- A. It is 9.51% for the Natural Gas Proxy Group as shown on Line No. 7 on page 3 of
 Schedule PMA-D4.
- 5 Q. WHAT ARE THE RESULTS OF YOUR APPLICATION OF THE PRPM AND
 - THE ADJUSTED TOTAL MARKET APPROACH RPM?
- A. As shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D4, the indicated RPM-derived common equity
 cost rate is 10.57%³⁷, derived by averaging the PRPM results with those based upon the
- 9 adjusted total market approach.

10

6

Capital Asset Pricing Model ("CAPM")

11 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE THEORETICAL BASIS OF THE CAPM.

- A. CAPM theory defines risk as the covariance of a security's returns with the market's
 returns as measured by beta (β). A beta less than 1.0 indicates lower variability while a
 beta greater than 1.0 indicates greater variability than the market.
- The CAPM assumes that all other risk, *i.e.*, all non-market or unsystematic risk, 15 can be eliminated through diversification. The risk that cannot be eliminated through 16 diversification is called market or systematic risk. In addition, the CAPM presumes that 17 investors require compensation only for these systematic risks that are the result of 18 macroeconomic and other events that affect the returns on all assets. The model is 19 applied by adding a risk-free rate of return to a market risk premium, which is adjusted 20 21 proportionately to reflect the systematic risk of the individual security relative to the total market, as measured by beta. The traditional CAPM model is expressed as: 22

 $^{^{37}}$ 10.57% = ((11.62% + 9.51%) / 2).

ł		Rs		$Rf + \beta(Rm - Rf)$
2	Wilsoway	n.,	_	Determ water on the common stack
3	where:	KS		Keturn rate on the common stock
5		Rf	=	Risk-free rate of return
6				
7		Rm	=	Return rate on the market as a whole
8		0		A diverse of heats (realistility of the accountry
9		р	-	Adjusted beta (volatimy of the security
10				
12	Nume	rous te	sts of th	e CAPM have measured the extent to which security returns
12		1045 (0		
13	and betas are	related	, as pre	dicted by the CAPM, confirming the CAPM's validity. The
14	empirical CA	.PM ("	ECAPN	1") reflects the reality that, while the results of these tests
15	support the notion that beta is related to security returns, the empirical Security Market			
16	Line ("SML") described by the CAPM formula is not as steeply sloped as the predicted			
17	SML. Morin ³	³⁸ states		
18				
10	With	ı few	excenti	ons the empirical studies agree that low-beta
20	secu	rities e	arn retu	rns somewhat higher than the CAPM would predict.
21	and	high-be	ta secu	ities earn less than predicted.
22		0		1
23				* * *
24				
25	Ther	refore, t	he emp	irical evidence suggests that the expected return on a
26	secu	rity is r	elated to	o its risk by the following approximation:
27				
28			K =	$R_F + x \beta(R_M - R_F) + (1-x) \beta(R_M - R_F)$
29				
30	when	e x is	a fractio	on to be determined empirically. The value of x that
31	best	explain	is the o	bserved relationship Return = $0.0829 + 0.0520 \beta$ is
32	betw	een 0.2	25 and 0	.30. If $x = 0.25$, the equation becomes:
33				
34			K = I	$R_F + 0.25(R_M - R_F) + 0.75 \beta(R_M - R_F)$
35				

٠

۰...

³⁸ Morin 175, 190.

1		In view of theory and practical research, I have applied both the traditional CAPM	
2		and the ECAPM to the companies in the Natural Gas Proxy Group, and averaged the	
3		results.	
4	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR SELECTION OF BETA FOR YOUR CAPM	
5		ANALYSIS?	
6	A.	I relied upon an average of the adjusted betas published by the Value Line and provided	
7		by Bloomberg Professional Services. While both of those services adjust their calculated	
8		(or "raw") beta to reflect the tendency of beta to regress toward the market mean of 1.00,	
9		Value Line calculates its beta over a five-year period, while Bloomberg's calculation is	
10		based upon two years of data.	
11	Q.	PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR SELECTION OF A RISK-FREE RATE OF RETURN	
12		FOR YOUR CAPM ANALYSIS.	
13	A.	As shown in Column [5], of Schedule PMA-D5, the risk-free rate adopted for both	
14		applications of the CAPM is 3.65%. The risk-free rate of 3.65% is based upon the	
15		average of the consensus forecast for the six quarters ending with the second quarter	
16		2018, from the January 1, 2017 Blue Chip, averaged with the long-range forecasts for	
17		2018 – 2022, and 2023 – 2027, from the December 1, 2016, Blue Chip, 39 as detailed in	
18		Note 2 on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D5.	
19	Q.	WHY IS THE YIELD ON LONG-TERM U.S. TREASURY BONDS	
20		APPROPRIATE FOR USE AS THE RISK-FREE RATE?	
21	A.	The yield on long-term U.S. Treasury Bonds is almost risk-free and its term is consistent	
22		with: 1) the long-term cost of capital to public utilities measured by the yields on A rated	
23		public utility bonds; 2) the long-term investment horizon inherent in utilities' common	
	³⁹ See pages 9 and 10 of Schedulc PMA-D4.		

,)

 ${\bf e}^{-1}$

stock; and 3) the long-term life of the jurisdictional rate base to which the allowed fair 1 rate of return (*i.e.*, cost of capital) will be applied. In contrast, short-term U.S. Treasury 2 yields are more volatile, and reflect a short-term investment horizon that is not consistent 3 with the long-term investment horizon and life of the rate base to which the allowed rate 4 5 of return is applied. 6 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN THE ESTIMATION OF THE EXPECTED EQUITY RISK PREMIUM FOR THE MARKET. 7 The basis of the market equity risk premium is explained in detail in Note 1 of Schedule Α. 8 PMA-D5. It is derived from an average of: 9 1) The 3-5 year median total market price appreciation projections and 10 expected market dividend yield for the thirteen weeks ending February 10, 11 2016 reported by Value Line; 12 2) The arithmetic mean monthly equity risk premium of large company 13 common stocks relative to long-term U.S. Treasury bond income yields 14 from Morningstar - 2016 from 1926 - 2015; 15 3) The PRPM predicted market equity risk premium, using monthly equity 16 17 risk premiums for large company common stocks relative to long-term 18 U.S. Treasury securities from January 1926 through January 2017; 4) The results of a regression analysis of the monthly equity risk premiums of 19 large company common stocks relative to long-term U.S. Treasury bond 20 income yields from Morningstar - 2016 from 1926-2015; and, 21 5) The market-value weighted projected total return on the S&P 500 minus 22 the projected risk-free rate. 23

2	deducting the projected 3.65% risk-free rate, discussed above, from the Value Line projected total annual market return of 9.28%, also discussed above, resulting in a
2	projected total annual market return of 9.28%, also discussed above, resulting in a
3	
4	forecasted total market equity risk premium of 5.63%, derived in Note 1 on page 2 of
5	Schedule PMA-D5.40
6	The long-term income return on U.S. Government Securities of 5.20% was
7	deducted from the Morningstar -2016^{41} monthly historical total market return of
8	11.95%, resulting in an historical market equity risk premium of 6.75% ⁴² , derived in Note
9	1 on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D5.
10	The PRPM market equity risk premium is 7.20%, derived using the PRPM,
11	discussed above, relative to the yields on long-term U.S. Treasury securities from January
12	1926 through January 2017, as shown in Note 1 on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D5.
13	To derive the regression analysis-derived market equity risk premium of 8.66%,
14	shown in Note 1 on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D5, I used monthly annualized historical
15	returns on the S&P 500 relative to historical yields on long-term U.S. Government
16	Securities from Morningstar - 2016. The relationship between interest rates and the
17	market equity risk premium was modeled using the observed monthly market equity risk
18	premium as the dependent variable, and the monthly yield on long-term U.S. Government
19	Securities yield as the independent variable. I used a linear OLS regression, in which the
20	market equity risk premium is expressed as a function of the U.S. Government Securities
21	yield:

, ,

.

 $[\]frac{40}{5.63\%} = 9.28\% - 3.65\%.$ $\frac{41}{100} \frac{Morningstar - 2016}{100} Appendix A Tables.$ $\frac{42}{6.75\%} = 11.95\% - 5.20\%.$

1		$\mathbf{RP} = \alpha + \beta \ (\mathbf{R_f})$		
2		The S&P 500 market-value weighted projected market equity risk premium of		
3	9.43% is derived by subtracting the 3.65% projected risk-free rate, discussed above, from			
4		the projected total return of 13.08%, also discussed above, as shown on Schedule PMA-		
5	D5. ⁴³			
6	These five market equity risk premiums result in an average total market equity			
7	risk premium of 7.53%, as shown on Schedule PMA-D5.44			
8	Q.	WHAT ARE THE RESULTS OF YOUR APPLICATION OF THE		
9	TRADITIONAL AND EMPIRICAL CAPM TO THE NATURAL GAS PROXY			
10		GROUP?		
11	A.	As shown in Column [8] on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D5, the average CAPM / ECAPM		
12	equity cost rate is 9.14%, while the median CAPM / ECAPM result is 9.07%, averaging			
13	9.11%. Consistent with my reliance upon the average of the average and median results			
14	of the DCF discussed above, the Natural Gas Proxy Group's common equity cost rate			
15	based upon my CAPM analyses is 9.11%.45			
16		DCF, RPM and CAPM Analyses for the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group		
17	Q.	YOU HAVE ALSO INCLUDED AN ANALYSIS OF DATA FOR A NON-PRICE		
18	REGULATED PROXY GROUP. PLEASE EXPLAIN.			
19	Α.	Neither the Hope nor Bluefield cases specify that comparable risk companies have to be		
20		regulated utilities. Since rate regulation is a substitute for the competition of the		
21		marketplace, non-price regulated firms operating in the competitive marketplace are an		
22		excellent proxy if a group can be selected to be comparable in total risk to the Natural		

 $^{^{43}}$ 9.43% = 13.08% - 3.65%,

⁴⁴ 7.53% = ((5.63% + 6.75% + 7.20% + 8.66% + 9.43%) / 5).

⁴⁵ 9.11% = ((9.14% + 9.07%)/2).

Gas Proxy Group upon whose market data is used to estimate the cost of common equity for the Companies. As explained below, the selection criteria I utilized are theoretically and empirically sound and produced results for a non-regulated proxy group which is comparable in total risk to the Natural Gas Proxy Group.

5 Q. PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU SELECTED THE NON-PRICE REGULATED 6 PROXY GROUP.

The selection criteria I utilized to select the non-price regulated firms were based upon Α. 7 statistics derived from Value Line regression analyses of weekly market prices over the 8 most recent 260 weeks, *i.e.*, five years, from the market prices paid by investors. Value 9 Line unadjusted betas were used as a measure of systematic risk, while the standard 10 11 errors of the regressions giving rise to those beta coefficients are a measure of unsystematic or firm-specific risk reflecting the extent to which events specific to a 12 firm's operations affect its stock price. In essence, companies with similar betas and 13 standard errors of the regression have similar total investment risk. The criteria used to 14 select the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group were: 15

- 16 1) The unadjusted beta coefficients from the *Value Line* regressions must lie within
 plus or minus two standard deviations of the average unadjusted beta coefficients
 of the Natural Gas Proxy Group;
- 2) The residual standard errors of the *Value Line* regressions which gave rise to the
 unadjusted beta coefficients must lie within plus or minus two standard
 deviations of the average residual standard error of the Natural Gas Proxy Group;
 3) The non-price regulated firms must be covered by *Value Line* (Standard Edition);

and.

24

23

4) The firms must be domestic, non-price regulated companies, *i.e.*, non-utilities.

1		The basis of selection and the comparison group's regression statistics are shown
2		in Schedule PMA-D6. The following sixteen companies met these criteria:
3		• AmerisourceBergen (ABC);
4		• AutoZone Inc. (AZO);
5		• Bard (C.R.) (BCR);
6		• Campbell Soup (CPB);
7		• Dr. Pepper Snapple (DPS);
8		• Erie Indemnity (ERIE);
9		 Lancaster Colony Corp. (LANC);
10		•Lilly (Eli) and Co. (LLY);
11		• Merck & Co. (MRK);
12		• Reynolds American (RAI);
13		• Smucker (J.M.) (SJM);
14		• Stericycle Inc. (SCRL);
15		• Target Corp. (TGT);
16		• TJX Companies (TJX);
17		• Verisk Analytics (VRSK); and
18		Waste Connections (WCN).
19 20	Q.	DID YOU CALCULATE COMMON EQUITY COST RATES USING THE DCF,
21		RPM AND CAPM FOR THE NON-PRICE REGULATED PROXY GROUP?
22	A.	Yes. Because the DCF, RPM and CAPM have been applied in an identical manner as
23		described above relative to the market data of the Natural Gas Proxy Group, I will not
24		repeat the details of the rationale and application of each model shown on page 1 of
25		Schedule PMA-D7. I should note, however, that in the application of the RPM, I did not
26		use public utility-specific equity risk premiums nor apply the PRPM to the individual
27		companies.
28		Page 2 of Schedule PMA-D7 contains the derivation of the DCF cost rates. As
29		shown, the average of the mean and median DCF-based cost rates for the Non-Price
30		Regulated Proxy Group is 11.86%.

1		Pages 3 through 5 of Schedule PMA-D7 contain the data and calculations relating
2		to the 10.11% RPM cost rate for the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group. As shown on
3		Line No. 1 of page 3, the consensus prospective yield on Moody's Baa-rated corporate
4		bonds of 5.51% is based upon the forecasted yields for the six quarters ending with the
5		first quarter of 2018, from the February 1, 2017 Blue Chip, averaged with the long-range
6		forecasted yields for 2018 - 2022, and 2023 - 2027, from the December 1, 2016 Blue
7		Chip. ⁴⁶ Because the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group members have an average
8		Moody's long-term issuer rating of Baa1, as shown on page 4 of Schedule PMA-D7, a
9		downward adjustment of 0.18% to the prospective bond yield is necessary to reflect the
10		difference in ratings ⁴⁷ , which results in a projected Baa1 corporate bond yield of 5.33%,
11		shown in Line No. 4 of page 3 of Schedule PMA-D7. When the beta-adjusted risk
12		premium of 4.97% ⁴⁸ , relative to the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group, is added to the
13		prospective Baal rated corporate bond yield of 5.33%, the RPM-based cost rate is
14		10.30%, as shown in Line No. 5 on page 3 of Schedule PMA-D7.
15		Page 6 of Schedule PMA-D8 contains the details of the application of the
16		traditional CAPM and ECAPM to the Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group. As shown, the
17		mean and median traditional CAPM and ECAPM results are 9.67% / 9.57% for the Non-
18		Price Regulated Proxy Group which, when averaged, result in a CAPM-based cost rate of
19		9.62%.49
20	Q.	WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION OF THE COST RATE OF COMMON EQUITY

21

•

BASED UPON THE NON-PRICE REGULATED PROXY GROUP?

⁴⁶ See pages 9 and 10 of Schedule PMA-D4.
⁴⁷ As shown on Line No. 2 and explained in Note 2 on page 4 of Schedule PMA-D7.
⁴⁸ Derived on page 5 of Schedule PMA-D7.
⁴⁹ 9.62% = (9.67% + 9.57%) / 2).

A. It is 10.45%, as shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D7. The results of the DCF, RPM 1 and CAPM applied to the Non-Price Regulated Group are 11,86%, 10,30% and 9.62%, 2 respectively. Based upon these results. I will rely upon the average of the mean and 3 median results of the three models, which is 10.45% for the Non-Price Regulated Proxy 4 Group. 5 INDICATED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE 6 7 WHAT IS THE INDICATED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE? 8 Q. It is 10.00%, based upon the common equity cost rates resulting from the application of 9 A. 10 cost of common equity models to the Natural Gas Proxy Group and to a Non-Price Regulated proxy group comparable in total risk to the Natural Gas Proxy Group before 11 any adjustments for flotation costs or the Companies' greater business risk due to their 12 smaller size relative to the Gas Proxy Group. 13 As discussed above, I employ multiple cost of common equity models as primary 14 tools in arriving at my recommended common equity cost rate because: 15 16 1) No single model is so inherently precise that it can be relied upon solely to the exclusion of other theoretically sound models; 17 2) All of the models are market-based; 18 The use of multiple models adds reliability to the estimation of the common 3) 19 equity cost rate; and, 20 The prudence of using multiple cost of common equity models is supported in 21 4) both the financial literature and regulatory precedent. 22 Therefore, multiple models should be relied upon when estimating the investor 23 required rate of return on common equity. 24

1	The results of my cost of common equity models applied to the Natural Gas Proxy		
2	Group are shown on Schedule PMA-D1 and are summarized in Table 3 below:		
3 4 5 6	Table 3 Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate		
	Natural Gas Proxy Group		
	Discounted Cash Flow Model ("DCF")8.68%50Risk Premium Model ("RPM")10.57%Capital Asset Pricing Model ("CAPM")9.11%Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group2000Cost of Common Equity Models Applied to Comparable Risk, Non-Price Regulated Cos.10.45%		
	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Before <u>10.00%</u> Adjustments		
7			
8	Based upon these common equity cost rate results, I conclude that a common equity cost		
9	rate of 10.00% is indicated for the Natural Gas Proxy Group before applying a flotation		
10	cost adjustment and the necessary business risk adjustment to determine the Companies'		
11	common equity cost rate of 10.35%, which will be discussed in detail below		
12 13 14 15	ADJUSTMENTS TO THE INDICATED COMMON EQUITY COST RATE TO REFLECT FLOTATION COSTS, AND THE BUSINESS RISK OF THE COMPANIES Flotation Cost Adjustment		
16	Q. WHAT ARE FLOTATION COSTS?		
17	A. Flotation costs are those costs associated with the sale of new issuances of common		
18	stock. They include market pressure and the essential costs of issuance (e.g., underwriting		
19	fees and out-of-pocket costs for printing, legal, registration, etc.).		

⁵⁰ As discussed previously in this testimony, currently, the application of the DCF model understates the required return on common equity by nearly 490 basis points due to currently significantly high market-to-book ratios. Accordingly, the results of that model should be given only very limited weight in deriving a reasonable return on equity in this proceeding.

1 Q. WHY MUST FLOTATION COSTS BE RECOGNIZED IN THE ALLOWED

2 **RETURN ON COMMON EQUITY?**

Flotation cost must be recognized in the allowed return on common equity because there A. 3 is no other mechanism in the ratemaking paradigm with which such costs can be 4 5 recovered. Because these costs are real and legitimate, recovery of these costs should be permitted. As noted by Morin⁵¹: 6 The costs of issuing these securities are just as real as operating and 7 maintenance expenses or costs incurred to build utility plants, and fair 8 regulatory treatment must permit recovery of these costs.... 9 10 The simple fact of the matter is that common equity capital is not 11 free....[Flotation costs] must be recovered through a rate of return 12 adjustment. 13 14 SHOULD FLOTATION COSTS BE RECOGNIZED ONLY WHEN THERE WAS 15 О. AN ISSUANCE DURING THE TEST YEAR OR THERE IS AN IMMINENT 16

17 POST-TEST YEAR ISSUANCE OF ADDITIONAL COMMON STOCK?

No. As noted above, there is no mechanism through which such costs can be captured in 18 Α. the ratemaking paradigm other than an adjustment to the allowed common equity cost 19 rate. Flotation costs are charged to capital accounts and are not expensed on a utility's 20 income statement. As such, flotation costs are analogous to capital investments, albeit 21 22 negative, reflected on the balance sheet. Recovery of capital investments relates to the expected useful lives of the investment. Since common equity has a very long and 23 indefinite life (assumed to be infinity in the standard regulatory DCF model), flotation 24 costs should be recovered through an adjustment to common equity cost rate even when 25

⁵¹ Morin, 321.

there has not been an issuance during the test year nor in the absence of an expected imminent issuance of additional shares of common stock.

Historical flotation costs are a permanent loss of investment to the utility and 3 should be accounted for when setting the allowed return on common equity. When any 4 company, including a utility, issues common stock, flotation costs are incurred for legal, 5 accounting, printing fees and the like. For each dollar of issuing market price, a small 6 percentage is expensed and is permanently unavailable for investment in utility rate base. 7 For example, since these expenses are charged to capital accounts and not expensed on 8 the income statement, the only way to restore the full value of the issuance price is to 9 earn more than the investor required market return on the issuance price, so that the 10 investor receives a full fair return on his / her investment. In other words, if a company 11 issues stock at \$1.00 with 5% in flotation costs, it will net \$0.95 in investment. Assuming 12 the investor in that stock requires a 10% return on his or her invested \$1.00 (i.e., a return 13 of \$0.10), the company needs to earn approximately 10.5% on its invested \$0.95 to 14 receive a \$0.10 return. 15

Q. DO THE DCF, RPM, AND CAPM ALREADY REFLECT INVESTORS' ANTICIPATION OF FLOTATION COSTS?

18 A. No. These models assume no transaction costs and therefore flotation costs are not 19 reflected in the results of the application of these models. The literature is quite clear on 20 this point. For example, Brigham and Daves⁵² confirm this, providing the methodology 21 utilized to calculate the flotation adjustment. Morin⁵³ also confirms the need for such an 22 adjustment even when no new equity issuance is imminent. Consequently, it is proper to

1

⁵² Eugene F. Brigham and Phillip R. Daves, <u>Intermediate Financial Management</u>, 9th Edition, Thomson/Southwestern 342.

⁵³ Morin 327 – 30.

include a flotation cost adjustment when using market-based cost of common equity
 models to estimate the common equity cost rate.

3 Q. HOW DID YOU CALCULATE THE FLOTATION COST ALLOWANCE?

A. I modified the DCF calculation to provide a dividend yield that would reimburse
investors for issuance costs in accordance with the method cited in literature by Brigham
and Daves as well as Morin. The flotation cost adjustment recognizes the costs of issuing
equity that were incurred by Spire Inc.⁵⁴ since January 2001. Based upon the issuance
costs shown on page 1 of Schedule PMA-D8, an adjustment of 0.16% is required to
reflect the flotation costs applicable to the Natural Gas Proxy Group.

10

11

Business Risk Adjustment

12 Q. IS THERE A WAY TO QUANTIFY AN ADJUSTMENT DUE TO THE 13 COMPANIES' GREATER BUSINESS RISK DUE TO SIZE RELATIVE TO THE 14 NATURAL GAS PROXY GROUP?

A. Yes, the previously discussed empirical evidence on the effect of small size provides
insight into the magnitude of such adjustments to reflect the greater business risk of the
Companies' based upon their collective small size relative to the Natural Gas Proxy
Group.

As discussed above, increased risk due to small size must be taken into account in the cost of common equity, consistent with the financial principle of risk and return. Because the Companies are collectively smaller in size relative to the Natural Gas Proxy Group, as previously discussed and measured by their estimated market capitalization,

⁵⁴ Formerly The Laclede Group Inc.

they have greater business risk than the average company in the Natural Gas Proxy
 Group. The previously cited <u>Duff & Phelps 2016</u> which discusses the nature of the small
 size phenomenon, provides one indication of the magnitude of the size premium based
 upon estimated market capitalization.

5 The Companies are collectively smaller than the average company in the Natural 6 Gas Proxy Group, upon whose market data my recommended common equity cost rate is 7 based. Since the Natural Gas Proxy Group's market data reflects its collective risk, including the lower risk of its greater size based upon market capitalization relative to the 8 Companies, an adjustment to the Natural Gas Proxy Group's indicated common equity 9 10 cost rate of 10.000% must be made to reflect the greater relative risk of the Companies due to their smaller size based on estimated market capitalization as shown in Table 4 11 below: 12

13 Table 4 14 Estimated Market Capitalization for the Natural Gas Proxy Group and 15 LAC / MGE 16 16

	<u>Market Capitalization (1)</u> (\$ Millions)	<u>Times Greater than the</u> <u>Company</u>
Natural Gas Proxy Group	\$3,220.742	
LAC / MGE	\$2,466.000	1.3X

17 18

19 (1) From page 1 of Schedule PMA-D9.

20	As shown above, the Companies' estimated market capitalization of \$2,466.000
21	million is lower than the average market capitalization of the Natural Gas Proxy Group,
22	\$3,220.742 million, or 1.3 times greater than the Companies, as of January 31, 2017.

Consequently, the Companies have greater relative business risk because, all else equal, size has a bearing on risk. Because investors demand a higher return as compensation for assuming greater risk, this greater relative business risk of the Companies must be reflected in the recommended cost of common equity derived from the market data of the less business risky Natural Gas Proxy Group.

The magnitude of such an adjustment to reflect the Companies' greater relative 6 business risk due to the Companies' smaller relative size is based upon the size premiums 7 for decile portfolios of New York Stock Exchange (NYSE), American Stock Exchange 8 (AMEX) and NASDAQ listed companies for the 1926-2015 period and related data from 9 Duff & Phelps -2016. The average size premium for the 4th and 5th deciles (1.24%) 10 11 between which the market capitalization of the Natural Gas Proxy Group falls has been compared with the average size premium for the 5th and 6th deciles (1.56%) between 12 which the estimated market capitalization of the Companies' falls. As shown on page 1 13 of Schedule PMA-D10, the size premium spread between the 5th and 6th and the 4th and 14 5th deciles is 0.32%.⁵⁵ In view of the foregoing, I am recommending a business risk 15 adjustment of 0.20% to reflect the greater business risk of the Companies due to their 16 smaller size relative to the Natural Gas Proxy Group. 17

18 CONCLUSION OF COMMON EQUITY COST RATE FOR LAC/MGE

19 Q. WHAT IS YOUR CONCLUSION OF COMMON EQUITY COST RATE FOR 20 LAC AND MGE?

A. In view of the foregoing, it is necessary to add a flotation cost adjustment, as well as a
 business risk adjustment to the 10.00% indicated common equity cost rate based upon the

1

2

3

4

 $^{^{55}}$ 0.32% = 1.56% - 1.24%

market data of the Natural Gas Proxy Group. Table 5 below summarizes these adjustments and the resulting cost of common equity for the Companies.

<u>Table 5</u> Summary of Common Equity Cost R	ate for LAC / MGE
Indicated Proxy Group Common Equity Cost Rate Before Adjustments	10.00%
Flotation Cost Adjustment	0.16%
Business Risk Adjustment	<u>0.20%</u>
Common Equity Cost Rate After Adjustments	10.36%
Recommended Common Equity Cost Rate	<u>10.35%</u>

I

2

3 4 5

6

Adding a flotation cost adjustment of 0.16% and a business risk adjustment of 0.20% to the 10.00% indicated common equity cost rate applicable to the Natural Gas Proxy Group results in a flotation cost and risk-adjusted common equity cost rate of 10.36%, which when rounded to 10.35% is my recommended common equity cost rate 11 applicable to the Companies.

In my opinion, a common equity cost rate of 10.35%, which results in an overall
 rate of return of 7.700%, is both reasonable and conservative given the Companies'
 greater business risks relative to the Natural Gas Proxy Group.

In addition, a common equity cost rate of 10.35% is consistent with the *Hope* and *Bluefield* standards of a fair and reasonable return which ensures the integrity of presently invested capital and enables the attraction of needed new capital on reasonable terms. It also ensures that the Companies will be able to continue providing safe, adequate and reliable natural gas service to the benefit of their customers. Thus, it balances the interests of both customers and the Companies.

1 Q. DOES THIS COMPLETE YOUR DIRECT TESTIMONY?

2 A. Yes.

× ...

HEIL CHERKERER MARKY

Pauline M. Ahern, CRRA Executive Director ScottMadden Inc.

Ms. Ahern has served as a consultant for investor-owned and municipal utilities and authorities for nearly 30 years. As a Certified Rate of Return Analyst (CRRA), she has extensive experience in rate of return analyses, including the development of ratemaking capital structure ratios, senior capital cost rates, and the cost rate of common equity for regulated public utilities. She has testified as an expert witness before 31 regulatory commissions in the U.S. and Canada.

She also maintains the benchmark index against which the American Gas Association's (AGA) Mutual Fund performance is measured. Ms. Ahern has also served as President of the Society of Utility Regulatory and Financial Analysts (SURFA) from 2006-2010 and now sits on its Board of Directors. SURFA is a non-profit organization founded to promote the education and understanding of rate of return analysis which represents utility financial analysts in government, the financial community, industry and academia. She also serves on the Finance/Accounting/Taxation Committees of the National Association of Water Companies. Ms. Ahern is also a member of the Advisory Council, Financial Research Institute, University of Missouri - Robert J. Trulaske, Sr. School of Business. She is also a member of Edison Electric Institute's Cost of Capital Working Group.

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

ScottMadden Inc. (2016 - Present)

Sussex Economic Advisors, LLC (2015 – 2016) Partner

AUS Consultants (1988 – 2015) Principal

- Offered testimony as an expert witness on the subjects of fair rate of return, cost of capital and related issues before state public utility commissions.
- Provided assistance and support to clients throughout the entire ratemaking litigation process; supervision of the financial analyst and administrative staff in the preparation of fair rate of return and cost of capital testimonies and exhibits which are filed along with expert testimony before various state and federal public utility regulatory bodies as well as the preparation of interrogatory responses, as well as rebuttal exhibits.
- Responsible for the production, publishing, and distribution of the AUS Utility Reports (formerly C. A. Turner Utility Reports), which has provided financial data and related ratios for about 80 public utilities (*i.e.*, electric, combination gas and electric, natural gas distribution, natural gas transmission, telephone, and water utilities, on a monthly, quarterly and annual basis) since 1930. Subscribers include utilities, many state regulatory commissions, federal agencies, individuals, brokerage firms, attorneys, as well as public and academic libraries.
- Responsible for maintaining and calculating the performance of the AGA Index, a market capitalization weighted index of the common stocks of the approximately 70 corporate members of the AGA, which serves as the benchmark for the AGA Gas Utility Index Fund.

Assistant Vice President

 Prepared fair rate of return and cost of capital exhibits which were filed along with expert testimony before various state and federal public utility regulatory bodies; supporting exhibits include the determination of an appropriate ratemaking capital structure and the development of embedded cost rates of senior capital and also support the determination of a recommended





return on common equity through the use of various market models, such as, but not limited to, Discounted Cash Flow analysis, Capital Asset Pricing Model and Risk Premium Methodology, as well as an assessment of the risk characteristics of the client utility.

- Assisted in the preparation of responses to any interrogatories received regarding such testimonies filed on behalf of client utilities. Following the filing of fair rate of return testimonies, assisted in the evaluation of opposition testimony in order to prepare interrogatory questions, areas of cross-examination, and rebuttal testimony and evaluated and assisted in the preparation of briefs and exceptions following the hearing process.
- Submitted testimony before state public utility commissions regarding appropriate capital structure ratios and fixed capital cost rates.

Senior Financial Analyst

- Supervised two analysts and assisted in the preparation of fair rate of return and cost of capital
 exhibits which are filed along with expert testimony before various state and federal public utility
 regulatory bodies; the team also assisted in the preparation of interrogatory responses.
- Evaluated the final orders and decisions of various commissions to determine whether further actions were warranted and to gain insight which assisted in the preparation of future rate of return studies.
- Assisted in the preparation of an article authored by Frank J. Hanley and A. Gerald Harris entitled "Does Diversification Increase the Cost of Equity Capital?" published in the July 15, 1991 issue of <u>Public Utilities Fortnightly</u>.

Administrator of Financial Analysis for AUS Utility Reports

 Oversaw the preparation of this monthly publication, as well as the accompanying annual publication, <u>Financial Statistics - Public Utilities</u>.

Financial Analyst

 Assisted in the preparation of fair rate of return studies including capital structure determination, development of senior capital cost rates, determination of an appropriate rate of return on equity, preparation of interrogatory responses, interrogatory questions of the opposition, areas of cross-examination and rebuttal testimony, as well as preparation of the annual publication <u>C</u>. <u>A. Turner Utility Reports - Financial Statistics - Public Utilities</u>.

Research Dept. of the Regional Economics Division of the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston (1973 – 1975)

Research Assistant

 Involved in the development and maintenance of econometric models to simulate regional economic conditions in New England in order to study the effects of, among other things, the energy crisis of the early 1970's and property tax revaluations on the economy of New England. I was also involved in the statistical analysis and preparation of articles for the <u>New England</u> <u>Economic Review</u>. Also, I was Assistant Editor of <u>New England Business Indicators</u>.

Office of the Assistant Secretary for International Affairs, U.S. Treasury Department, Washington, D.C. (1972)

Research Assistant

 Developed and maintained econometric models which simulated the economy of the United States in order to study the results of various alternate foreign trade policies so that national trade policy could be formulated and recommended.



EDUCATION

M.B.A., Rutgers University, High Honors, 1991 B.A., Clark University, Honors, 1973

DESIGNATIONS AND PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Advisory Council Financial Research Institute University of Missouri's Robert J. Trulaske, Sr. School of Business Edison Electric Institute Cost of Capital Working Group National Association of Water Companies Member of the Finance/Accounting/Taxation and Rates and Regulation Committees Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts Member, Board of Directors – 2010-2014 President – 2006-2008 and 2008-2010 Secretary/Treasurer – 2004-2006 American Finance Association Financial Management Association

SPEAKING ENGAGEMENTS

"Leadership in the Financial Services Sector", Guest Professor – Cost of Capital, Business Leader Development Program, Rutgers University School of Business, February 24, 2015, Camden, NJ.

Sponsor / Moderator: Hot Topic Hotline (webinar) of the Financial Research Institute - University of Missouri's Robert J. Trulaske, Sr. School of Business: "The Cost of Capital: Slower and Lower for Longer" presenter: John Lonski, Managing Director & Chief Capital Market Economist, *Capital Markets Research Group*, Moody's Analytics, November 2, 2016.

"Leadership in the Financial Services Sector", Guest Professor – Cost of Capital, Business Leader Development Program, Rutgers University School of Business, February 20, 2015, Camden, NJ.

"ROE: Trends & Analysis", American Gas Association, AGA Mini-Forum for the Financial Analysts Community & Finance Committee Meeting, September 11, 2014, The Princeton Club, New York, NY.

Guest Professor, "Measuring Risk", Asset Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council of the Peoples' Republic of China, Rutgers School of Business, July 21, 2014, New Brunswick, NJ.

Instructor, "Cost of Capital 101", EPCOR Water America, Inc., Regulatory Management Team, June 9, 2014, Phoenix, AZ.

Moderator: Society of Utility Financial Analysts: 46th Financial Forum – "The Rating Agencies' Perspectives: Regulatory Mechanisms and the Regulatory Compact", April 22-25, 2014, Indianapolis, IN.

"The Return on Equity Debate: Its Impact on Budgeting and Investment and Wall Street's View of Risk", National Association of Water Companies – 2014 Indiana Chapter Water Summit, March 13, 2014, Indianapolis, IN.

"Regulatory Training in Financing, Planning, Strategies and Accounting Issues for Publicly- and Privately-Owned Water and Wastewater Utilities", New Mexico State University Center for Public Utilities, October 13-18, 2013, Instructor (Cost of Capital).



PAGE A-3

Smart, Focused, Done Right.®

"Regulated Utilities – Access to Capital", (panelist) - Innovation: Changing the Future of Energy, 2013 Deloitte Energy Conference, Deloitte Center for Energy Solutions, May 22, 2013, Washington, DC.

"Comparative Evaluation of the Predictive Risk Premium Model, the Discounted Cash Flow Model and the Capital Asset Pricing Model for Estimating the Cost of Common Equity", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) – Advanced Workshop in Regulation and Competition, 32nd Annual Eastern Conference of the Center for Research in Regulated Industries (CRRI), May 17, 2013, Rutgers University, Shawnee on the Delaware, PA.

"Decoupling: Impact on the Risk and Cost of Common Equity of Public Utility Stocks", before the Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts: 45th Financial Forum, April 17-18, 2013, Indianapolis, IN.

"Issues Surrounding the Determination of the Allowed Rate of Return", before the Staff Subcommittee on Electricity of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, Winter 2013 Committee Meetings, February 3, 2013, Washington, DC.

"Leadership in the Financial Services Sector", Guest Professor – Cost of Capital, Business Leader Development Program, Rutgers University School of Business, February 1, 2013, Camden, NJ.

"Analyst Training in the Power and Gas Sectors", SNL Center for Financial Education, Downtown Conference Center at Pace University, New York City, December 12, 2012, Instructor (Financial Statement Analysis).

"Regulatory Training in Financing Planning, Strategies and Accounting Issues for Publicly and Privately Owned Water and Wastewater Utilities", New Mexico State University Center for Public Utilities, October 14-19, 2012, Instructor (Cost of Financial Capital).

"Application of a New Risk Premium Model for Estimating the Cost of Common Equity", Co-Presenter with Dylan W. D'Ascendis, CRRA, AUS Consultants, Edison Electric Institute Cost of Capital Working Group, October 3, 2012, Webinar.

"Application of a New Risk Premium Model for Estimating the Cost of Common Equity", Co-Presenter with Dylan W. D'Ascendis, CRRA, AUS Consultants, Staff Subcommittee on Accounting and Finance of the National Association of Regulatory Commissioners, September 10, 2012, St. Paul, MN.

"Analyst Training in the Power and Gas Sectors", SNL Center for Financial Education, Downtown Conference Center at Pace University, New York City, August 7, 2012, Instructor (Financial Statement Analysis).

"Advanced Regulatory Training in Financing Planning, Strategies and Accounting Issues for Publicly and Privately Owned Water and Wastewater Utilities", New Mexico State University Center for Public Utilities, May 13-17, 2012, Instructor (Cost of Financial Capital).

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium Applied to Public Utilities", before the Finance and Regulatory Committees of the National Association of Water Companies, March 29, 2012, Telephonic Conference.

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium Applied to Public Utilities", (co-presenter with Frank J. Hanley, Principal and Director, AUS Consultants) before the Water Committee of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners' Winter Committee Meetings, February 7, 2012, Washington, DC.

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium Applied to Public Utilities", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University and Frank J. Hanley, Principal and Director, AUS Consultants) before the Wall Street Utility Group, December 19, 2011, New York City, NY.



PAGE A-4

Smart, Focused, Done Right.*

"Advanced Cost and Finance Issues for Water", (co-presenter with Gary D. Shambaugh, Principal & Director, AUS Consultants), 2011 Advanced Regulatory Studies Program – Ratemaking, Accounting and Economics, September 29, 2011, Kellogg Center at Michigan State University – Institute for Public Utilities, East Lansing, MI.

"Public Utility Betas and the Cost of Capital", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) – Advanced Workshop in Regulation and Competition, 30th Annual Eastern Conference of the Center for Research in Regulated Industries (CRRI), May 20, 2011, Rutgers University, Skytop, PA.

Moderator: Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts: 43rd Financial Forum – "Impact of Cost Recovery Mechanisms on the Perception of Public Utility Risk", April 14-15, 2011, Washington, DC.

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) – Hot Topic Hotline Webinar, December 3, 2010, Financial Research Institute of the University of Missouri.

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) before the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission Cost of Capital Task Force, September 28, 2010, Indianapolis, IN.

Tomorrow's Cost of Capital: Cost of Capital Issues 2010, Deloitte Center for Energy Solutions, 2010 Deloitte Energy Conference, "Changing the Great Game: Climate, Customers and Capital", June 7-8, 2010, Washington, DC.

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities", (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) – Advanced Workshop in Regulation and Competition, 29th Annual Eastern Conference of the Center for Research in Regulated Industries (CRRI), May 20, 2010, Rutgers University, Skytop, PA.

Moderator: Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts: 42nd Financial Forum – "The Changing Economic and Capital Market Environment and the Utility Industry", April 29-30, 2010, Washington, DC.

"A New Model for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities" (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) – Spring 2010 Meeting of the Staff Subcommittee on Accounting and Finance of the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, March 17, 2010, Charleston, SC.

"New Approach to Estimating the Cost of Common Equity Capital for Public Utilities" (co-presenter with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University) - Advanced Workshop in Regulation and Competition, 28th Annual Eastern Conference of the Center for Research in Regulated Industries (CRRI), May 14, 2009, Rutgers University, Skytop, PA.

Moderator: Society of Utility and Regulatory Financial Analysts: 41st Financial Forum – "Estimating the Cost of Capital in Today's Economic and Capital Market Environment", April 16-17, 2009, Washington, DC.

"Water Utility Financing: Where Does All That Cash Come From?", AWWA Pre-Conference Workshop: Water Utility Ratemaking, March 25, 2008, Atlantic City, NJ.

PAPERS

5.0

"Comparative Evaluation of the Predictive Risk Premium ModelTM, the Discounted Cash Flow Model and the Capital Asset Pricing Model", co-authored with Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University, Dylan W. D'Ascendis, and Frank J. Hanley, The Electricity Journal, May, 2013.



APPENDIX A RESUME OF PAULINE M. AHERN, CRRA

"A New Approach for Estimating the Equity Risk Premium for Public Utilities", co-authored with Frank J. Hanley and Richard A. Michelfelder, Ph.D., Rutgers University, The Journal of Regulatory Economics (December 2011), 40:261-278.

"Comparable Earnings: New Life for Old Precept" co-authored with Frank J. Hanley, Financial Quarterly Review, (American Gas Association), Summer 1994.

scottmadden MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

Smart. Focused. Done Right.®

SPONSOR	DATE	CASE/APPLICANT	DOCKET NO.	SUBJECT
City Council of the City of Edmont	on, CA			inclusion plants
EPCOR Water Services, Inc.	5/16	EPCOR Water Services, Inc.		Rate of Return
Arizona Corporation Commission				
Arizona Water Company	12/16	Arizona Water Company	W-01445A-16-0443	Return on Equity
Arizona Water Company	08/15	Arizona Water Company	W-01445A-15-0277	Return on Equity
EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc.	04/16	EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc.	WS-01303A-16-0145	Return on Equity
EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc.	03/14	EPCOR Water Arizona, Inc.	WS-01303A-14-0010	Return on Equity
Arizona Water Company	04/12	Arizona Water Company - Eastern Group	W-01445A-11-0310	DSIC Mechanism - Credit Quality; Return on Equity
Chaparral City Water Company	04/13	Chaparral City Water Company	W-02113A-13-118	Return on Equity
Arizona Water Company	08/12	Arizona Water Company - Northern Group	W-01445A-12-0348	Return on Equity
Bermuda Water Co.	09/11	Bermuda Water Co.	W-01812A-10-0521	Return on Equity
Arkansas Public Service Commiss	sion			
United Water Arkansas, Inc.	03/10	United Water Arkansas, Inc.	09-130-U	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Arkansas, Inc.	12/06	United Water Arkansas, Inc.	06-160-U	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Arkansas, Inc.	09/03	United Water Arkansas, Inc.	03-161-U	Return on Equity
Arkansas Western Gas Company d/b/a Associated Natural Gas Company	02/97	Associated Natural Gas Company	97-019-U	Capital Structure
Arkansas Western Gas Company	02/97	ANG Division – Arkansas	97-019-l	Capital Structure
Arkansas Western Gas Company	02/96	ANG Division – Arkansas	GR-97-272	Return on Equity
Arkansas Eastern Gas Company	02/96	Arkansas Western Gas Company	96-030-U	Capital Structure
British Columbia Utilities Commis	sion			IN DESIGN
Corix Utilities, Inc.	07/13	Corix Utilities, Inc.	Generic Cost of Capital Proceeding- Phase II	Return on Equity
Corix Utilities, Inc.	08/12	Corix Utilities, Inc.	Generic Cost of Capital Proceeding – Phase I	Return on Equity
California Public Utilities Commis	sion			Section and the
San Gabriel Valley Water Company	05/12	San Gabriel Valley Water Company	12-05-002	Return on Equity
San Jose Water Company	05/09	San Jose Water Company	U-168-W	Return on Equity
San Jose Water Company	05/11	San Jose Water Company	U-168-W	Return on Equity
Thames RWE re: California- American Water Co.	05/02	Thames RWE re: California- American Water Co.	02-01-036	Return on Equity



Connecticut Department of Public	Utility Con	itrol		
Aquarion Water Co. of Connecticut	03/13	Aquarion Water Co. of Connecticut	13-02-30	Return on Equity
Connecticut Water Company	01/10	Connecticut Water Company	09-12-11	Return on Equity
Aquarion Water Company	03/10	Aquarion Water Company	10-02-13	Return on Equity
United Water Connecticut	09/10	United Water Connecticut	10-09-08	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Connecticut	05/07	United Water Connecticut	07-05-44	Fair Rate of Return
Delaware Public Service Commiss	ion			
SUEZ Water Delaware Inc.	02/16	SUEZ Water Delaware Inc.		Fair Rate of Return
Artesian Water Company	04/14	Artesian Water Company	14-132	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	11/13	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	13-466	Return on Equity
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	09/11	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	11-397	Fair Rate of Return
Artesian Water Company	04/11	Artesian Water Company	11-207	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Delaware, Inc.	12/10	United Water Delaware, Inc.	10-421	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Delaware, Inc.	02/09	United Water Delaware, Inc.	09-60	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	01/09	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	09-29	Fair Rate of Return
Artesian Water Company	04/08	Artesian Water Company	14-132	Fair Rate of Return
Sussex Shores Water Company	10/07	Sussex Shores Water Company	07-278	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Delaware, Inc.	05/06	United Water Delaware, Inc.	06-174	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	04/06	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	06-145	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	04/04	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	04-152	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	01/02	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	02-28	Fair Rate of Return
Sussex Shores Water Company	11/99	Sussex Shores Water Company	99-576	Fair Rate of Return
Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	9/99	Tidewater Utilities, Inc.	99-446	Fair Rate of Return
Long Neck Water Company	01/99	Long Neck Water Company	99-31	Overall Rate of Return
United Water Delaware, Inc.	03/98	United Water Delaware	98-98	Return on Equity
United Water Delaware, Inc.	08/96	United Water Delaware, Inc.	96-164	Capital Structure and Fixed Capital Cost Rates
Florida Public Service Commissio	n			
Utilities Inc.	08/08	Utilities Inc.	080006-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities, Inc. of Florida	06/03	Utilities, Inc. of Florida	020071-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Hawaiian Public Utilities Commiss	sion			
Laie Water Company, Inc.	9/16	Laie Water Company, Inc.	2016-0229	Fair Rate of Return
GTE Hawaiian Telephone	10/96	GTE Hawaiian Telephone	95-0054	Common Equity Cost, Capital Structure and Storm Damage Cost Recovery

PAGE A-8



GTE Hawaiian Telephone	06/96	GTE Hawaiian Telephone	95-0051/94-0298	Self-Insurance Property Damage Reserve- Ratepayer Responsibility
Idaho Public Utility Commission	~			
United Water Idaho, Inc.	05/15	United Water Idaho, Inc.	UWI-W-15-01	State Property Tax Study
United Water Idaho, Inc.	08/11	United Water Idaho, Inc.	UWI-W-11-02	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Idaho, Inc.	11/04	United Water Idaho, Inc.	UWI-W-04-04	Fair Rate of Return
Illinois Commerce Commission				
Illinois-American Water Company	10/11	Illinois-American Water Company	11-0767	Return on Equity
Apple Canyon Utility Co. / Lake Wildwood Utilities Corp.	04/10	Apple Canyon Utility Co. / Lake Wildwood Utilities Corp.	09-0548/0549	Fair Rate of Return
Illinois American Water Company	05/09	Illinois American Water Company	09-0319	Return on Equity
Illinois-American Water Company	08/07	Illinois-American Water Company	07-0507	Return on Equity
Aqua Illinois, Inc.	02/06	Aqua Illinois, Inc Kankakee Water Division	06-0285	Return on Equity
Aqua Illinois	12/04	Aqua Illinois - Woodhaven Water & Sewer Divisions	05-0071	Return on Equity
Agua Illinois	12/04	Aqua Illinois - Oak Run Water & Sewer Divisions	05-0072	Return on Equity
Aqua Illinois	05/04	Aqua Illinois - Vermillion Water Division	04-0442	Return on Equity
Aqua Illinois (formerly Consumers Ill. Water Co.)	05/03	Aqua Illinois (formerly Consumers III. Water Co.)	03-0403	Fair Rate of Return
Aqua Illinois (formerly Consumers Ill. Water Co.)	04/00	Aqua Illinois (formerly Consumers III. Water Co.)	00-0337, 00-0338, 00- 0339	Return on Equity
Indiana Utility Regulatory Commis	sion			
Indiana-American Water Company	01/14	Indiana-American Water Company	44450	Return on Equity
Pioneer Water LLC	10/13	Pioneer Water LLC	4434	Return on Equity
Utility Center, Inc.	03/10	Utility Center, Inc.	43874	Fair Rate of Return
Twin Lakes Utilities, Inc.	11/06	Twin Lakes Utilities, Inc.	43128	Fair Rate of Return
Utility Center, Inc.	08/07	Utility Center, Inc.	43331	Fair Rate of Return
Twin Lakes Utilities, Inc.	09/03	Twin Lakes Utilities, Inc.	42488	Fair Rate of Return
United Water West Lafayette, Inc.	01/97	United Water West Lafayette, Inc.	41046	Return on Equity
United Water Indiana, Inc.	01/97	United Water Indiana, Inc.	41047	Return on Equity
Iowa Utilities Board				and the base
Iowa-American Water Company	04/11	Iowa-American Water Company	RPU-2011-0001	Return on Equity
Iowa-American Water Company	04/09	Iowa-American Water Company	RPU-2009-0004	Return on Equity

Iowa-American Water Company	08/07	Iowa-American Water Company	RPU-2007-0003	Return on Equity
Kentucky Public Service Commissi	on			
Water Service Corp. of Kentucky	01/09	Water Service Corp. of Kentucky	2008-00563	Fair Rate of Return
Water Service Corp. of Kentucky	08/05	Water Service Corp. of Kentucky	2005-00325	Fair Rate of Return
Louisiana Public Service Commiss	ion			
Louisiana Water Service, Inc.	03/08	Louisiana Water Service, Inc.	U-30553	Fair Rate of Return
Maine Public Service Commission				
Maine Water Company	12/13	Maine Water Company – Camden & Rockland Division	2013-00362	Return on Equity
Consumers Maine Water Company	05/00	Consumers Maine Water Company	2000-96 & 2000-175	Return on Equity
Maryland Public Service Commissi	on			S. 23
Greenridge Utilities, Inc.	05/03	Greenridge Utilities, Inc.	8962	Fair Rate of Return
Michigan Public Service Commissi	on			
Alpena Power Company	05/09	Alpena Power Company	U-15935	Fair Rate of Return
Alpena Power Company	04/07	Alpena Power Company	U-15250	Fair Rate of Return
Alpena Power Company	07/99	Alpena Power Company	U-12000	Return on Equity
Missouri Public Service Commissio	on			
Union Elec. Co., D/B/A Ameren Missouri	01/17	Union Elec. Co., D/B/A Ameren Missouri	ER-2016-0179	Capital Structure
Missouri Gas Energy	09/13	Missouri Gas Energy	GR-2014-0007	Return on Equity
Missouri-American Water Company	06/11	Missouri-American Water Company	WR-2011-0337 / SR- 2011-0338	Fair Rate of Return
Missouri-American Water Company	10/09	Missouri-American Water Company	WR-2010-0131	Return on Equity
Missouri American Water Company	03/08	Missouri American Water Company	WR-2008-0311 / SR- 2008-0312	Return on Equity
Missouri American Water Company	12/06	Missouri American Water Company	WR-2007-0216 / WR- 2007-0217	Return on Equity
Missouri-American Water Company	05/03	Missouri-American Water Company	WR-2003-0500 & WC- 2004-0168	Fair Rate of Return
Arkansas Western Gas Company	02/97	ANG Division – Missouri	GR-97-272	Capital Structure
New Hampshire Public Utilities Co	mmission			
Aquarion Water Co. of New Hampshire, Inc.	03/13	Aquarion Water Co. of New Hampshire, Inc.	DW 12-085	Return on Equity
New Jersey Board of Public Utilitie	es			
SUEZ Water Arlington Hills, Inc.	2/17	SUEZ Water Arlington Hills, Inc.	WR-16060510	Return on Equity
Atlantic City Sewerage Company	10/16	Atlantic City Sewerage Company	WR-16100951	Return on Equity

scottmadden MANAGEMENT CONSULTANTS

Jersey Central Power & Light Co.	4/16	Jersey Central Power & Light Co.	ER-16040383	Return on Equity
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	01/16	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR-16010089	Return on Equity
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	10/15	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-15101177	Return on Equity
United Water Toms River, Inc.	02/15	United Water Toms River, Inc.	W-01303A-14-0010	Return on Equity
Atlantic City Sewerage Company	10/14	Atlantic City Sewerage Company	WR-14101263	Return on Equity
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	01/14	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR-14010019	Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	11/13	Middlesex Water Company	WR-13111059	Return on Equity
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	03/13	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-13030210	Fair Rate of Return
Jersey Central Power & Light Company	11/12	Jersey Central Power & Light Company	ER-12111052	Return on Equity
United Water Toms River, Inc.	09/12	United Water Toms River, Inc.	WR-12090830	Fair Rate of Return
Pinelands Water Company	08/12	Pinelands Water Company	WR-12080735	Return on Equity
Pinelands Wastewater Company	08/12	Pinelands Wastewater Company	WR-12080734	Return on Equity
Middlesex Water Company	01/12	Middlesex Water Company	WR-12010027 / PUC 1653-2012	Fair Rate of Return
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	12/11	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR 11120859	Fair Rate of Return
The New Jersey Utilities Association	10/11	The New Jersey Utilities Association	PUC 07146-09 (OAL) / WO-090148 (BPU)	Return on Equity
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	07/11	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-11070428	Fair Rate of Return
The Atlantic City Sewerage Company	04/11	The Atlantic City Sewerage Company	WR-11040247	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Great Gorge, Inc./United Water Vernon Sewerage, Inc.	10/10	United Water Great Gorge, Inc./United Water Vernon Sewerage, Inc.	WR-10100785	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	12/09	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-09120987	Fair Rate of Return
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	12/09	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR-09121005	Fair Rate of Return
The Atlantic City Sewerage Company	11/09	The Atlantic City Sewerage Company	WR-09110940	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Toms River, Inc.	11/09	United Water Toms River, Inc.	WR-09110934	Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	08/09	Middlesex Water Company	WR-0908066	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	09/08	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-08090710	Fair Rate of Return
United Water West Milford, Inc.	09/08	United Water West Milford, Inc.	WR-08100928	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Arlington Hills, Inc.	09/08	United Water Arlington Hills, Inc.	WR-08100929	Fair Rate of Return
Applied Wastewater Management	08/08	Applied Wastewater Management	WR-08080550	Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	04/08	Pinelands Water Company	WR-08040282	Return on Equity
United Water Toms River, Inc.	03/08	United Water Toms River, Inc.	R-WR-08030139	Fair Rate of Return



1	10/07	A STATE I STATE I	14/0 07400055	
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	12/07	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR-07120955	Fair Rate of Return
The Atlantic City Sewerage	44107	The Atlantic City Sewerage	14/0 00074 40000	E
Company	11/07	Company	VVK-000/110866	Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	04/07	Middlesex Water Company	PUCRL 05663-2007N	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Jersey, Inc.	02/07	United Water New Jersey, Inc.	WR-07020135	Fair Rate of Return
Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	12/05	Aqua New Jersey, Inc.	WR-05121022	Fair Rate of Return
Pinelands Water Company	08/05	Pinelands Water Company	WR-05080681	Return on Equity
Pinelands Wastewater Company	08/05	Pinelands Wastewater Company	WR-05080680	Return on Equity
Middlesex Water Company	05/05	Middlesex Water Company	WR-05050451	Fair Rate of Return
Pinelands Wastewater Company	12/03	Pinelands Wastewater Company	WR-031201017	Return on Equity
Pinelands Water Company	12/03	Pinelands Water Company	WR-031201016	Return on Equity
Agua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly		Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly		
Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	12/03	Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	WR-03120974	Return on Equity
Middlesex Water Company	11/03	Middlesex Water Company	WR-03110900	Fair Rate of Return
	12202		WR-03070509 & OAL	
Mount Holly Water Company	07/03	Mount Holly Water Company	PUCRL 07280-2003N	Fair Rate of Return
	2.77		WR-03070510 & OAL	
Elizabethtown Water Company	07/03	Elizabethtown Water Company	PUCRL 07281-2003N	Return on Equity
New Jersey-American Water	Sec. 10	New Jersey-American Water	WR-03070511 & OAL	and an entry of the
Company	04/03	Company	PUCRL 07279-2003N	Fair Rate of Return
Thames RWE re: New Jersey-		Thames RWE re: New Jersey-		
American Water Co.	08/02	American Water Co.	VVM-01120833	Return on Equity
Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly	00/00	Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly	14/17 00000100	Determine Franks
Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	03/02	Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	WR-02030133	Return on Equity
Elizabethtown Water Company	04/01	Elizabethtown Water Company	VVR-01040205	Overall Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	06/00	Middlesex Water Company	WR-00060362	Fair Rate of Return
Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly	00/00	Aqua New Jersey, Inc. (formerly	WR-00030174 & OAL	
Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	03/00	Consumers New Jersey Water Co.)	PUCRS04524-00S	Return on Equity
Middlesex Water Company	09/98	Middlesex Water Company	98-090795	Fair Rate of Return
Middlesex Water Company	11/96	Middlesex Water Company	96-110818	Return on Equity
New York State Public Service Cor	nmission			
SUEZ New York Inc.	2/16	SUEZ New York Inc.	16-W-0130	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Rochelle, Inc. /	1.00	United Water New Rochelle, Inc. /	the set of the set we want	
United Water West Chester, Inc.	11/13	United Water West Chester, Inc.	13-W-0539/13-W-564	Return on Equity
United Water New York, Inc.	07/13	United Water New York, Inc.	13-W-0295	Fair Rate of Return
Long Island American Water		Long Island American Water	T Stationed	
Company d/b/a Long Island	05/11	Company	11-W-0200	Return on Equity

PAGE A-12



American Water for Water Service	1.00			
United Water Owego-Nichols, Inc.	02/11	United Water Owego-Nichols, Inc.	11-W-0082	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Westchester, Inc.	11/09	United Water Westchester, Inc.	09-W-0828	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Rochelle Inc.	11/09	United Water New Rochelle Inc.	09-W-0824	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New York, Inc.	09/09	United Water New York, Inc.	09-W-0731	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Owego/Nichols, Inc.	05/07	United Water Owego/Nichols, Inc.	07-W-0639 / 07-W0872	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New York, Inc. / South County	01/06	United Water New York, Inc.	Cases 06-W-0131 and 06-W-0244	Fair Rate of Return
United Water New Rochelle, Inc.	09/04	United Water New Rochelle, Inc.	04-W-1221	Fair Rate of Return
North Carolina Utility Commission				
Carolina Water Service of North Carolina	08/15	Carolina Water Company of North Carolina	W-354, Sub 344	Return on Equity
Aqua North Carolina, Inc.	12/13	Aqua North Carolina, Inc.	W-218, Sub 363	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC.	10/13	Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC.	W-354 Sub 336	Fair Rate of Return
Pluris, LLC	08/12	Pluris, LLC	W-1282, Sub 8	Return on Equity
Aqua North Carolina, Inc.	05/11	Aqua North Carolina, Inc.	W-218, Sub 319	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC	10/10	Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC	W-354. Sub 324	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC	10/10	Carolina Water Service, Inc. of NC - Ops. in Currituck Co.	W-354. Sub 327	Fair Rate of Return
Transylvania Utilities, Inc.	05/06	Transylvania Utilities, Inc.	W-1012, Sub 7	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Pines Utilities, Inc.	04/04	Carolina Pines Utilities, Inc.	W-1151	Return on Equity
Transylvania Utilities, Inc.	04/04	Transylvania Utilities, Inc.	W-1012, Sub 5	Return on Equity
Nero Utilities, Inc.	04/04	Nero Utilities, Inc.	W-1152	Return on Equity
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commis	ssion			
Metropolitan Edison Co.	04/16	Metropolitan Edison Co.	R-2016-2537349	Return on Equity
Pennsylvania Electric Co.	04/16	Pennsylvania Electric Co.	R-2016-2537352	Return on Equity
Pennsylvania Power Co.	04/16	Pennsylvania Power Co.	R-2016-2537355	Return on Equity
West Penn Power Co.	04/16	West Penn Power Co.	R-2016-2537359	Return on Equity
United Water Pennsylvania Inc.	01/15	United Water Pennsylvania Inc.	R-2015-2462523	Return on Equity
Penn Estates Utilities, Inc.	12/11	Penn Estates Utilities, Inc.	R-2011-2255159	Return on Equity
United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	05/11	United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	R-2011-2232985	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	09/09	United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	R-2009-2122887	Fair Rate of Return
Penn Estates Utilities, Inc. (Water) / (Sewer)	09/09	Penn Estates Utilities, Inc. (Water) / (Sewer)	R-2009-2117532 / R- 2009-2117400	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities, Inc Westgate	09/09	Utilities, Inc Westgate	R-2009-2117389	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities, Inc. of Pennsylvania	09/09	Utilities, Inc. of Pennsylvania	R-2009-2117402	Fair Rate of Return

PAGE A-13



Trigen-Philadelphia Energy Corp.	06/09	Trigen-Philadelphia Energy Corp.	R-2009-2111011	Fair Rate of Return
The Columbia Water Company	12/08	The Columbia Water Company	R-2008-2045157	Return on Equity
The Newtown Artesian Water		The Newtown Artesian Water		
Company	11/08	Company	R-2008-2042293	Fair Rate of Return
NRG Energy Center Harrisburg	03/08	NRG Energy Center Harrisburg	R-2008-2028395	Fair Rate of Return
Total Environmental Solutions, Inc.		Total Environmental Solutions, Inc	- instant	
- Treasure Lake Water Division	02/08	Treasure Lake Water Division	R-00072493	Fair Rate of Return
- Treasure Lake Sewer Division	02/08	Total Environmental Solutions, Inc Treasure Lake Sewer Division	R-00072495	Fair Rate of Return
Emporium Water Company	06/06	Emporium Water Company	R-00061297	Fair Rate of Return
NRG Energy Center Pittsburgh	06/06	NRG Energy Center Pittsburgh	R-00061435	Fair Rate of Return
City of DuBois, PA	04/06	City of DuBois, PA	R-00050671	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	01/06	United Water Pennsylvania, Inc.	R-00051186	Fair Rate of Return
Valley Energy, Inc.	10/04	Valley Energy, Inc.	R-00049345	Fair Rate of Return
Borough of Hanover	08/02	Borough of Hanover	R-00027522	Fair Rate of Return
Audubon Water Company	04/02	Audubon Water Company	R-00027104	Fair Rate of Return
Wellsboro Electric Company	10/01	Wellsboro Electric Company	R-00016356	Fair Rate of Return
Emporium Water Company	09/00	Emporium Water Company	R-00005050	Fair Rate of Return
Penn Estates Utilities, Inc.	01/00	Penn Estates Utilities, Inc.	R-00005031 & R- 00005032	Fair Rate of Return
Pittsburgh Thermal, L.P.	11/99	Pittsburgh Thermal, L.P.	R-00994641	Fair Rate of Return
PG Energy	03/98	PG Energy	R-009880	Capital Structure and Embedded Fixed Capital Cost Rates
Western Utilities, Inc.	08/97	Western Utilities, Inc.	R-00963856	Fair Rate of Return
PG Energy	05/96	PG Energy	R-0096312	Capital Structure and Embedded Fixed Capital Cost Rates
Public Service Commission of New	vada			and the second second
Utilities Inc. of Central Nevada	06/15	Utilities Inc. of Central Nevada	15-06063	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities Inc. of Central Nevada	12/09	Utilities Inc. of Central Nevada	09-12017	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities Inc., of Nevada	06/09	Utilities Inc., of Nevada	09-06037	Fair Rate of Return
Spring Creek Utilities, Inc.	06/08	Spring Creek Utilities, Inc.	08-06036	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities, Inc. of Central Nevada	12/06	Utilities, Inc. of Central Nevada	06-12023	Fair Rate of Return
Spring Creek Utilities, Inc.	04/06	Spring Creek Utilities, Inc.	06-01002	Fair Rate of Return
Public Service Commission of Sou	uth Carolin	la		

United Utility Companies, Inc.	09/13	United Utility Companies, Inc.	2013-199-WS	Capital Structure
Utilities Services of South Carolina	09/13	Utilities Services of South Carolina	2013-201-WS	Capital Structure
Tega Cay Water Services Inc.	12/12	Tega Cay Water Services Inc.	2012-177-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service, Inc.	08/11	Carolina Water Service, Inc.	2011-47-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Tega Cay Water Service, Inc.	04/10	Tega Cay Water Service, Inc.	2009-473-WS	Fair Rate of Return
United Utility Companies, Inc.	02/10	United Utility Companies, Inc.	2009-479-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities Services of South Carolina	11/07	Utilities Services of South Carolina	2007-286-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Southland Utilities, Inc.	09/07	Southland Utilities, Inc.	2007-244-W	Fair Rate of Return
Tega Cay Water Service, Inc.	07/06	Tega Cay Water Service, Inc.	2006-97-WS	Return on Equity
United Utility Companies, Inc.	07/06	United Utility Companies, Inc.	2006-107-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service, Inc.	06/06	Carolina Water Service, Inc.	2006-92-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
Utilities Services of South Carolina	11/05	Utilities Services of South Carolina	2005-217-WS	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service of South Carolina	04/05	Carolina Water Service of South Carolina	2004-357-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
United Utility Companies	01/02	United Utility Companies	2000-0210-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
Carolina Water Service of South Carolina	06/01	Carolina Water Service of South Carolina	2000-0207-W/S	Fair Rate of Return
Public Utility Commission of Ohio				
Aqua Ohio, Inc.	12/13	Aqua Ohio, Inc.	13-2124-WW-AIR	Return on Equity
Ohio American Water Company	8/12	Ohio American Water Company	11-4161-WS-AIR	Fair Rate of Return
Ohio American Water Company	6/09	Ohio American Water Company	09-391-WS-AIR	Fair Rate of Return
Ohio American Water Company	10/06	Ohio American Water Company	06-433-WS-AIR	Fair Rate of Return
Ohio-American Water Company	11/04	Ohio-American Water Company	03-2390-WS-AIR	Return on Equity
Regulatory Commission of Alaska				
Fairbanks Natural Gas, LLC	6/14	Fairbanks Natural Gas, LLC	U-14-102	Fair Rate of Return
Rhode Island Public Utilities Comn	nission			
United Water Rhode Island, Inc.	8/13	United Water Rhode Island, Inc.	4434	Fair Rate of Return
United Water Rhode Island, Inc.	6/11	United Water Rhode Island, Inc.	4255	Fair Rate of Return
Virginia State Corporation Commis	sion			
Aqua Virginia, Inc.	8/14	Aqua Virginia, Inc.	PUE-2014-00045	Return on Equity
Massanutten Public Service Corporation	9/09	Massanutten Public Service Corporation	PUE-2009-00041	Return on Equity
Land'Or Utility Company	12/06	Land'Or Utility Company	PUE-2006-00128	Return on Equity
Massanutten Public Service Corporation	12/06	Massanutten Public Service Corporation	PUE-2006-00126	Return on Equity
Reston Lake Anne Air Conditioning	5/12	Reston Lake Anne Air Conditioning	PUE-2011-00130	Return on Equity

Corp.		Corp.	CELL AND	
Agua Virginia, Inc.	10/11	Aqua Virginia, Inc. (Monticello)	PUE-2005-00080	Return on Equity
Aqua Virginia, Inc.	10/11	Aqua Virginia, Inc Sydnor Hydrodynamics, Inc.	PUE-2011-00099	Return on Equity
United Water Virginia, Inc.	10/97	United Water Virginia, Inc.	PUE-2097-0544	Fair Rate of Return
Washington Utilities & Transportat	tion Comn	nission		
Washington Natural Gas Company	03/95	Washington Natural Gas Company	UG-950278	Capital Structure Ratios - Fixed Capital Cost Rates


ATTACHMENT A TESTIMONY LISTING OF PAULINE AHERN





LAC / MGE Table of Contents to the Financial Supporting Schedules of Pauline M. Ahern, CRRA

	Schedule
Summary of Cost of Capital and Fair Rate of Return	PMA-D1
Financial Profile of the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	PMA-D2
Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Discounted Cash Flow Model	PMA-D3
Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Risk Premium Model	PMA-D4
Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Capital Asset Pricing Model	PMA-D5
Basis of Selection for the Non-Price Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the Natural Gas Proxy Group	PMA-D6
Cost of Common Equity Models Applied to the Comparable Risk Non-Price Regulated Companies	PMA-D7
Estimation of the Flotation Cost Adjustment	PMA-D8
Estimated Market Capitalization for LAC / MGE and the Natural Gas Proxy Group	PMA-D9

,

 $\mathbf{t} = \mathbf{y}$

LAC / MGE Summary of Cost of Capital and Fair Rate of Return Based Upon a Test Tear Ended December 31, 2016 (Pro Forma)

-

<u>LAC / MGE</u>

Type Of Capital	Ratios (1)	Cost Rate	Weighted Cost Rate
Long-Term Debt	42.80%	4.159% (1)	1.780%
Common Equity	57.20%	10.350% (2)	5.920%
Total	100.00%	=	7.700%

Notes:

- (1) From Schedule GWB-1.
- (2) From page 2 of this Schedule.

LAC / MGE Brief Summary of Common Equity Cost Rate

Line No.	Principal Methods		
	Natural Gas Proxy Group		
1,	Discounted Cash Flow Model (DCF) (1)	8.68	%
2.	Risk Premium Model (RPM) (2)	10.57	
3.	Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) (3)	9.11	
	Non-Price Regulated Proxy Group		
4.	Regulated Companies (4)	10.45	_
5,	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate before Adjustments	10.00	%
6.	Flotation Cost Adjustment (5)	0.16	
7.	Business Risk Adjustment (6)	0.20	-
8.	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate	10.36	_%
9.	Recommended Common Equity Cost Rate	10.35	%

Notes: (1) From Schedule PMA-D3.

- (2) From page 1 of Schedule PMA-D4.
- (3) From page 1 of Schedule PMA-D5.
- (4) From page 1 of Schedule PMA-D7.
- (5) From page 1 of Schedule PMA-D8.
- (6) Business risk adjustment to reflect LAC / MGE's greater business risk due to their respective unique risks as well as their respective collective small size relative to the proxy group as detailed in the accompanying direct testimony.

Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies CAPITALIZATION AND FINANCIAL STATISTICS (1) 2011 - 2015, Inclusive

, ·

, I

	2015	<u>2014</u> (MILI	<u>2013</u> LIONS OF DOLLA	<u>2012</u> RS)	<u>2011</u>	
CAPITALIZATION STATISTICS						
AMOUNT OF CAPITAL EMPLOYED TOTAL PERMANENT CAPITAL SHORT-TERM DEBT TOTAL CAPITAL EMPLOYED	\$2,596.690 <u>\$250,773</u> <u>\$2,847.463</u>	\$2,498.119 <u>\$194.061</u> <u>\$2,692,180</u>	\$2,100.394 <u>\$207.907</u> <u>\$2,308.301</u>	\$1,773.274 <u>\$211.597</u> <u>\$1.984.871</u>	\$1,671.742 <u>\$136.179</u> <u>\$1,807.921</u>	
INDICATED AVERAGE CAPITAL COST RATES (2) TOTAL DEBT PREFERRED STOCK	3.65 %	3.77 %	3.89 %	4.69 %	5.09 %	r vean
CAPITAL STRUCTURE RATIOS BASED ON TOTAL PERMANENT CAPITAL: LONG-TERM DEBT	44 98 %	46 53 %	44.53.96	47 47 %	42 37 %	AVERAGE
PREFERRED STOCK COMMON EQUITY TOTAL	0.01 <u>55.01</u> <u>100.00</u> %	0.01 <u>53.46</u> <u>100.00</u> %	0.01 <u>55.46</u> <u>100.00</u> %	0.01 <u>57.52</u> <u>100.00</u> %	0.01 <u>57.62</u> <u>100.00</u> %	0.01 <u>55.81</u> <u>100.00</u> %
BASED ON TOTAL CAPITAL: TOTAL DEBT, INCLUDING SHORT-TERM PREFERRED STOCK COMMON EQUITY TOTAL	51.52 % 0.01 <u>48.47</u> <u>100.00</u> %	52.00 % 0.01 <u>47.99</u> <u>100.00</u> %	51.29 % 0.01 <u>48.70</u> <u>100.00</u> %	49.1 % 0.01 <u>50.93</u> <u>100.00</u> %	47.97 % 0.01 <u>52.02</u> <u>100.00</u> %	50.37 % 0.01 <u>49.62</u> <u>100.00</u> %
FINANCIAL STATISTICS						
<u>FINANCIAL RATIOS - MARKET BASED</u> EARNINGS / PRICE RATIO MARKET / AVERAGE BOOK RATIO DIVIDEND YIELD DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO	7.76 % 149.16 2.92 57.38	6.08 % 190.88 2.80 58.57	6.19 % 183.89 3.07 60.67	6.70 % 164.80 3.30 57.39	7.64 % 153.14 3.75 55.14	6.87 % 168.37 3.17 57.83
RATE OF REFURN ON AVERAGE BOOK COMMON EQUITY	10,78 %	10.44 %	10,18 %	10.88 %	11.22 %	10.70 %
<u>TOTAL DEBT / EBITDA (3)</u>	3.87 X	4,41 X	4,62 X	3.76 X	3.23 X	3,98 X
FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS / TOTAL DEBT (4)	26.70 %	26.26 %	19.53 %	28.64 %	29.74 %	26.17 %
<u>Total Debt / Total Capital</u>	51,52 %	52.00 %	51.29 %	49.06 %	47.97 %	50.37 %

Notes:

 All capitalization and financial statistics for the group are the arithmetic average of the achieved results for each individual company in the group, and are based upon financial statements as originally reported in each year.

(2) Computed by relating actual total debt interest or preferred stock dividends booked to average of (2) complete by relating areas total debt or preferred stock reported to be outstanding.
 (3) Total debt relative to EBITDA (Earnings before Interest, Income Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization).

(4) Funds from operations (sum of net income, depreciation, amortization, net deferred income tax and investment tax credits, less total AFUDC) plus interest charges as a percentage of total debt.

Source of Information: Company Annual Forms 10-K

<u>Capital Structure Based upon Total Permanent Capital for the</u> <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u> <u>2011 - 2015, Inclusive</u>

						<u>5 YEAR</u>	
	2015	<u>2014</u>	<u>2013</u>	2012	2011	AVERAGE	
Atmos Energy							
Long-Term Debt	43.46 %	44.31 %	48.76 %	45.33 %	49.48 %	46.27 %	
Preferred Stock	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Common Equity	56.54	55.69	51.24	54.67	50,52	53.73	
Total Capital	100,00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	
				· · · ·			
Chesapeake Utilities							
Long-Term Debt	30.68 %	35.82 %	31.63 %	30.03 %	32.98 %	32.23 %	
Preferred Stock	0,00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Common Equity	69.32	64.18	68.37	69.97	67.02	67.77	
Total Capital	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	a sa Na sa ka sa
· ·							
<u>New Jersey</u> Basaureas Corn							
Long-Term Debt	1357 06	20 57 04	20 50 M	39 57 %	35.99.04	39.64.96	
Preferred Stock	43.37 73	0.00	35,35 73 0.00	000	00.00	0.04 %	
Common Equity	56.43	60.43	60.41	60.43	64.12	60.36	
Total Canital	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	
.om: up:ui:							
Northeast Net Con							
Northwest Nat. 6as	13 53 0/	10 20 00	10 66 01	10 FT 07	45.30.00	16 66 N	
Long-term Debt	93.52 %	10.30 %	49.00 %	40.55 %	43.23 %	40,00 %	
Common Faulty	84.37	53.70	50.34	51 45	54 71	53.34	
Total Canital	A9 00 001	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	
romredpimi				100.00 //		100000 /0	
- • •							
South Jersey Industries, Inc.							
Long-Term Debt	49.96 %	51.98 %	45.89 %	45.97 %	40.59 %	46.88 %	
Preferred Stock	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Common Equity	50.04	48.02	54.10	54.03	59.41	53.13	
Total Capital	100.00 %	100.00 %	99.99 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.01 %	
	<u>+</u>				,		
Southwest Con							
Holdings Inc							
Long-Term Debt	49.59 %	52.64 %	49.57 %	50.13 %	53.53 %	51.09 %	
Preferred Stock	0.07	0.07	80.0	0.06	0.04	0.06	
Common Equity	50,34	47.29	50.36	49.81	46.43	48.85	
Total Capital	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.01 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	
	······································			1.1			
Spire Inc.					1.11		
Long-Term Debt	54.06 %	55,10 %	46.59 %	37.72 %	38.86 %	46.47 %	
Preferred Stock	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0,00	0,00	
Common Equity	45,94	44.90	53,41	62.28	61.14	53,53	
Total Capital	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	
•					t		
Room Group of							
Seven Natural Gas							
Companies							
Long-Term Debt	44.98 %	46.53 %	44.53 %	42.47 %	42.37 %	44.18 %	
Preferred Stock	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.01	0.01	
Common Equity	55.01	53.46	55.46	57,52	57.62	55.81	
Total Capital	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	100.00 %	

Source of Information

Annual Forms 10-K

e ...

	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	[8]
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	Average Dividend Yield (1)	Value Line Projected Five Year Growth in EPS (2)	Reuters Mean Consensus Projected Five Year Growth Rate in EPS	Zack's Five Year Projected Growth Rate in EPS	Yahoo! Finance Projected Five Year Growth in EPS	Average Projected Five Year Growth in EPS (3)	Adjusted Dividend Yield (4)	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate (5)
Atmos Energy	2.46 %	6.50 %	7.30 %	7.00 %	7.30 %	7.03 %	2.55 %	958 %
Chesapeake Utilities	1,87	8.50	NA	6.00	5.80	6,77	1.93	8.70
New Jersey Resources Corp.	2.90	3,00	6.00	6.50	6.00	5,38	2,98	8.36
Northwest Nat. Gas	3.21	7.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.75	3.29	8.04
South Jersey Industries, Inc.	3.34	3.00	NA	10.00	6.00	6.33	3.45	9.78
Southwest Gas Holdings Inc	2.38	7.00	4.00	4.50	4.00	4.88	2.44	7.32
Spire Inc.	3.27	9.00	4.23	4.40	4,18	5,45	3.36	8.81
							Average	8.65_%
							Median	<u> </u>
						Average of Mea	an and Median	8.68 %

LAC / MGE Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Using the Discounted Cash Flow Model for the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

NA=	Not	Avail	able
	1405		

Notes:

 Indicated dividend at 01/31/2017 divided by the average closing price of the last 60 trading days ending 01/31/2017 for each company.

(2) From pages 3 through 10 of this Schedule.

(3) Average of columns 2 through 5 excluding negative growth rates.

(4) This reflects a growth rate component equal to one-half the conclusion of growth rate (from column 6) x column 1 to reflect the periodic payment of dividends (Gordon Model) as opposed to the continuous payment. Thus, for Atmos Energy, 2.46% x (1+(1/2 x 7.03%)) = 2.55%.

(5) Column 6 + column 7.

Source of Information:

Value Line Investment Survey www.reuters.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017 www.zacks.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017 www.yahoo.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017

LAC / MGE Demonstration of the Inadequacy of Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies When Market Value is Greater than Book Value

			Based on the Prox Natural Gas	y Group Compan	of Seven ies
			Column A	(Column B
Line No.		M	arket Value	B	ook Value
1.	Per Share	\$	59.536 (1)	\$	25.848 (2)
2.	DCF Cost Rate (3)		8.65%		8.65%
3.	Return in Dollars (4)	\$	5.150	\$	2.236
4.	Dividends (5)	\$	1.703	\$	1.703
5.	Growth in Dollars (6)	\$	3.447	\$	0.533
6.	Return on Market Value (7)		8.65%		3.76%
7.	Rate of Growth on Market Value (8)		5.79%		0.90%

Notes:

- (1) Average price of the proxy group as shown on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D9.
- (2) Average book value of the proxy group as shown on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D9.
- (3) Average DCF cost rate derived from Column [7] on page 1 of this Schedule.
- (4) Line 1 x Line 2.
- (5) Dividends are based on a 2.86% adjusted dividend yield which is the
- (6) Line 3 Line 4.
- (7) Line 3 / Line 1.
- (8) Line 7 / Line 1.

ATMOS ENERG	Y CORP.	NYSE	ATO	recent Price	72.8	4 P/E RAT	ю 20,	8 (Trail Mad	ling: 21.4 lian: 15.0 /	RELATIN PÆ RAT	^E 1.0	9 DIVIO	2.5	5%	/ALU LINE	E	
TIMELINESS 3 LONGRES 1916/16	High: 30.	0 33.1 25.5	33.5	29.3 19.7	30.3	32.0	35.6	37.3	47.4	58.2 44.2	64.8 50.8	82.0			Targe	t Price	Range
SAFETY 1 Raised 616/14	LEGENDS	ntende n th	<u> </u>	L CONTINUES		10.0	20,0					0			2019	2020	2021
TECHNICAL 3 LONG BODDIG	divided by	hterest Ra	*	a stepping Stepping		+	+	+					+		<u> </u>		+ 160
BETA .70 (1.00 = Market)	Options: Yes Shaded area ind	icates reces	sion 🛏	Constant and		Í			1	1		-			[+120
2019-21 PROJECTIONS Ann'I Total		1		i de la composition La constanción de la c	1853. 1952		+			<u> </u>		1.101 1111					+80
Price Gain Return Sigh 110 (+50%) 13%								ſ		1.111111	իրոսյլ, ել		<u> </u>				
Low 90 (+25%) 8%				768.0008982					<mark>՝ հե</mark> կին,	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	-40
JFMAMJJAS	Illinian State	1177-61 111	100	H asag		դ <u>աղր</u> ու,	4	1	1.000	1		·		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>+</u>	+30
biBay 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		2	******		14 1999	[[*•••**•••	1			1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1				<u> </u>		<u> </u>	-20
Institutional Decisions		1					1	1		<u></u>		<u>†</u>	<u> </u>	% TOT	RETUR	N 10/16	⊢ 15
422/15 102/16 202/15	Percent 24			191101018		<u> </u>		11	1.12	L		_			THS N STOCK	NDEX	Ļ
to Bay 159 212 188 to Sel 133 142 148	shares 16 traded 8		.	lu1	1903. a. la				l.	H., .				1 yr. 3 yr.	20.9 82.7	6.4 [5.7	_
185(W) 70628 71888 73716 Atmos Energy's history d	late hack to		2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	Syr. OVALL	154.6 E I B35 D	76.0	9.21
1906 in the Texas Panhan	dle. Over the	7527	66.03	79.52	53.69	53 12	48 15	38 10	42.88	49.22	40.82	32.20	33.65	Revenue	s per sh	A	45.85
years, through various merge	ers, it became	4.26	4.14	4,19	4.29	4.64	4.72	4,76	5,14	5.42	5,81	6.20	6.50	"Cash Fl	ow" per	sh .	7.25
part of Pioneer Corporation, Pioneer named its one distal	and, in 1981, bution division	2.03	1.94	2.00	1.97	2,16	2.26	2.10	2.50	2,96	3.09	3.38	3.55	Earnings	per sh /	4 B	4.20
Energas. In 1983. Pione	er organized	5.20	4.39	5.20	5.51	6.02	6.90	8.12	9.32	8.32	9.61	10.45	11.00	Cao'l Sp	ecra per endino na	sn 📲	2.15
Energas as a separate subsi	diary and dis-	20.16	22.01	22.60	23.52	24.16	24.98	26.14	28.47	30,74	31.48	33.30	31.25	Book Val	ue per st	t	36.65
Induled the outstanding share	es of Energas	81.74	89.33	90.81	92.55	90.16	90.30	90.24	90.64	100.39	101.48	104.00	107.00	Common	Shs Out	st'g D	120.00
its name to Atmos in 1988. A	inos acouired	13.5	15.9 84	13.0	12.5	13,Z 84	90	101	15,9	16,1 85	17,3	20.8 111		AYG ANN Relative i	1 PAC RAL PAF Ratio	10	24.U 1.50
Trans Louisiana Gas in 1986,	Western Ken-	4.7%	4.2%	4.8%	5.3%	4.7%	4.2%	4.1%	3.5%	3.1%	2.9%	2.4%		Avg Ann'	1 Div'd Yi	eld	2.1%
Lucky Gas Utility in 1987, G	reeley Gas in	6152.4	5898.4	7221.3	4969,1	4789,7	4347.6	3438.5	3888.3	4940.9	4142.1	3349,9	3500	Revenue	s (\$mIII) 4	4	5500
1993, United Gites Gas in 199	HA BILL OUTERS.	162.3	170.5	160,3	179.7	201.2	199.3	192.2	230.7	289.8	315.1	350.1	380	Net Profit	t (\$mill)		500
Total Debt \$3126.1 mšl. Due in 5 Y	/rs \$1157.9 mil	37.0% 2.6%	30.8% 2.9%	38,4% 2.5%	34.475 3.6%	30.3% 42%	30.472 4.6%	5.6%	59%	39.275 5.9%	38.3% 7.6%	30,4% 10,5%	37.07# 10.6%	Net Profil	ax Kate Maroin		40.0% 9.1%
LT Debt \$2205.6 ma. LT Interest	t \$135.0 m)).	57.0%	52.0%	50,8%	49.9%	45.4%	49.4%	45.3%	48.8%	44.3%	43.5%	39.0%	42.0%	Long-Ten	m Debt R	atio	45.0%
coverage: 5.4x)	631	43.0%	48.0%	49.2%	50.1%	54.6%	50.6%	54.7%	51.2%	55.7%	56.5%	61.0%	58.0%	Common	Equity R	atio	\$5.0%
Leases, Uncapitalized Annual rent Pfd Stock None	lais \$16.5 mil.	3828.5	4092.1	41/2.3	4346.2	3987.9	4461.5	4315,5	5036,1 6030.7	5342.2 6725.9	5650,2 7430.6	5555 878/1	5765 9060	Total Cap Not Plant	Alal (Şm4 (\$mill)	11	8000 11500
Pansion Assets 9/15 \$450.9 mill.	2.0	6.1%	5.9%	5.9%	5.9%	6.9%	6.1%	6.1%	5.9%	8.4%	6.6%	7.5%	8.0%	Return or	n Total Ca	ip'i	7.5%
Common Stock 103,847,858 shs.	15.5 MB.	9.8%	8.7%	8.8%	8.3%	9.2%	8.8%	8,1%	8,9%	9,4%	9,9%	10.0%	11.5%	Return or	1 Shr. Equ	uity	11.5%
as of 7/29/16	(An)	8.8%	8.7% 3.0%	8.8%	8.3%	9.2%	8,8% 13%	8,1%	8,9% 10%	9.4%	9.9%	10.0%	11.5%	Return or Retained	1 Côm Eg In Com F	usty	11.5%
CURRENT POSITION 2014	2015 6/30/16	63%	65%	65%	68%	62%	62%	65%	56%	50%	51%	50%	51%	All Div'ds	to Net P	rof	52%
(MLL) Cash Assets 42.3	287 662	BUSIN	ISS: Atr	os Energ	y Corpo	ration is	engaged	primarily	in the	mercial;	3%, ind	ustrial; a	nd 2% o	ther. The	e compa	ny has a	breve
Other 733.5 6	<u>502.3</u> <u>582.7</u>	distribut	ion and s via dou	sale of ru consister	i natural i natural	s to roug	hly three to one cal	mation c	usiom- risiana	4,760 en	nployees.	. Officers	and dire	ctors own windowith ar	i approxi vi Obief	mately 1. Events	5% of
Accis Payable 311.6 2	238.9 198.9	Division	, West T	exas Dh	islon, M	id-Tex D	ivision, A	lississiop	i Divi-	ficer: Kir	n R. Coo	xin inco	xporated	Texas.	Address:	Three L	incoln
Debt Due 196.7 4 Other 402.4 4	157.9 920.5 158.0 410.4	sion, Co Gas sa	dorado-K les break	lansas Di down for	vision, a fiscal 21	nd Kentu 115:66%	cky/Micki residen	States Di Kati 29%	vision.	Centre, S	Suite 180	XO, 5430 X227 Inte	LBJ Free met ww	way, Dall watnose	las, Texa nerov co	is 75240. m	. Tele-
Current Liab, 910.7 11	54.8 1529.8	Atm	os En	erav	mav	well	nost	resn	ect.	the co	Te re	oulate	d uni	ts No	te th	at we	05-
ANNUAL RATES Past Past	4376 73076 t Est'd'13-15	able	resu	lts in	fisca	1 201	7 (sta	rted	Oc-	timat	e the	pendi	ng div	/estitu	re's in	mpaci	ton
of change (per sh) 10 Yrs. 5 Yrs	to 19-21	tobe	r 1st)). The	nati	iral g	as di	stribu	tion	earni	ngs pe	er sha	re wo	uld be	mini	mal.	
"Cash Flow" 5,0% 4,5	\$ 5.0%	of re	venue	s. sta	nds to	bene	arge: efit fr	scpor om a	rise	budg	nsca et is	expe	ted i	to lie	exper betw	een \$	res \$1.1
Dividends 2.0% 2.5	% 0.5% % 6.5%	in th	irough	iput,	assur	ning	that	both	the	billio	n an	d \$1.2	25 bil	lion, '	That	would	l be
Book Value 5,0% 5.0	1% 3.5%	weat	her a callu f	nd eo	conom	ic en	vironi to a	nent	are t in	some	8% h	ligher	than the	the p	previo	us ye	ar's hat
Year Dec.31 Mar.31 Jun.30	Sep.30 Fiscal	consu	imptic	on lev	els). A	Also, v	ve loo	k for	rea-	range	is u	sed.	Simila	ar to	fiscal	2016	3, a
2013 1034.2 1309.0 857.9	685.2 3886.3	sonal	oly d	ecent	perfe	orman	ices 1	from	the	mean	ingful	porti	on of	the re	source	es wil	lbe
2014 1255.1 1964.3 942.7 2015 1259.8 1540.1 696.4	778.8 4940.9	pipel	່ segn ine ເມ	nents, nit. A	nich t this	uung siuna	cture.	reguia full-v	itea /ear	reliab	ilitv e	of Atr	mance nos' n	e me atural	e san lgas	ety distri	ano bu-
2016 906.2 1132.3 632.9	678.5 3349.9	profit	s mig	ht ad	vance	arour	ıd 5%	, to \$.	3.55	tion a	nd tra	ansmi	ssion	systen	ns.		
2017 930 1250 720	700 3600	a sh	are, v	ersus	the	fiscal	2016	i taily	y of	The c	luart	erly o	commi form	ion st	ock d	livide	and
Yoar Dec 31 Mar 31 Jun 30	Sen 31 Fiscal	the b	ottom	line	ig nso	ow at	ta sir	e ben nilar	ieve oer-	was share	Mo	reove	rew r. our	· 2019	9-2021	30.40 DT0	iec-
2013 .85 1.23 .36	.08 2.50	centa	ge rat	te, to	\$3.75	a sha	re, if	opera	ting	tions	indica	ate th	nat ac	ldition	al, st	eady	'in-
2014 .95 1.38 .45	.23 2.96	marg	ins ex	pand.	is to	solt /	Itmos	Ene	rav	crease The m	es in i avout	the di	stribu	tion v that n	vill ta veriod	ke pla	ace.
2016 1.00 1.38 .69	.23 3.09	Marl	ceting	g (AE	M) t	oas	subsi	diary	of	be rot	ighly	50%,	which	i shou	ld no	t plac	ea
2017 1.05 1.41 .72	.37 3.55	Cent	erPol	int Er	iergy	The	transa	action	in-	substa	antial	finan	cial b	urden	on th	ie ene	rgy
Cal- QUARTERLY DIVIDENDS PA	10 Ca Full	custo	s the mers	trans	aer o AEM ⁵	i 800 s rel≈	deliv ted at	ered	gas op-	compa These	iny. 2 ton-	oual	itv sł	ares	hold	dece	nt.
2012 .345 .345 .345	.35 1.39	timiz	ation	busin	ess at	ana	ll-casl	i pric	e of	risk-a	idjus	ted 1	ong-t	erm	total	retu	Irn
2013 .35 .35 .35	.37 1.42	\$40 1	million	n plu	s wor	king	capita	al at	the	poter	itial.	That	reflec	ts the	heal	thy d	livi-
2014 37 .37 .37 .37 .2015 39 .39 .39	.39 1.50 42 1.59	calen	dar or	le (an uarter	of 20	ieu di 117). F	Procee	ds are	n sc e to	uena bilítie	ana N s here	vorun V	anne	capita	n gan	us bû	221-
2016 .42 .42 .42	.45	be ut	ilized	for in	frastr	ucture	e inve	stmen	t in	Frede	rick L	. Hari	r is , IL	l De	cembe	er 2, 2	2016
A) Fiscal year ends Sept. 30th. (E	B) Diuted Next	egs. rpt. (tue early	Feb.		1	D) In m₩	ons.			 	Com	pany's F	inancial :	Strength		A
19, 12¢; '10, 5¢; '11, (1¢). Excludes	discontin- June	, Sept., ar	n⊪sionca ad Dec. ∎	iy paid ir Div, reim	reany M restment	plan. 0	ะ) บุชร ก ประเลกดัก	ы аулюса g.	acki Ollê	io cusug	e 117 SI¥3	Price	Growth	Persiste	псе		80 80
30 operations: '11, 10¢; '12, 27¢; 2016 Value Line. Inc. All ratios races.	13, 14¢. Direct and Factured motion	t stock pu slits ohreit	rchase p ved from i	ian avail. sources he	steved to	be refativ	eanti≂	travided -	ew hotig	naties of	ane kini	Eam	ings Pre	oictabilit	ý Herestinet		90
HE PUBLISHER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FO it may be reproduced, resold, stored or trans	OR ANY ERRORS O	R OMISSIO electronic or	NS HERE) other form	N. This put or used to	ecation is : garatating	strictly for a	subscriber's ng any prin	ent non-	conneroia roric public	i internal L aton, servic	se. No per e ar produc	To s	ubscrib	e call 1	-800-V	ALUEL	INE .

? ^{*}

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 3 of 9

1.

CH	ESA	PEA	KEI	JTIL	, NYSE	E-CPK	8	recent Price	65.9)0 <i>P/</i> E Rat	ю 23.	9 (Irei Med	ing: 24,4 ien: 15,0)	RELATIV P/E RATI	Б́ 1.2		1.9	}%	/ALU LINE	E	
TUNEL	INESS (4 Lowered	J 10/21/16	High:	23.9	23.8	24.8	23.2	23.3	28.1	29.7	32.6	40.8	52.7	61.1	67.9]	l	Targe	t Price	Range
SAFET	Y 1	2 Now 65	5/15	LEGE	NDS	1 10.0	10./	14.0	14.7	10.7	24.0	20.0	30.8	37.5	44.4	52.5	3		2019	2020	2021
TECH	IICAL 4	4 Lowerse	11/18/16	1. g	.00 x Divide vided by Ir	ends pish terest Rat	。 ├─	18.400	1.673	+			ł								128
BETA	.65 (1.00	= Market)		3/or-2 st	82219 Mic Ga 9/14	ie zaedu	·	1006-0250	2.679	<u> </u>	1		<u> </u>				[+	±%
20	19-21 PF	IOJECT	ONS Inn'i Total	Shaded	area indo	ztes races	sion –			 .	1 :			3-10	(- <u>/</u> unfi	işı i i i ş					4-61
Rich	Price	Gain (Return 10%						2255					HHUHHH	n utu.	<u> </u>					$+^{18}_{40}$
Low	70 ¹	(+5%)	4%		· ·	-		50 See 200			int your	4.1111	⁻¹ titilti			<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	+ 32
Inside	Pr Decis	Sions AUJ	JAS			<u>, սոր</u> իս	t anter	un.TI	որհո	՝ Դուրք		<u> </u>	1.1			<u> </u>			<u> </u>		+-24
to Buy October	000	000	000	"III IT "IAL		<u></u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>			<u> </u>					<u> </u>	<u> </u>			+16
is Sel	0 0 1	<u>ð ð 1</u>	<u>001</u>		<u> </u>			l		1	1	·.					Ì	% 101	RETUR	N 10/16	- 12
insuu	1110nar 1 422%5	10801510	115 202316	Perceo	! ∂ 15.≜									1		*********			THES V	LARITH."	L
158 <i>3)</i> 1586	62 72	68 66	83 72	shares traded	10-		i di la contra di la	it hit		tanta	T. III							зут. Зут.	25.2 89.0	15.7	E
1649(00)) <u>8284</u> 2004	2002	8755 2003	2004	2005	annin 1 2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	5 yr. OV111	158,3 FEINED	76.0 18 11 C1	10.21
42.21	40.82	17.12	19.11	20.70	26.02	23.05	25.41	28.46	19.07	29.93	29.13	27.26	30.73	34.19	30.07	28.80	30.30	Revenue	s per sh	J.J. LL V	37.50
1.95	1,95	1.93	2.42	2.28	2.35	2.18	2.52	2.50	2.15	3.50	3.69	3.95	4.35	4.73	5,05	4.95	5.40	"Cash Fl	ow per s	ih 🔡	7.00
.93	.83	.69 71	1.17	1.09	1.18	1.15	1.29	1.39	1.43	1,82	1.91	1.99	2.26	2.47	2.68	2.75	2.95	Earnings	per sh 4	ch B+	4.60
2.75	3.61	1.77	1.39	2.07	3.74	4.87	3.08	3.00	1.89	3,18	3.28	5.00	6,72	6,66	9.47	9.70	10.00	CapilSp	ending pe	ar sh	11.60
8.05	8.26	8.03	8.59	9.07	9.60	11.08	11.76	12.02	14.89	15.84	16.78	17.82	19.28	20.59	23.45	27.50	27.40	8ook Val	ue per sh		30.45
1.95	8.09 15.0	8.31 18.6	8.49 12.7	8.60 15.0	8.82 (6.8	10.03	10.17	10.24	14.09	14.29	14.35	14.40	14.45	14.59	15.27	10.50 Bold Fre	11.00	Common Ava Ann	I ONS OUL	st'g C	20.00
.82		1.02	.72	.79	.89	.97	.89	.85	.95	.78	.89	.94	.88	.93	.96	Value	Line	Relative	P/E Ratio		1.25
8.1%	5.8%	5.7%	4.9%	4.6%	3.8%	3.8%	3.6%	4.1%	4.1%	3.9%	3.4%	3.3%	2.9%	2.4%	2.2%	estar	ales	Avg Ann	l Div'd Yi	ekl	1.9%
CAPIT/ Total D	AL STRU	CTURE: 1 m≋l f	ts of 9/30. We in 5 Y	116 (cs \$230 (1.001	231.2	258,3	291,4	268,8	427.5	418,0	392,5	444.3	498.8	459.2	475	515	Revenue	s (\$mW)		750
LT Deb	t\$143.5 i	ma, L	T Interes	t \$9.0 mT	i, l	39.4%	39.4%	39.1%	41.8%	20.1 39,7%	39.4%	40.1%	32.0 40.2%	39,9%	39.5%	40.0%	40.0%	Income T	ax Rate		41.0%
COverag	resteam (e: 7.7x)	eo: 7.7xc	lotal inter	est (25% of	f CapT)	4.5%	5.1%	4.9%	5.9%	6.1%	6.6%	7.4%	7,4%	7.2%	8.8%	9.1%	9.3%	Net Profi	Margin		10.7%
Leases	Uncapit of None	alized A	nnual reni	tais \$1.3 (mæ.	39.0%	34.6%	41,3%	32.0% 68.0%	28,4%	31.4%	28.4%	29.7%	34.5%	29.4%	25.0%	30.0%	Long-Ten Common	m Debt R Fourity R	atio	30.0% 70.0%
Pensio	n Assets	-12/15 \$5	51.0 m2		ł	182.2	182.8	209.5	308.6	315.9	351.1	358.5	396.4	458.8	507,5	605	665	Total Car	ital (\$mil		870
Commo	n Stock	16,301,1	Xblig. \$/5 81 shs.	0,9 m≇.		240.8	260,4	280.7	436.4	462.8	487.7	541.8	631.2	689.8	855.0	960	1050	Het Plant	(\$mill)		1430
as of 10	231/16	•. •				7.1%	8.4%	7.8%	6.1% 7.6%	9.1%	8.9%	8.8%	8.8%	8.5%	8.9%	8.0%	11.5%	Return of Return of	1 Iotal Ca 1 Shr. Fou	ip? ittv	10.0%
MARKE	T CAP:	\$1.1 billio	on (Mid C	ap)		9.5%	11.1%	11.7%	7.6%	11.5%	11.5%	11.2%	11.8%	12.0%	11.2%	9.5%	10.5%	Return or	1 Com Eq	uity	13.0%
CURRE	NT POS	TION	2014	2045 9	anna	4,1%	5.2%	5.2% 55%	3.8% 50%	6.6% 12%	6,6%	6.4%	7.1%	7.4%	6.8%	5.0% ///	5.5%	Relained	to Com E	q	8.0% 284
(iM) Cash A	L)	ijon.	46	2010 0	15	BUSIN	555 Che	saneske	Unities -	n ar	00 00050	ts of Nun	1078	uholacal	As and o	fis <i>b</i> ihutes	19//	- mericel	s natural	135. 21	vi rec.
Other		1	17.8 1	109.6	100.7	Regulat	ed Energ	ry and U	vegulate	d Energy	. The Re	gulated E	nergy	vides of	ver unreg	ulated e	nergy ser	vices, inc	n pribut	kistrean	n serv-
Accts P	ayable	1	44.6	39.3	41.3	segmen ware. 1	it (65% d larvland	and Flo	evenues) rida: dist) distribut ributes e	les natur. Jectricity	al gas in In Florid	Dela- a: and	ices in C Rowe Pr	hta. Offi rice, 8.3;	cers and BlackRo	directors ck. 5.8%	0710 5.4 (3/16 Pi	% of con raxy), CE	nmon sl O: Mici	ocic T. Vael P.
Debt Di Other	le		97.3 1 52.3	(82,5 57,8	166.6 55.2	transmit	s natura	gas on	the Del	marva P	eninsula	and in F	lorida.	McMaste	rs. Inc.:	Delawar	e. Addre	ss: 909	Säver La	ke Bou	levard,
Current	Liab.	1	94.2 2 85% 8	279,6	263.1		regulate	o Energ	y opera	001 (35	75 OF 21	Jis reve	anues)	bolo	RE 19904	. 1el.: (30	2) 739-0	/99. Inte		w.cnpx.c	oli o'o
ANNUA	L RATES	i Past	Pas	t Est'd	13-15	for a	apea m un	spect	tacula	ar 201	ifference 16. The second secon	at's p	bart-	bottor	n line	en. C	ds to	increa	ase ar	ound	7%,
of change Revenu	(per sh) Jes	10 Yrs. 3.55	5 Yrs 36 4.0	io1 ₩ 3	9-21	ly be	cause	first	quart	er sh	are n	et (ve	rsus	to \$2.	95 a s	share,			۲.		
"Cash Faming	W"	7.0	% 11.5 % 10.0	1% 7. 1% 8	0%	unfay	year-a vorabi	igo pe e in	erioa s noact	e sur of	ierea sut	irom	ially	expe	zuio cted	to fal	lai sj	ween	ng D \$15(uage) mil	lion
Dividen Book V	ds alue	3.5	5 5 C	6	.0%	warn	ier te	mpera	atures	on t	he na	tural	gas	and	\$170	millie	on. (1	hat v	vould	be 1	0.6%
Cal	OUARI	ERLY REV	VENJES (S	mØU)	Full	and event	ргора:	ne dis rred	stribu durin	tion o σat	perat	ions. vhen	Cus-	midne	r tha	n las f that	t yea	rs le e.) Pr	vel, i niects	ising have	tne e in-
endar	Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30	Dec.31	Year	tome	r_con	sump	tion	levels	are	norn	ally	cluded	d Eig	ght l	Flags	CHI	o pla	ant;	new
2013 2014	140.7 186.3	94.1 100.5	86.6 91.6	122.9	444.3 498.8	nigh.	To n Sente	nake i mher-	interi	rs Woi m ne	rse, ti rform	18 CON ADCE	npa- was	facilit	ies to n Kei	serve at Co	an e	lectric Dela	powe ware:	r ger Eas	iera-
2015	170.1	92.7	91.9	104.5	459.2	squee	ezed	partly	y by	fixed	pipe	eline	and	Shore	's sys	stem	reliab	ility ₁	orojec	t; coi	ntin-
2010	140.5	1102.5	110	125	515	stora	ge cos	sts as	sociat	ied wi	ith na sianif	tural	gas	ued 1	natura initi	al ga:	s infr ' and	astru I add	cture litiona	impi 1 ev	ove-
Cal-	EA	NINGS P	ER SHARE	A	Full	tion	of sal	es wil	li occi	ir du	ring t	he wi	nter	sions	of th	e com	pany	s nati	iral g	as di	istri-
endar 2012	Mar.31	20	Sep.30	Dec.31	Year	mont	hs, pl	us lov	ver re	tail p	ropan	e mar	gins	butior	1 and	trans	missie	on sys	tems.	Man	lage-
2014	1.21	.35	.22	.69	2.47	Even	thous	ih res	ults fo	or the	secon	d qua	rter	pendi	tures	it m	ight f	furthe	r inci	rease	the
2015	1.44	.35 52	.33	.56 .61	2.68	were	extra	stron	g and	we b	elieve	2016	will	level	of be	nrowi	ngs i	to su	pplem	ent	cash
2017	1.41	.45	.42	.67	2.95	end mav	on a advar	posit. Ice an	ive n ly ab	ote, 1 out 2	un-ye .5%. t	ar pra o \$2.7	onts /5 a -	provic The	ieu by divid	opera	vield	activit now	ues. T es f	s be	low
Cal-	QUART	ERLY DM	DENOS PA	L0 B∎ Duodi	Full	share			1				a Far	the a	ivera	ge o	all	equi	ties i	n V	alue
2012	Mar.51 23	<u>JUN.30</u> 23	<u>380.30</u> 243	10ec.31	ivar Q5	Brig 2017	nter i	thing etheb	s mig ess. T	gnt b Chat d	e in : naght	store to rei	tor flect	Line's	s Nat	ural is u	Gas iell m	utilif overed	y gra I hv	oup.	But
2013	.243	.243	.257	.257	1.00	growi	ing be	nefits	from	the A	April,	2015	pur-	earnir	igs, a	nd fi	iture,	stead	ly hik	ies a	re a
2014 2015	.257 .27	.257 .27	.27 .288	27	1.05	chase	of A	spire	Energ	y. Ne	w pro	jects	(see	good	possit	bility.	Mear	while	, the	stoc	k is
2016	288	.288	.305	.305	N 114	vorab	ile we	ather	patte	erns v	Gen vould	obvio	usly	Frede	rick L	. Har	ris, IL	U Det	cembe	r 2, 2	016
A) Diute	d shrs, E	xcludes	nonrecum	ing items	: (B) Di	vidends	vistorical	y paid in	early Jar	wary, (C) In mõ	ons, adju	sted for s	split.		Com	pany's F	inancial	Strength		8++
2, d23¢; ed opera	:08, 37¢; ations: '0:	; 15,6¢. 3, d9¢; '(Excludes 34, d1¢. }	discontin Next earn	- April - ment	Juay, an plan. Da	a Octobe rect stock	r, = Divá k ourcha	send reir se plan	west- avail-						Stoc	k's Price Growth	Stability Persiste	nce		80 90
igs repor	t due ear	ty Feb.	inte meen		able.	الد معد	ad from 1	nurce: h	Sound in	ha mish	a and ir	maint -	ilia ishat un	mantice of	sou bied	Eam	ings Pre	dictabilit	ý		95
HEPUBLI	SHER IS N	OT RESP	ONSIBLE FI	OR ANY EF	RORSOF	OWSSIO	NS HEREL	N. This put	र्थ स्टब्स स्ट रहेर्टराज ह	strictly for s	žtšenos,	2010 DOI: 1	commercia	, internal u	se. No ps	i To si	ubscrib	e call 1	-800-V	ALUEL	.INE

ŧ

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 4 of 9 1.7

NE	WJ	ERS	EYR	ES.	VYSE-I	IJR	5	Rice	33.5	10 P/E RAT	ю 19,	7 (Irail Mad	ing: 20.9 ian: 16.0	RELATIV P/E RAT	њ 1.0	3 DIV C YLD	3.0)%	/ALU LINE	E	
THE	INESS	3 Lowers	110/22/16	High: Low:	16.4 13.6	17.7 13.8	18.8 15.2	20.6 12.3	21.2 15.0	22.0 16.7	25.2 19.8	25.1 19.3	23.8 19.5	32.1 21.9	34.1 26.8	38.9 30.5			Targe 2019	t Price 2020	Range
SAFE	FY MCM	Raised!	91506	LEGE	NDS 00 x Dividi videot ha la	ends p sh	. L	1 96253	1793			<u> </u>	<u> </u>								
BETA	.80 (1.00	i = Market)	110120410	3-for-2 s	elative Pric påt 308	e Stength				<u> </u>							1		<u> </u>		
2)19-21 P	ROJECTI	ONS .nn'i Total	Options: Shaded	yat 3415 Yes Farea indic	etes reces	noiz	10.000 1949-1999					\leftarrow		2-10-1	114 ¹² 16					1 40
High	Price 30	Gain {-10%}	Return Nil		[3-101-2			5.000	1411111	11-14[[1]]*	ի դերել	լ Գեւյլույ						+30 +25 25
Insid	er Deci	sions	-470		g	ansasa1.1.	, 1, 1 ^{, 1} , 111		The state	1)1,11111,1							ļ		<u> </u>		15
to Bay	J F M 0 0 0	1 A M J 0 D D 0	3 A L		1					******	******	¹ ********	20- 24		********		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		10
Lo Sel		Decisio	000	<u> </u>						1	<u>}</u>	10					}	% тот	RETUR	N 10/16	-7.5
ta Bay	422344 117	102315	202215	Percen	t 30	ļ								 		1		íyr.	STOCK 10.3	NOEX 6.4	F
lo Sel Hors (D	94 } 49713	114 51216	107 52551	traded	Ĩŏ	mhin	thint	llolll		Intaa					Halluh	llimat		3 ут. 5 ут.	62,4 70,7	15.7 76,0	+
2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005 38 10	2006 39.81	36.31	45.37	31.17	2010 32.05	2011 38 30	2012	38.38	2014	2015 32.09	2016	2017	Revenue	S Der sh	18, LLC A	19-21 29.85
1.00	1.06	1.07	1.19	1.25	1,31	1.37	1.22	1.81	1.58	1.63	1.70	1.88	1.93	2.73	2.52	2.45	2.50	"Cash Fl	ow" per s	ih	2.85
.38	39	.10	.19	.43	.45	.48	.10 .51	1.35 .56	1.20 .82	.68	.72	.77	.81	2.00	1.10 .93	1.01 .\$3	1.75	Div'ds D	eci'd per	sh ⊂∎	1.05
.62 4.14	.55 4.40	4,35	5.13	.72 5.62	.64 5.30	,64 7,50	,73 7.75	88. 8.64	8.29	1.05 8.81	1.13 9.35	1.26 9.80	1,33	1.52	3.76 12.99	1.70	1.75 14.55	Cap'i Sp Book Val	ending pe we per sh	rsh D	1.80 17.40
79.17	79.99	83.00	81.70	83.22	82.64	82,88	83.22	84.12	83.17	82.35	82.89	83.05	83,32	84.20	85.19	85.88	86.00	Common	Shs Out	st'g ^E	86.00
.95	.73	03.	.80	,81	8.01 89,	,87	1,15	.74	.89	.95	1.05	1.07	.90	.62	.84	1.17		Relative	P/E Ratio	0	.90
4.4%	4.2%	3.9%	3.7%	3.3% He	3.1%	3.2%	3.0%	3.3%	3.5%	3.7%	3.3%	3.4%	3.7%	3.5%	3.1%	2.9%	2350	Avg Ann Revenue	1 Div'd Yi	eid A	3.6%
Total I	lebt \$122	23.8 m 3, C	lue in 5 Y	rs \$321.9 t \$25.4 m	9 m 01.	78.5	65.3	113.9	101.0	101.8	106.5	112.4	113.7	178.9	153.7	138.1	150	Net Profr	t (\$mill)		180
Incl. \$	3.2 ml.	capitalized	l leases.	ost coviac	270	38.9% 2.4%	38.8% 2.2%	37.8% 3,0%	27.1% 3.9%	41.4% 3,9%	30.2% 3.5%	7.1% 5.0%	25.4% 3.6%	30.2% 4.7%	28.3% 5.6%	32.0% 7.3%	32.0% 6.4%	Income I Net Profit	ax Rate t Margin		32.0% 7.0%
7,5x) Pensle	n 45501		64 m71	0.00101	ugu.	34.8% 85.2%	37,3% 82.7%	38,5%	39,8% 60.2%	37.2% 62.8%	35.5% 64.5%	39.2% 61.8%	36.6%	38,2% 61.8%	43,2%	43.0% 57.0%	43.0% 57.0%	Long-Ter	m Debt R	atio atio	40.5% 59.5%
Pld St	nck None		Ot	lig. \$394	.4 m≊≣.	954.0	1028.0	1182.1	1144.8	1154.4	1203.1	1339.0	1400.3	1564,4	1950.6	2085	2200	Total Car	oital (\$mil	Ŋ	2495
Comm	on Stock	86 150 2	80 shs		ŀ	934,9 9.6%	9/0.9	1017.3	1064.4 9.7%	1135./ 9.7%	1295.9 9.7%	1484.9 9.2%	1643,1 9.0%	1884.1	2128.3 8.6%	7.5%	2215 8.0%	Return or	i (șmili) 1 Total Ca	p'l	2350
as of 8 MARK	/1/16 ET CAP:	\$7.9 billio	on illid C	anì		12.6% 12.6%	10.1%	15.7% 15.7%	14.6% 14.6%	14.0% 14.0%	13.7% 13.7%	13.8%	12.8% 12.8%	18.3% 18.3%	13.9% 13.9%	11.6% 11.6%	12.0% 12.0%	Return or Return or	1 Shr. Equ 1 Com Ea	nity uitu	12.0% 12.0%
CURR	NT POS	ITION	2014	2015 6	5/30/16	6.3%	3.5%	9.5%	7.2%	6.7%	6.2%	6,2%	5.2%	11.0%	6.8%	4.6%	5.0%	Retained	to Com E	q	6.0%
Casn Other	ssets	6	2.2 80.5	4.9 539.6	94.8 509.9	BUSIN	64% SS: Ne	40% Autorsev	Resource	52% ces Com	is a ho	55%	59% moany	40%	tial and e	ario 1 Shibele	38% 1111, 65%	All Dry os incentiv	a oroxyar	ns), N.J	- 30% Natur
Currer	t Assets	6	82.7	544.5	604.7	providin and in	g retail/w	holesale yn the (energy s	vcs, to ou	ustomers Englage	in New J Land C	lersey, anada	ral Energi	y subsid	Rary prov	rides un es 2015	egulated den rate	retal\\	desale las 991	natural emols
Accts Debt E	Payable ue	3	30.3 2 35.5	273.2	216.0 256.0	New Je	rsey Nat	ural Gas	had abo	ut 512,30	X0 custor	ners at 9	V30/15 Fiscal	Off./dir. o	inn abou	nt 1.4% c	f commo	n (12/15 NI Add	Proxy). C	hmn.,	CEO &
Currer	t Liab.	$\frac{1}{7}$	91.1	85.4 136.1	601.5	2015 vo	lume: 34	1 bal, cu	fL (14%	interrupt	de, 21%	resident	ial and	Wall, NJ	07719. 1	el: 732-	938-1480). Web: w	ww.nýres	OUTCES.	xom.
ANNU/	G. COV.	104 S Past	07% 7 Pas	50% t Est'd	13-15	New	Jers	ey R ating	esou env	rces ironn	faced 1ent	ad in fis	iffi- scal	duction This v	on of a was in	almos 1 line	t 10% with o	, to \$: our ex	1.61 p pectat	er sl ion.	are.
of thang Reven	e (per sh) Les	10 Yrs. 1.5%	\$¥rs % <u>1</u> .0	i. toʻ1)% -4	9-21 .0%	2016	(end)	led Š	epter	nber a dou	30th)	. Ind	eed,	That	said, for th	, we	have	adju	sted woon	our (out-
Eamin	F107/ 39 14s	0.57 7.59 7.09	6 7.0 6 6.5 6 7 0	1% J. 1% J.	.0%	rever	nues	and	earnir	igs_tl	nis p	ast y	ear.	poised	i to	log a	rebo	und i	n rev	enue	s of
Book \	akie	8.0	6.5	× 7	.0%	the	s mo stock	re, su has	regisi	ir Sep tered	a me	r revi odest	1ew, 5%	to new	23%, NJN	to 34 VG cu	stome	er acco	aue unts.	Man	age-
Year Ends	Dec.31	Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30	Fisca] Year	pullb down	ack, l in tl	ikely ne ret	as a r ail/wh	eflecti 10lesal	ion of le ene	the sl rgy b	low- usi-	ment count	estim s will	ates be a	rough dded	ly 24, betwe	000-2 en fis	7,000 scal 2	ac- 2017
2013 2014	736.0 878.4	960.9 1579.6	767.5 688,3	733.7	3198.1 3738.1	ness.	Revea	nues d	leclin bas	ed mo	re tha	n 30% 3 hill	6 on Ion	and 2 divisi	019, 1 00 гес	Elsew	here,	the re	gulate fara	ed ut te re	ility duc-
2015	824.1	1013.1	458.5 393.2	438.3 2 469.2	2734.0	This	large	ly ste	mmed	i fron	n the	warn	ner-	tion a	s wel	i as a	bill c	redit,	that	will 1	have
2017	560	690	510	590	2350	acros	s NJI	ai wea Ks sei	vice	territo	ns tha ory. Th	it exis	end	heatir	ig cus	tome	i iowe	ring a	a bill a	about	2%
Year Ends	Dec.31	Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30	Fiscal Year	was : natui	furthe cal ga	er exa	cerba t com	ted by modit	y the	fallof :es w	f of hen	annua line y	ally. T vith t	'his h he cu	elps t rrent	o put natui	rates al ga	more s pri	e in cing
2013 2014	.43 .47	.82 1.79	.12 .05	d.01 d.23	1.37 2.08	comp challe	ared	to 20	15's 1 Nour	evels.	Desp	ite th oral (iese Gas	enviro nickel	onmen	nt. Fir	hally, 117 sh	we ha	we tri	imme imate	dă
2015 2016	.65 .58	1.16 .91	.03 .13	d.06 d.02	1.78 1.61	(NJN	G), re	gulat	ed ut	ility i	ousine	ss ad	ded	\$1.75	placi	ng it	near	the to	p end	lofn	ian-
2017	.60	.95	.17	.03	1.75	0,170 bit m	ore th	custo an 55	mer % of	those	ns in came	2016 from 1	new	ageme of \$1	.65-\$1	.75.	iy iss This y	would	repro	ce ra esent	an
Cal- endar	Mar.31	LALT DIVE Jun.30	Sep.30	Dec.31	Full Year	const front.	ructio the	n. ∹St shar	ill, c pdo	on th wntur	e pro n in	ofitabi volu	lity mes	annua We tl	il incr iink	ease o most	of alm inve	ost 9% stors'	6. fund	ls co	uld
2012 2013	.19	.19 .20	.19	.40	.97 .60	weigh	ied or	n boti	i fixe fact	d- an	d var	iable-	cost	be be	d NI	utiliz Rie	ed el	sewh	ere. N Iside	Veutr	ally
2014	.21	.21	.21	.23	.86	ticked	1 20 b	asis p	oints	highe	r, whe	n viev	wed	based	on ou	ir pro	jection	is. An	d the	divid	end
2016	.24	.24	.24	255	.~~	as a j these	percer facto	itage rs eq	or the uated	top I to a	n ear	ombir nings	re-	yield i <i>Bryar</i>	is a bi 1 <i>J. Fo</i>	u ngn ong	LIOUTS	L_{De}	.y. cemba	er 2, 1	2016
A) Fisca B) D3ut	l year en	ds Sept 3	30th	at sum to	(C) Di Anni	vidends Juty, and	historica October	y paid in	eady Jar divid nak	1. 11 1 in 14	i≇ion, \$4 ∋1 in mi%	82/share	sted for a	solits		Com	pany's F K's Price	inancial Stability	Strength		A+ 85
otal due amings	to chang report du	e in share le late Jar	s outstan	ding. Nex	t 40 12 (0) In	2. = Divid	end reim gulatory	estment assets in	plan ava 2015: \$4	lable.	-1 est drots					Price	Growth	Persiste dictabilit	nce V		55 55

e 1

. .

• 2016 Value Line, Inc. All rights reserved. Facula markets is channel from sources believed to be relative and is provided without waranties of any kind. THE PUBLISHER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ERRORS OR OMSSKONS HEREIN. This publication is strictly for subscriber's own, non-commercial internal use. No part of it may be reproduced, reside, stored or transmitted in any prited, stored from, or used for generating or marketing any prited or electronic publication, service or product.

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 5 of 9

N.W.	NAT	['[(GAS) Nyse	-NWN		F F	recent Price	57.9	15 P/E RAT	ю 26.	3 (Tra≣ Hadi	ing: 26.5 an: 18.0)	RELATIV P/E RAT	te 1.3	8 ON D YLD	3.2	2%	/ALU LINE	E	
TIMELINES	ss 3 i	Lowered 8	/12/16	High:	39.6	43.7	52.8	55.2	46.5	50.9	49.0	50.8	46.6	52.6 40.1	52.3	66.2 48 9			Targe	Price	Range
SAFETY	1	Raised 3/1	805	LEGE	NDS	1 02.0		57.7	51.1	"'. '	00.0	1.0		, ,,,,	76.0	10.0]		2019	2020	12021
TECHNICA	il 2 i	Raised 12/	2/15	· [. ₫	iu x tayat Videi by ir	ands o si terest Rate			1993 1993							{		·	}	<u> </u>	+100
BETA .65	(1.00 = M	skel)		Options	azwe rik Yes Jama into	e 318 yn	÷~		1933			1					ļ	ļ			±64
2019-2	21 PROJ	ECTIO	NS N'I Total	JANNA	CICO VARA		त्त्रीं सित्ताः	<u>الي. ا</u>		1.1111111111) DPREAT	1			 	III II					- 48
Price Price	ta Ga	in E	Return		partin.	allut _{inti} ,		۱. <u>۱</u>		[1		1			<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		32
Low 50	(-1	5%)	Nil			····				**********	10.00		<u>ang i</u>					ļ			-24
Insider D	ecision	1\$ U	1 4 5					超短短期	2016 1910		1		····			4.1 44					16 L
to Bay O	000	000	000					al criteri		I	<u> </u>	:						· · ·			- 12
1554 0	040	27	iŏŏ		191	14.1.4		2715101830 7215101830		ļ	<u> </u>		1000					\$ 101	RETUR	N 10/16	ЬВ
Institutio	nai Dei A241	CISION: (Q%(S	5 202315	Barraga	. 16 -			lle da]	THIS V STOCK	l arthi' Ndex	L
to Boy to Seil	81 65	98 65	118 80	shares	10	հերեր				l Satallithe		dullah	lik. il		Lihim			1 1 yr. 3 yr.	27.3 51.8	6.4 15.7	Ŀ.
HUS 003 16	6813 1 004 [2	5946	16937	2004	2005		2007	2009	2000	2010		2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	5 yr.	51,2 10,2 01	76.0	0.91
21.09 20	25.78	25.07	2003	25.69	33.01	37.21	39.13	39 16	38 17	30.58	31.72	27 14	2013	2014	2010	2345	25 15	Revenue	s ner sh	N. LLO	28.40
3.68	3.86	3.65	3.85	3.92	4.34	4.76	5.41	5.31	5.20	5.18	5.00	4.94	5.04	5.05	4.91	4.50	4.85	"Cash Fi	ow" per s	ah 🔡	6.05
1,79	1,88	1.62	1.76	1.88	2,11	2.35	2.78	2,57	2,83	2,73	2,39	2.22	2.24	2,16	1.9ô	2.15	2.35	Earnings	per sh /		3.15
3.46	323	3.11	4.90	1.30	3.48	1,39	4.48	1.52	1.60	9.35	3.76	1./9	1.83	4.40	1.00	1.87	1.58	Cao'l Sp	ecro per : endino ne	sa 🔤	6.35
17.93 1	8.56	18.88	19.52	20.64	21.28	22.01	22.52	23.71	24.88	26.08	26,70	27.23	27.77	28,12	28.47	27.40	28.40	Book Va	ue per sh	D.	30.55
25.23 2	523	25.59	25.94	27.55	27.58	27.24	26.41	26.50	26.53	28.58	26.76	26.92	27.08	27.28	27.43	29.00	29.00	Common	Shs Out	st'g C	28.00
.81	.66	.94	.90	10.7	.91	8.61 68.	10.7 .89	1.09	1.01	1.08	13.0	∠1.1 1,34	10.4	1.09	23.1 1.19	ooxa tigi Value	res are Line	Relative	PÆ Ratio		1.05
5.6% 5	5.1%	4.5%	4.6%	4.2%	3.7%	3.7%	3.1%	3.3%	3.7%	3.6%	3.8%	3.8%	4.2%	4.1%	4.0%	estin	ates	Ávg Ánn	'I Div'd Yi	eid	3.7%
CAPITAL S	TRUCT	JRE as	of 9/30/	16 		1013.2	1033.2	1037.9	1012.7	812.1	848.8	730.6	758.5	754.0	723.8	680	730	Revenue	s (\$mill)		865
LT Debt \$5:	30.2 mäl.	≊. 04 . โ.Ť	e in o i Interest	rs \$3000.0 t \$45.0 m	31. 1	65.2 36.3%	74.5	68.5 16.9%	38.3%	72.7	63.9 40.4%	59.9 42.4%	60.5 40.8%	58.7 41.5%	53.7	62.0 35.0%	68.0 35.0%	Rel Profi	t (\$mill) ar Rale		86.0 35 0%
/Total intere	stower	ane 3.5	ivi.			6.4%	7.2%	6.6%	7.4%	8.9%	7.5%	8.2%	8.0%	7.8%	7.4%	9.2%	9.3%	Net Profi	Margin		10.9%
(1012 11010		ugo, o.e	~~) . • · · ···			45.3%	46.3%	44.9%	47.7%	46.1%	47.3%	48.5%	47.6%	44.8%	42.5%	43.0%	43.0%	Long-Ter	m Debt R	atio	43.0%
Pension As	sets-12	115 \$24	9.4 m.a. Oo	lig. \$445	.6 m 🛛	53.1%	53.1%	55.1% 1140 4	52.3%	53.9% 1284 8	52.7%	51.5% 1424 7	52,4%	55.2% 1389.0	57.5%	57.0%	57.0%	Common Total Car	EQUITY R Mai (Smit	100	57.0%
Pid Stock N	one					1425.1	1495,9	1549.1	1670.1	1854.2	1893.9	1973.6	2062,9	2121.6	2182.7	2270	2360	Net Plan	(\$mH)	v	2655
Common S	tock 27,	557,756	shares			7.1%	8.5%	7.7%	7.3%	7.0%	6.2%	5.7%	5.8%	5.8%	5.5%	5.5%	5.0%	Return o	n Tolal Ca	pʻi	7.5%
as of 10/21/	/16					10.9%	12.5%	10.9%	11.4%	10.5% 10.5%	8,9%	8.2% 8.2%	8,1%	7.6%	6.5% 6.9%	8.0% 8.0%	8.0%	Return of	1 Shr. Equ 1 Com Ea	uty utv	10.5%
MARKET C	AP \$1.6	billion	(Mid Ca	ip)	F	4.5%	6.0%	4.5%	5,0%	4.0%	2.4%	1.6%	1.5%	1.1%	.6%	1.0%	1.5%	Retained	to Com E	4	3.5%
CURRENT I	POSITIC)위 20	H 4	2015 9	v30/16	59%	52%	59%	56%	61%	73%	80%	81%	85%	92%	87%	80%	All Divids	to Net Pi	for	65%
Cash Asset	ls	353	9.5 3.1 3	4.2	6.2	BUSINE	ISS: Nor	thwest N	atural G	as Co. d	kstributes	natural :	gas to	Owns k	ind lead commist	erground	egenotz teintzubn	e Rev. 1	xeakdow neroodativ	n resid	ential, Nhar
Current Ass	sets	362	2.6 3	32.1	210.6	and in s	outrwest	t Washing	ton state	. Princip	al cities s	erved: Po	ortland	43%. Er	nploys 1.	, 22. //, Bia	ckRock	nc. ann	s 10.0%	of share	as; of-
Debi Due	ble	91 274	1.4 1.7 2	73.2	55.9 259.9	and Eug	ene, OR	; Vancou	ver, WA. xivs das	Service supply i	area pop from Can	ulation: 2. action: ac	.5 m≣. ⊣⊔S	ficers an Orecon	d directo Address	rs, 2.1% 220 NN	(4/16 pro M 201 A	bxy). CEC we≐ Pod): Gregg I land OR	S. Kanto 97209	r. inc.: Tele-
Other Current Lial	b.	<u>100</u> 469	<u>3.3 1</u> 3.4 4	09.5	86,9 402,7	produce	rs; has t	ransporta	ya gaa pou uôµi	s on No	rihwest F	ipeline s	rstern.	phone: 5	03-226-4	211. Inte	met: ww	พ.กุงกลม	rai.com.		, icic-
Fix, Chg, C	ov.	321	% 3	00%	350%	Nort	hwes	t Nat	ural	Gas	repor	ted 1	ack-	projec	t will	provi	ide up	to 12	20 mil	lion c	ubic
ANNUAL RI	ATES :	Past N Yrs	Pasi 5 Yrs	t Est'd' la's	13-15	luste	r thi	ird-qu	larte	r res	ults.	Reve	nues	feet i	of ga	s per	day	thro	ugh a	13- 122	mile
Revenues Cash Flow	т, . г	20%	-5.5	% <u>1</u>	0%	modli	y pri	ces. S	till, t	he co	mpany	had	bet-	lion.	The c	ompa	ny ha	is alre	eady s	starte	d to
Earnings		1.0%	-5.0	16 T.	0%	ter g	ross	profit	s, aid	led b	y str	onger	gas	raise	the	funds	requ	ired	throug	gh eg	uity
Book Value	2	3.0%	2.5	% 1.	.5%	storag	ge re ed du	sults.	Upe the ou	ratiną	g exp	enses e boti	-nr tom-	sales, share	ası s. la	t WIII rgelv	sell pav	up t ing l	o I.U or t	i mu	uion early
Cal- Q	NARTER	LY REVE	NUES (\$	m私)	Full	line r	esults	s were	hurt	by a	\$1.2 r	nillion	en-	builde	ut of	the	syster	n. Th	e faci	lity i	s on
endar Mai	r.31 JU 79 42	n.30/S 17	ep.30 89.2	Dec.31	Year 759.5	viron	menta d loss	al re	media	ition nd to	char	ge. '	This	track 2018-	tob 2019	e in and	servio will	e by allow	the '	winte	r of able
2014 293	3.4 13	3.1	87.2	240.3	754.0	Still,	coole	er we	ather	is e	xpecto	d in	the	bump	in ea	rning	5.	311011	101		
2015 261	1.7 13 15 0	8.3 9.2	93.1 1 87.7	230.7	723.8	fourth	n qua	arter,	which	i sho	uld h	elp_d	lrive	The o	comp	any r	aised	i its g	uarte	rly ć	livi-
2017 255	5 13	õ	95.0	250	730	reven 2016	ues fuil-	vear	. we estim	ate h	е 1014 мура	/erea nickel	our	uend marks	to the	61st	a sh ann	are Jal in	crease	. 70). 2 for	the
Cal-	EARIN	KOSPER	SHARE	A	Ful	\$2.15	a sha	are.			, <u>,</u>	~		divide	nd	ristoc	rat.	The	yield	rem	ains
endar Mar 2013	1.31 JU 40	n.30 S A9	ep.30 (107	Year 2 24	Near	-term	i rest	ilts sl	he T	i ben	efit fi	rom	avera	ge for	a ut	ility, mtil /	and w	viil lił ist fac	eiy g	grow
2014 1.	40	.04	d.32	1.04	2.16	ket.	Unen	iployn	nent	there	has	contir	nued	es on	i line	. Too	, higl	her n	arket	inte	rest
2015 1.0	04 . 33	.08	d.24 d 29	1.08	1.96	to dro	op, ar	nd con	struc	tion i	n the	area	con-	rates	are e	xpecte	ed, wl	hich s	hould	decr	ease
2017 1	<u>35</u>	.10	d.25	1.15	2.35	tinue: were	s to un 20	oe sti)% ve	rong, ar ove	as bi grvea	unain r. Too	g peri the c	onits com-	ıne ar Shar	peal (es of	ui the Nori	siow- thwes	growi st Na	ng div tural	Gas	do
Cal- Q	UARTERL	Y DIVIDE	NOS PAR	0 ⁸ ∎	Full	pany	shou	ild c	ontinu	ie to	ben	efit f	rom	not 1	lold	much	ı apr	eal a	at the	e rec	ent
endar Har	1.31 Jui 15 4	n,30 Sa 45	ep.30 i	Uec.31	Year 1 70	decen	t con	versio	n effe	orts, v bess	which	ough	t to	quota	tion,	They Targe	are	tradi	ng w	ithin and	our
2013 .45	•J .4 55 .4	-10 . 55 .	455	.450	1.83	ly allo	usage w for	bette	r earr	nese (nings	in 201	7.	IVC-	yield	does	not s	tand	outa	mong	utili	ties.
	50 .4	60. 65	.460 465	.465	1.85	Mear	whil	e, th	e Mis	st ex	pansi	on pl	ant	Long-	term	accou	nts w	ould	be be	st se	ved
2015 .40	50 .4 675 .4	675 .	4675	.4070	1.00	nas from	recei Por	ved Hand	its i Gen	iotice eral	e to Elecí	proc ric	eed This	waitir John	ig Ior E. Sei	a dip <i>bert 1</i>	т pri П	ice. De	cemhe	r 2. 2	016
(A) D&ted e#	aminos r	xer shar	e, Exch	ides non	(B) D	vidends I	listorica?	y paid in	mid-Feb	Nary, 1 A	D) Includ	es intano	ioles, In	2015: \$3	370.7 mi	Com	pany's F	inancial	Strength		A
recurring item	ns: '00, id: Mar	\$0,11;	'06, (\$0	(08); '08	, May, I	August, a	nd Nove	moer. t dan av	dahla		on, \$13.5	2/snare.				Stoc	k's Price	Stability	100		95 25
Next earnings	report o	iue in e	arly Feb	mary.	(C) In	mittions.		- prost 1240		.						Eam	ings Pre	dictabilit	y	- Contraction	85
2016 Yabe THE OPPLICATE	Line, Int.	Al not	ts reserv	ed Facture	a materia	l is obtain	ed front	sources be	sered to	te reiso	le and is	provided n	vithout his	naries d	any kind	Toc	hearib		000 1/	ALLICT	ME -

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 6 of 9

۰.,

1.12

THE PUBLISHEN IS NUT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY EXOLASIS OR CONSISTANS HEREPE. THIS DEDICERON IS STREET OF SUBSIDIES S OWN, DOF-COMMEDIA, FRAME WE NO PAR If it may be reprodued, resea, street or brashted in any prited, electronic or other form, or used for generating or marketing any primet or electronic publication, service or product

SOUTH	I JEF	RSEY	' IND	S, N	YSE-sj		recent Price	32.9	5 PÆ RAT	ю 22 .	4 (Trail Nest	ing: 20.7 ian: 17,0)	RELATIN P/E RAT	ъ́ 1.1	7 PAVO	3.3	3%	/ALU Line	E	
TINELINESS	2 Lowers	5 10/28/16	High:	16.2	17.1	20.6	20.3	20.4	27.1	29.0	29.0	31.1	30.6	30.4	32.9			Targe	t Price	Range
SAFETY	2 Lowered	11/4/91	LEGE	NDS	1 12.0	10.0	12.0	10.0	10.0	21.4	22.8	25.3	20.9	21.Z	22.1			2019	2020	2021
TECHNICAL	3 Lowered	11/18/15		80 x Divid Ided by Is	ends p.sh teresi Raji	. –	1 20(02/2) 1 20(02/2)		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	ļ	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	 						-60
BETA .60 (1.00) = Market)		2-for-1 sp	astre Pro Al 7405	ie Stength		la anna a Islandada								1				<u> </u>	+60
2019-21 P	ROJECTI	ONS	Octors:	var 5715 Yes	45.5.5		i Sanadia			Į								14.24		40
Price	Gain	Return	N18390	area mos	285 1025	Sien j		18-6 195-16		1			1000 mm	1100 20			1	*****		1 30
High 35	(+5%)	5% -2%	· · · · ·				10022030		1111	7	1 minut			······	ļ		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	20
Insider Deci	slons			milion		իրեր	<u>4a"m</u>	million						ļ	ļ		ļ	L	<u> </u>	15
15By 0.00	4 A M J 0 0 0 0						سلفت شترا		,	***** *		*****								10
0,653 9 0 9	3001	000					10000			:			********	*•, <u>, , , , *•</u> ,	********				1 (1997) 1	-7.5
Institutional	Decisio	ns			ł		Sector and								1	}	\$ 101	THS V	N 10/16 1. ARITH."	1
42315 IABH 105	5 102916 5 109	XQX15 129	Percent	15	[. 5.	E		19,99 19,99			<u> </u>		1 vr.	stock 16.3	MDEX 6.4	┝
15 Sel 72	77	61	traded	5 +					111111	nhilli		In Ithatil	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	14			3 yr.	11.3	15.7 76.0	F
2000 2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2005	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	OVALL	ELBER	UB.LLC	19-21
11.22 17.65	10.35	13.17	14.75	15,89	15.88	16,15	16,18	14,19	15,48	13,71	11,18	11.18	12.98	13.52	12.40	12.80	Revenue	s per sh		15.10
.97 .95	1.0ô	1.12	1,22	1.25	1,75	1.60	1.74	1.85	2.10	2.23	2.34	2.48	2.67	2.42	2.45	2.55	"Cash Fl	ow" per	sh	2.95
.54 .57	.61	.68	.79	68.	1.23	1.05	1.14	1.19	1.35	1.45	1.52	1.52	1.57	1.44	1.45	1.50	Earnings	persh 4	4 45 8 4	1.80
1.11 1.41	1.74	1.18	134	1 60	120	,ər 94	1.04	1.83	279	3 20	.05 4 01	4.84	5.01	4.87	1.00	3.90	Cap'I Sp	ect u per anding ra	sn -=	5.10
3,62 3,91	4.84	5.63	6.20	6,75	7.55	8,12	8.67	9.12	9.54	10.33	11.63	12.64	13.65	14.62	16.90	18.30	Book Val	ue per si	C	21.50
48.00 47.44	48,83	52.92	55,52	57.96	59.65	59.22	59.46	59.59	59.75	60.43	63.3 1	65.43	68.33	70.97	80.00	82,00	Соттог	Shs Out	sl'g D	86.00
13,0 13,6	13,5	13.3	14,1	16,6	11,9 er	1/,2	15.9	15.0	16.8	18.4	16.9	18,9	18.0	17,9	Bold fig Value	ires are Lina	Avg Ann Dalathua	l P/E Ral DE Dalla	10	15.0 4 M
5.2% 4.7%	4.6%	4.3%	3.7%	3.0%	3.2%	2.8%	3.1%	3.4%	3.0%	2.8%	3.2%	3.1%	.85 3.4%	3.9%	estin	ates	Ava Ann'	i Div'd Yi	eld	4.5%
CAPITAL STRU	GTURE a	s of 9/30	16		\$31.4	956.4	962.0	845.4	925.1	828.6	706.3	731.4	887.0	959.6	990	1050	Revenue	s (\$mill)	-	1300
Total Debt \$127	0.8 ma. 0	lue in δ Y	rs \$1140	. 🕅 🕅	72.0	61.8	67.7	71.3	81.0	87.0	93,3	97.1	104.0	\$9.0	110	120	Net Profi	t (\$m)B)		150
fTotal interest co	m≊. L overace:€	.1 (nteres) 3.1x)	t \$25.0 m	9	41.3%	41.9%	47.7%	23.0%	15.2%	22.4%	10,8%		10,8%	5.9%	25.0%	25.0%	Income T	ax Rale		25.0%
					7.7%	6,5%	7.0%	8.4%	8.8%	10.5%	13.2%	13.3%	11.7%	10.3%	11.1%	11.4%	Het Profit	Largin	110	11.5%
Pansion Assets	12/15 S1	nnuairen: 184.8 m31.	ais \$.8 m	81.	55.3%	57.3%	60.8%	50,3% 63,5%	62.6%	40.3% 59.5%	43.0% 55.0%	40.178 54.9%	10.0% 52.0%	50.8%	41.57 58.5%	42.5%	Common	Enuity R	atio	43.0% 55.0%
		Ob	lig. \$254.	.2 m3).	801,1	839.0	848,0	856,4	910.1	1048.3	1337.6	1507.4	1791.9	2043.9	2300	2600	Total Cap	vital (\$mil	ŋ	3350
FIG SLOCK NORE	t de tro	er tester			920,0	\$48,9	982.6	1073.1	1193.3	1352.4	1578.0	1859,1	2134.1	2448.1	2580	2700	Net Plant	(\$mW)		3000
Common Stock	79,477,8	22 shs.			10.1%	8.6%	8.9%	9.0%	9.5% 44.2%	8.9% 12.0%	7.4%	6.8%	6.4%	5.4% 0.54	5.5%	5.0%	Return of	n Tolal Ca	lp'I	5.0% • 0V
15 01 11/1/16	ta De la composition				16.3%	12.6%	13.1%	13.1%	14.2%	13.9%	12.7%	11.7%	11.2%	9.5% 9.5%	8.0%	8.0%	Return or	i Com Eq	uity	8.0%
MARKET CAP:	\$2.6 billio	m (llid C	ap)		10.2%	6,7%	6.7%	6.4%	7.1%	6.7%	5.8%	4.8%	4.3%	2.8%	2.0%	2.0%	Retained	to Com E	q	2.0%
CURRENT POS	ITION	2014	2015 9	/30/16	37%	48%	49%	51%	50%	52%	55%	59%	61%	71%	77%	75%	All Divids	to Net P	rot	75%
Cash Assets	5	4.2 62.5 A	3.9	6.9	BUSINE	SS: Sou	th Jersey	/ Industri	es, Inc. i:	a holda	ng compa	ny. Its	Jersey E	Exploratio	n, Marin	a Energ	, South	Jersey F	inergy S	ien/ce
Current Assets	- 5	66.7 4	31.3	357.8	373,100	custom	ers in Ne	W Jersey	is south	em coun	ties. Gas	167.6-	less that	n 1% of	osuean. Commo	nas au n shæes	: BlackR	lock Inc	5. Obju 10.5%	: The
Accis Payable Debt Due	23	73.0 1 95.6 4	86.4 61.2	141.1 462.1	nue mix	'15; res	idential, 4	5%; соп	mercial,	22%;∞	generatio	n and	Vanguar	d Group,	Inc., 7.7	% (3/16	proxy). P	res. & C	EO: Mid	hael J.
Other	1	81.6 1	84.9	209.2	etectric clude: S	generatik outh Jen	xa, 12%; sev Enerc	inxusina iv. South	Jersev F	ion-uurry Resource	operato s Group.	ns in- South	Renna. 68037, 1	inc.: NJ el.: 609-l	. Addres 561-9000	s: n So . Internel	un Jers t www.sä	ey Plaza ndustries	1, ⊦oiso i.coai.	ก, ณ
Fix. Chg. Cov.	4	32% 4	96% 96%	572%	Shar	es of	Sout	h Ter	sev T	ndus	tries	are	South	Iers	ev Ga	s is a	also to	reco	ver S	74.5
ANNUAL RATE	S Past	Past	t Est'd '	13-'15	trad	ing r	ear a	an al	l-tim	e hig	h pr	ice.	millio	n in	safet	y an	d reli	ability	y inv	rest-
of change (per sh) Revenues	10 Yrs. -1.5%	5¥rs. % –4.0	. 10'l: % 3.	9-21 0%	The c	onipa	ny po	sted i	mpres	sive r	esults	for	ment	not	prev	iously	refle	cted	in r	ates
"Cash Flow"	7.5	6 6.0	× 2	5%	the c	o perf	noer i format	intern	n. In SFF	ls Wa nerov	s iarį Servi	geiy	tion	gn a the ut	base : Hity y	rate a vill is	iajusti sue ci	ment. Istom	in a ers a	001- \$10
Dividends	9.0	6 9,5	% 6.	5%	This	line b	enefit	ed fro	m str	ong p	roduci	tion	millio	n cre	dit, n	nainly	due	to lov	ver-th	an-
BOOK VALUE		A 0.0		0%	from	its s	olar f	leet a	ind ir	nprov	ed SF	REÇ	expec	ted w	holesa	le gas	s costs			280 P.
endar Mar.31	JUN.30	Sep.30	Dec.31	Full Year	(Sola)	r Ken erv re	ewable lated	e Ene ta the	rgy C	redit) down	prices of an	s. A en-	we e: menf	xpect to l	neal ate da	tny o ecade	perat	ing is utili	mpro tv shu	we-
2013 255.6	122.6	128.8	224,4	731,4	ergy	facilit	y and	inves	tment	tax c	redits	as-	furthe	er ben	efit fi	om i	ifrasti	uctur	e inv	est-
2014 350.2	133.3	122.4	281.1	887.0	sociat	ed w	ith s	olar	projec	t dev	elopm	ent	ment _.	and c	uston	ier ad	dition	s. Na	tural	gas
2016 333.0	154,4	219.1	283.5	990 990	also I Grou	pooste	d rest d - nH	itts h litv	ere. B South	oth S	J Ene	ergy Gas	remai ice te	ns th rritors	e Iuel Zand	OI Ch thie l	olce v	vitnin se eb	its s v blue	erv-
2017 350	175	200	325 1	050	repor	ted lo	wer o	perati	ng los	ses fo	or the	pe-	tinue	to ga	din fre	m cu	istome	er con	versi	ons.
Cal- EA	RNINGS PE	ER SHARE	A Don 24	Full	riod.	The	third	quai	ter l	s tra	dition	ally	Mean	while,	grow	th in	the r	umbe	er of	fuel
2013 76	16	402	62	150	weak Sout	ior th	e util	1ty. Cae 1	196 -	oceiter		au-	mana	gemer	1t CO d mo-	ntract	s aug ar ⊆⊺	gurs Enerc	weil w.Crv	101
2014 1.01	.15	d.05	.47	1.57	lator	y an	prova	il to	coni	inue	its	Ac-	Elsew	here.	SJ	Energ	ar og gy Se	rvices	s she	uid
2015 86	.03	d.07	.62	1.44	celer	ated	Infra	struc	ture	Repla	acem	ent	benefi	t fron	n the l	nealtl	iy perl	forma	nce o	f its
2010 .80	.12	105 Nij	.56	1.40	Prog	ram a	and to	o adju	ust ra	tes t	o refl	ect	energ	y proc	iuction	i asse	ts. ffere	a	പച	i
Cal- QUART	ERLY DAY	DENOS PAU	0 Ba	Full	ty to	inves	t un l	nts. 1 to \$30	1115 a 12.5 n	nows nillion	over	the	dend	vield	iy ste I. Mor	eover.	South	a go 1 Jers	ev ea	rns
endar Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30 I	Dec.31	Year	next i	five y	ears t	o cont	inue	the ac	celera	ted	favora	ble 🗍	marks	for	Safe	ty, F	linan	cial .
2012	.202	.202	423	.83	replac	cemen	it of a	aging	bare	steel	and on the second se	ast	Stren	gth, l	rice	Stabi	lity, a	and J	arni	ngs
2014	.237	.237	488	.96	mone	dural	s wiù sle. It	will a	suu I recove	µpe, r the≤	willen se inv	est-	is und	lerwh	elmin	ic caρ g at t	his iu	ams) ncture	e, foll	OW-
2015	.251	251	.515	1.02	ments	s tho	ugh a	nnua	l rate	adju	istmer	nts,	lng a	run-u	p in tl	ie sha	ire pri	ce.		
2010	the first of which will occur next October. Michael Napoli, CFA December 2, 2016																			
(A) Based on GAA	Based on GAAP egs. through 2006, eco- Exd. nonrecur. gain (loss): '01, \$0.07; '08, report due late February. (B) Divids paid early Company's Financial Strength A mic ens. thereafter, GAAP FPS: '07, \$1.05; S0.16; '09, (S0.22); '10, (\$0.24); '11, \$0.04; '12, And July, Oct, and late Dec. = Div, reinvest, Stock's Price Stability, S0																			
08, \$1.29, '09, \$0	mic egs. thereafter. GAAP EPS: '07, \$1.05; \$0,16; '09, (\$0.22); '10, (\$0.24); '11, \$0.04; '12, April, July, Oct, and late Dec. = Div, reinvest, Stock's Price Stability 90 1, \$1.29; '09, \$0.97; '10, \$1.11; '11, \$1.49; (\$0.03); '13, (\$0.24); '14, (\$0.11); '15, \$0.08, plan avail, (G ind, reg. assets, In 2015; \$521.0] Price Growth Persistence 40 10,10; '10, \$1,11; '11, \$1,49; (\$0.03); '13, (\$0.24); '14, (\$0.11); '15, \$0.08, plan avail, (G ind, reg. assets, In 2015; \$521.0] Price Growth Persistence 40 10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10,10; '10																			
12, \$1,49; 13, \$1 9 2016 Value Line	\$1.49; '13, \$1.28; '14, \$1.46; '15, \$1.52. [Egs. may not sum due to rounding. Next egs. [mil., \$7.34 per shr. (0) in mil., adj. for spit. Earnings Predictability 80																			
THE PUBLISHER IS I	VOT RESPO	NUSIBLE FO	DR ANY ER	RORS OF	OUVSSIO	VS HEREL other form,	IL This put or used for	Scation is a constant	strictly for s or markets	utiscriber's	OAR, DUR-	commercia crisc publica	l internal u	se. No par e or produc	IO SI	IDSCrib	e call 1	F-800-V	ALUEL	INE.

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 7 of 9

S	SOUTHWEST GAS NYSE-SWX							Recent Price	74.4	5 P/E RAT	ю 22,	4 (Trail	ing: 23,3 ian: 16,0)	RELATIV P/E RAT	5 1.1		2.5	5%	/ALU LINE	E	
TIME	LINESS	3 Losse	J 973¥16	High: Low:	28.1 23.5	39.4 26.0	39.9 26.5	33.3 21.1	29.5 17.1	37.3 26.3	43.2 32.1	46.1 39.0	56.0 42.0	64.2 47.2	63.7 50.5	79.6 53.5			Targe 2019	Price	Range
SAFE	TY	3 lowere 1 .	311491 	LEGE	NDS 00 x Divid	ends p sh		Casa and	1.50	<u> </u>		<u> </u>			<u> </u>		ļ	ļ			128
BETA	.75 €1.00	4 Lovere i=Markeli	d 11/18/16	000005	wded by in leatwe Pric Yes	nterest Rat se Strength						<u> </u>		ļ			1	<u> </u>		ļ	96
2	019-21 P	ROJECT	ONS	Shated	l area indic	ztes reces	son 🗍		1322 1763						م مر الم الم الم ال	1111111				[1 61
111-1	Price	Gain	Return					anter ante Anter anter ante	9053 1992					test III	1.44444						48
Low	55	(+5%)	-3%	<u> </u>		1111 ³	1	- 		Pi miliani	li.	- station					<u> </u>		-		-32
Insid	ler Decla JFL	Sions IAMJ	JAS				بهنساً		14			1 + + + ^{2 + 2} + 4 + 8 +		···· ···	·	**** ***		1	<u> </u>	İ	
to Day Options	0 0 0 0 8 20 10	0000	000		1						<u> </u>										- 10
Inst	008 tutional	Decisio	011 uns	1			1					1.1	1945 C. 1945 - 1945					\$ 101	RETUR	N 10/16	
to Buy	402311 99	i 102111 108	202515 111	Percen	it 15 - 10 -				207 304 - 1		<u> </u>				1.1.0			1 yr.	21.1	RDEX 6.4	E.
io Seil Hiftsiö	87 0) 37256	85 37942	102 37855	traded	5.					hiili tt			allata					3 yr. 5 yr.	44.8 110.0	15.7 76.0	-
2000) 2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	ογμι	ELNEP	J8.LLC	19-21
4,5	4,79	5.07	5.11	5.57	5.20	5.97	6.21	5.76	6.16	6.46	6.81	7.73	8.24	8.47	8.62	9.25	10.10	"Cash Fl	ow" per s	h	12.30
1.2	1 1.15	1.16	1.13	1.66	1.25	1.98	1.95	1.39	1.94	2.27	2.43	2.86	3.11	3.01	2,92	3.20	3.50	Earnings Dorde D	per sh A	oh But	4.50
7,0	8,17	8.50	7.03	8.23	7.49	8.27	7.96	6.79	4.81	4.73	8.29	8.57	7.66	8.53	10.30	11.25	11.75	CapilSp	ending per	er sh	13.10
16.8	2 17.27	17.91	18.42	19.18	19,10	21.58	22.98	23.49	24.44	25.62	26,66	28.35	30.47	31.95	33.61	34.90	36.20	Book Val	ue per sh	et'a C	40.40
18.0	1 19.0	19.9	19.2	14.3	20,6	15,9	17,3	20.3	12.2	14.0	15.7	15.0	15.8	17,9	19,4	Bold fig	vres are	Avg Ann	1 P/E Rat	0	15.0
1.0-	.97 	1.09	1.09 3.8%	.76 3.5%	1.10 3.2%	.86 2,6%	.92 2.6%	1.22 3.2%	.81 4.0%	.89 3.2%	.98 2.8%	.95 2.8%	.89 2.7%	.94 2.7%	.98 2.9%	Vakse estin	Line ates	Relative Avg Ann	PÆ Ratio ¶ Di√d Yi	eld	.95 3.6%
CAPI1 Total	AL STRU Debt \$164	CTURE	as of 9/30 Due in 5 '	V16 Yrs \$525.)	0 m 11.	2024.7	2152.1	2144.7	1893.8 87.5	1830.4	1887.2	1927.8	1950,8	2121.7	2463.6	2525	2625	Revenue Nat Profi	s (\$m谢) t (\$m郞)		3200
LT De	bt \$1592.	9 mail 1	Tintere	st \$72.0 m	ill. Can'll	37.3%	36.5%	40.1%	34.0%	34.7%	36.2%	36.2%	35.0%	35.7%	36.4%	35.0%	35.0%	Income T	ax Rate	1.4.1	35.0%
Leasa	s, Uncap	talized A		kals \$7.0	mill.	4.0%	3.9%	2.8%	4.6%	5.7%	6.0%	6.9%	7.4%	6.7% 52.4%	5.6%	6.1%	6.7%	Net Profit	t Margin m Daht R	alio	7.5%
reas	0(1 M2240	-1410 ð	Oblig	\$1117.4	mal.	39.4%	41.9%	44.7%	48.5%	50.9%	56.8%	50.8%	50.6%	47.6%	50.7%	51.0%	51.0%	Common	Equity R	atio	51.0%
Prd St	ock None) 	4 1			2287.8	2349.7	2323.3	2371.4	2291.7	2155.9	2576.9	2793.7 3486.1	3123.9 3858.4	3143.5	3275 1080	3475	Total Cap Net Plant	ilat (\$mil (\$mill)	Ŋ	4100
Comm	ion Stock	47,482,0)68 shs.			5.5%	5.5%	4.5%	5.4%	6.1%	6.4%	6.4%	6.3%	5.7%	5.5%	6.0%	6.0%	Return or	1 Total Ca	ρΊ	7.0%
as of 1	0/28/16					8,9% 8,9%	8,5% 8,5%	5.9% 5.9%	7.9% 7.9%	8.9% 8.9%	9.2% 9.2%	10.2%	10.3% 10.3%	9.5% 9.5%	8,7% 8,7%	9.5% 9.5%	10.0% 10.0%	Return or Return or	1 Shr. Eq. 1 Com Eq	uity uity	11.5%
MARK	ET CAP:	\$3.5 billi	on (Hid (Cap)		5,2%	4,8%	2.1%	4.1%	5,1%	5.3%	6.1%	6,1%	5.0%	4.0%	4.0%	4.5%	Retained	to Com E	4	5.5%
	Ent POS	THON	2014	2010 1	830/16 05 0	42%	44%	63%	48%	43%	43%	40%	41%	4/%	54%	55% 76. omoly	53%	All Drv ds	to Het Pi	101	31%
Other	ASSEIS	-	<u>67.2</u>	<u>522.2</u>	459.1	tributor	serving	approxim	stely 2.0	meson (ustomers	in secti	ons of	common	stocic, E	lackRod	k inc., 9.	6%; The	Vanguar	d Group	p, Inc.,
Accts	n Assels Payable	1	68.0	164.9	138.8	Arizona ments:	, Nevada natural g	ι, and Ca as operat	istornia. ions and	Comprise construc	ed of two tion servi	ces, 201	s seg- 5 mar-	7.4%; C Michael	ianco J. Melani	investors ey. Pres	3, 1nc., 1 . & CEO:	6.4% (3/ John He	16 Prox ster, Inc.	y}. Cha :CA. Ao	orman:
Other	AUB	_2	24.2	37.5	424.7	gin mix	: residen ustrial di	tial and s 6 transp	anali con Antena	nmercial, 11% To	85%; iai lat libroup	rge comm hout 2.1	nercial hillion	5241 Sp 876-723	ring Nou 7. Interne	ntain Ro Frances	ad, Las N whas cor	/egas, No n	evada 89	193. Te	L: 702-
Fix Cl	ng. Cov.	3	95%	335.0 401%	411%	Shar	es o	f Sou	thwe	st Ga	as ha	ve co	ome	where	e, Cer	nturi	should	i cont	inue	to re	port
ANNU.	AL RATE	S Past	Pas 5 Vo	st Est'd	'13-'15	off	a h	igh-w	ater	mar	k in	rec	ent	solid	perfo	mand	e. Th	is bus	Iness	oper	ates
Reven "Cash	ues Flow?	1.5	% 1. % 6.	5% 5 5% 6	0%	comp	arison	ine co is for	the	Septe	ember	quar	ter.	and t	wo ma	i mar ajor m	arket	s in C	anada	a. Fui	nda-
Eamn	gs nds	8,5 6,0	% 10.0 % 9.0	0% 7 0% 8	.0%	The	con uri b	struct	lon ed fro	servi m add	ces litiona	segm	ent,	menta	als ap	pear : rentar	solid ł	iere, c sing	onsid Infras	ering	the
Book \	/alue	5.5	% 5.	5% 4	.0%	place	ment	work	with	exist	ing c	ustom	ers,	Centu	iri ha	s a si	trong	base	of lar	ge ut	ility
Cal- endar	Mar.31	Jun,30	Sep.30	Dec.31	Fuli Year	incre	menta s. ano	u wor I grov	k iro th in	m aw i the	arded	bid « ner b	con- ase.	Many	stos ofth	ustan ese a	n and re mu	grow ltiyea	r its o r pipe	perat repl	ace-
2013	613.5	411.6	387.3	538.4	1950.8	Earn	ings o	of \$14	9 mi	lion I	iere n	hore t	han	menť	progr	ams.	•	atom	istato Al nui		-1-1-
2015	734.2	538.6	505.4	685.4	2463.6	ural	gas o	peratio	on du	e to s	easona	al fact	nat- ors,	time.	The	equity	y is ra	anked	to pe	erforn	n in
2015 2017	731.2	547.7 5 75	540.0 560	705.1 725	2525 2625	Neve	rthele	ss, th	e util	ity re	portec	i a lo	wer	line v	vith tl	ne bro	bader	marke More	et for	the c	om-
Cal-	EAF	UNINGS PE	RSHARE	AD AL	Full	comp	any-o	wned	life	insu	rance	polic	ies.	ation	poten	tial is	subp	ar, as	the sh	ares	are
endar 2013	1 73	300.30 .22	Sep.30 d 06	122	Year 311	Perfo	rman relief	ce hei and i	re wa	s also ver a	o supp dditio	orted	by mk-	tradir Range	ig wa S Th	ell w mugh	vithin we	our antic	Targ Inate	et P hea	rice
2014	1.51	.21	.04	1.25	3.01	ing f	orwar	d, we	expe	ct tha	it ear	nings	per	growt	h for	the	comp	any 1	n the	con	ning
2015	1.55	.19	.05	1.38	3.20	share the I	e will Decem	matci ber q	i the uarte:	prior r. For	year 1 the 1	ligure full y	tor ear,	years, premi	um v	issue aluati	is cui ion. T	frently	y trac /idend	ung a loyiel	d is
2017	1.68	.22	.10 151,000	1.50	3.50	we lo	ook fo	r hea	Ithy 1	potton	n-line	impro	ove-	nothir	ıg spe	ecial f	for a	utility	, eith	er. H	014-
endar	Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30	Dec.31	Year	line g	ains.	South	vest !	Jas, (111 INO	uest	ιop-	ever, s Gas	earns	favo	orable	mar mar	hat St 'ks_fe	or P	rice
2012	.265	.295 330	.295	295 330	1.15	Pros	pects	app	ear	favor	able	for '	the	Stabil	ity, G	rowth	n Pers	sistene	ce, an k in t	id Ea	urn-
2014	.330	.365	.365	.365	1.43	busin	less of	ight t	o furt	her be	enefit	from (gas CUS-	price	may	prese	nt co	nserva	tive j	inves	tors
2015 2016	.305	.405 .450	.405 .450	.405 .450	1.58	tome: chani	r grov isms,	vth, i and	ofrast expar	ructu Ision	re tra projec	cker i ts. E	me- Ise-	with a <i>Micha</i>	i bette i <i>el Na</i>	er ent poli, (ry poi CFA	nt. De	cembe	er 2, 1	2016
(A) Dilut	l ed earnin	gs. Exd.	nonrec, g	ains I	and D)ecember	, ≢† Div	1 reinvest	ment an	d [Com	pany's F	inancial	Strength		B++
losses): egs. rep vistorica	'02, (10¢ ort due la' ly paíd ea); '05, († le Februa vly Marci	i¢); '06, 7 iry. (B) Di 1, June, S	ic. Next ividends September	(D) To	purchasi otals may	e pian av / not sum	al. (C) in I due to ri	mitons. Sunding,		· · · ·,					Stoc Price Earn	k's Price e Growth Ings Pre	Stability Persiste dictabilit	nce Y		90 90 85

• 2016 Value Line, for. All rights reserved. Formall material is obtained from sources believed to be relative and is provided without warranties of any kind. THE PUBLISHER IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY ERRORS OR OWSSIONS HEREIN. This publication is strictly for subsorber's own, non-commercial, intensil use. No pert of it may be reproduced, resold, source or transmissed in any prited, electronic or other form, or used for generating any printed or electronic publication, service or product. e ,

1. ->

SP	RE	NC,	NYSE-	SR			F	recent Price	65.6	SO PIE Rat	ю 18 .	8 (Trail Hed	ing: 19.8 ian: 13.0)	RELATIN P/E RAT	њ 0.9	8 DAVID YLO	3.2	2%	/ALU LINE	E	
TIMELI	NESS	3 Lowerad	8/12/16	High:	34.3	37.5	36.0	55.8	48.3	37.8	42.8	44.0	48.5	55.2 44 0	61.0 49.1	71.2			Targe	t Price	Range
SAFET	Y î	2 Rásodé	/2003	LEGE	NDS 00 x Deat	servis nish	1	-	3 755 3										2019	2020	100
TECHN	IKAL S	3 Lowered	107/16		vided by I elative Pri	nterest Ras ce Strendh	e		-1992 - 1992	1	1	1	Revers	e	1	J					
BETA	70 (1.00	= Markel) In Isonia	1110	Options: Shaded	Yes area inda	iztes reces	sim		1.0000 1.0000			\sim					<u> </u>				- 80
20	13°41 F 5	A Color	nn'i Tolai		Į			l in	1994 -						երույլը]				48
Kigh	75 (+15%)	6%			ulutul	9	iar"#	11. 11.	ուստ	hunda	└┸╈┯┰⋎ ^{┿┇⊥Ĵ} ╉╿	о. П. п.	[<u> </u>		1			±40 ±32
Inside	r Decis	ions	-170	711111111		منینیند. جبعثبید				<u>]</u>		[]	[<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	-24
lo₿ <i>N</i>	J F M	AMJ	JAS				*************	ana an Interest		1 ************************************	·····	·					ļ	<u> </u>	ļ	ļ	- 16
Options to Sel	000	000	000				-			<u> </u>	<u> </u>						<u> </u>) 		- 12
Institu	tional	Decision	ns							}								5101	THS V	LARITH'	
to Bay	+22315	102016	202916	Percent shares	t 15 • 10 •					 						htt.		1 yr.	10.6	6.4	-
to sea Hid s(Wa)	34753	35632	83 36826	traded	- 5													5 yr.	88.5	76.0	<u> </u>
2000	2001	2002	2003	2004	2005	2006	2007	2008	2009	2010	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015	2016	2017	BANADU	ELMEP	18.11C	19-21
29,55	3.00	2.58	3,15	2.79	2,98	3,51	3.87	4.22	4.56	4.11	4.62	4.58	3.12	3.87	6,15	6.16	6.55	"Cash Fl	ow" per su ow" per s	ih	7.40
1.37	1.61	1.18	1.82	1.82	1,90	2,37	2.31	2,64	2,92	2.43	2.6ô	2.79	2.02	2.35	3,16	3.24	3.50	Earnings	persh /	AB	4.20
1.34	1.34	1.34	1.34	1.35	1.37	1.40	1.45	1.49	1.53	2.56	1.61	1.56	1.70	1.76	1.84	1.96	2.10	Orvios D Can'i So	eci'd per: anding pa	sn ∿≖ ursh	2.30
14.99	15.28	15.07	15.65	16,93	17.31	18,85	19,79	22,12	23.32	24.02	25.56	26,67	32.00	34,93	36,30	38.73	40.65	Book Va	lue per st	D	45.55
18.88	18.88	18.98	19.11	20.98	21.17	21.38	21,65	21.99	22.17	22.29	22.43	22.55	32,70	43.18	43.38	45.65	47.00	Common Avec App	Shs Out	st'g E	50.00
.97	.74	1.09	.78	.83	.86	.73	.75	.88	.89	.87	.82	.92	1.20	1.04	.83	1.05		Relative	P/E Ratio		.95
6.6%	5.7%	5.7%	5.4%	4.7%	4.4%	4,3%	4.4%	3,9%	3,9%	4.7%	4.3%	4,1%	4.0%	3.8%	3.5%	3.1%		Avg Ann	'I Div'd Yi	eld	3.5%
CAPITA Total De	L STRU bl S248	CTURE a 2.4 mಔ. D	s of 9/30. ue in 5 Y	/16 (rs \$400.() ກາໄໄ.	1997.6 50.5	2021.6	2209.0	1895.2	1735.0	1603.3	1125.5 62.6	1017.0 52.8	1627.2 84.6	1976.4 138 g	1537.3	1900	Revenue Net Profi	s (\$mill) t (\$mill)	^	2650
LT Debl	\$1833.7	m31. L	T Interes	t \$70.0 m	31.	32.5%	33.4%	31.3%	33.6%	33.4%	31.4%	29.6%	25.0%	27.6%	31.2%	32.5%	28.0%	Income T	ax Rate		30.0%
(Total 61	aesio	reiege, a	(* *)			2.5%	2.5%	2.6%	3.4%	3,1%	4.0%	5.6%	5.2%	5,2%	6,9%	9,4%	8.7%	Net Profr	Margin		7.9%
Leases.	Uncapil	alized Ar	nual rent	lais \$11.0	mal.	49.5% 50.4%	43.375 54.6%	44.4% 55.5%	42.872 57.1%	40.3% 59.5%	38.97 61.1%	50.1% 63.9%	40.0% 53.4%	50.1% 44,9%	53.0% 47.0%	50.5% 49.1%	50.0% 50.0%	Common	Equity R	atio	50.0%
Pension	n Assets	9/16 \$54	0.5 m შ. ტა	lia \$794	5 m/8	798,9	784.5	876.1	908.3	899.9	937,7	941.0	1959.0	3359,4	3345.1	3601.9	3835	Tolal Cap	limit) letic	Ŋ	4505
Pid Sto	ck None	15 050 0	(Dt	uBi di ru	.0 IN E.	763.8	/93,8 8.5%	823.2	855,9 87%	884.1 7.4%	928,7	1019.3	1//6.6	2/59.7	2941.2	3300,9 4.9%	3455	Net Plant Return of	i (Şmili) 1 Tolal Ca	i lio	4010 5.5%
commo as of 11	n Stock /\$1/16	45,656,2	18 sns.			12.5%	11.6%	11.8%	12.4%	10.1%	11.1%	10.4%	5.0%	5.6%	8.7%	8.2%	8.5%	Return or	1 Shr. Equ	sity	9.0%
MARKE	T CAP: 9	3.0 billio	n fHid C	apì		12.5%	11.6%	11.8%	12.4%	10.1%	11.1%	10.4%	5.0%	5.6%	8.7%	8.2%	8.5%	Return or Retained	1 Com Eq to Com P	uity a	9.0%
CURRE	NT POSI	TION 2	2014	2015 9	130/16	59%	63%	56%	53%	64%	56%	59%	81%	73%	58%	59%	60%	All Div'ds	to Net P	rof	55%
Cash A	ssets		16.1	13.8	5.2	BUSINE	SS: Spi	e Inc., fo	rmerty k	nown as	the Lade	de Grouj	p, Inc.,	tial, 67	s; comm	vercial a	nd indu	strial, 23	%; trans	portation	1, 2%;
Current	Assets	6	04.9 E	530.1	569.6	is a hole tal das	ding com across M	pany for issouri, ir	natural g ndudina l	as utilite Ine cities	s, which a of St. Lo	listribute: uis and h	s natu- Kansas	other, 8 own 3.2	≫i,Has ≫iofoc	around 3 xmmon s	3,078 en shares (*	npioyees. 1/16 prox	Officers (v). Chal	and da man: E	dward
Accts P	ayable	1	76.7 1	46.5	210.9	City. Ha	as rough	ly 1.6 m	ellion du	stomers.	Acquired	Missour	n Gas	Glotzbac	h; CEO:	Suzanne	Stherw	000. Inc.:	Missouri	. Addres	is: 700
Debt Di Other	1é	20	37.1 4 19.0 2	418.0 289.3	648.7 301.7	fiscal 20	016: 2.6 l	o湖. Reve	nue mix	for regula	sted open	ations: re	siden-	0500. In	ernet w	ww.thelac	tedegrou	in usion. ip.com.	псерп	04R. 31	4-042-
Current	Liab,	70	32,8 E	353,8 1 85%	161.3	Spir	e In	ic. 1	epor	teđ	mixe	d fi	scal	the p	urcha	ises b	ooste	d util	ity in	come	s in
	L RATES	Past	Pas	t Est'd	14'16	four	ปา-qu 30fb)	arter . Revi	resu enues	its (e were	nded kent	Sept	em- heck	Alaba be ea	ima a irnino	nd M is acc	ississ retive	ippi. 1 Soor	this d her th	leal c nan f	ould Iscal
of change Revenu	(persh) es	10 Yrs. -6.5%	5 Yrs 6 -13.0	1. 10'1 1% 6	9-21 .5%	by 1	ower	com	nodity	y pri	ces,	and	20%	2018	than	ks to	the o	early	accord	d con	nple-
"Cash P Eamino	lα√″ s	5.5% 3.5%	6 40 6 1.5	1% 9. % 9.	.5% .0%	warn riod	ier-th: But t	an-usi he tot	al we	eather	° durii sorted	ig the	e pe-	tion, emere	and be sho	cost s rtiv	synerg	gies a	re ex	pecte	d to
Dividen Book Va	ds alue	3.0 7.5	4 3.5 6 8.5	1% 3 1% 4	.5% .5%	gas	mark	eting	rever	nues	and	additi	onal	The	build	lout	of	the	STL	pipe	line
Fiscal	QUART	ERLY REV	ENUES (1)	milia	Full	contr Willn	ibutio nut (ns fi Gas s	om i Mouie	the 1	viobile	Gas	and the	rema sesso	ins o lent a	n tra	i ck. A ute re	n env efiner	/ironn hents	ientai are b	l as-
Ends	Dec.31	Mar.31	Jun.30	Sep.30	Year	comp	any I	ad b	etter	opera	tional	perfe	orm-	naileo	l dow	n in a	nticip	ation	of the	Jan	uary
2014	468.6	694.5	241.8	222.3	627.2	ance sulte	across in its	s the	board mark	, inclu eting	iding : divisi	strong on w	g re- hich	filing betwe	with en \$	тЕКС 190 п	Thi nillior	s proj 1 and	ect sh \$210	iould) mil	cost lion
2015	619.6 399.4	877.4	275.2 249.3	204.2	1976.4	allow	ed for	losse	s of \$(0.31 a	share	4.		and b	e put	into	servic	e dur	ing fis	ical 2	019.
2017	475	775	250	400	1900	Near	-tern lator	i resi	ults r	will s Sni	be di re ha	riven a filod	by I for	As pi able i	peline	es gen	erally	/ have	e high woul	er al d pro	low-
Fiscal Year	EARN	NGS PER	SHARE A	BF Sen 20	Fuli Fiscal	infras	struct	ure n	eplace	ement	surch	arges	i ioi i on	an an	iple b	oost to	o long	-term	result	ts.	viue
Ends 2013	1.14	1.34	.25	d.30	Year 2.02	its L	aclede	and	Misso	uri G	as sul	osidia	ries,	The	comp	any h	nas r	aised	the o	divid	end
2014	1.09	1,59	.33	d.35	2.35	Too, o	chang	es in	the u	tility i	s n regula	appro	envi-	a dec	ent bi	ump i	n the	e payo	ut, ar	id sh	ould
2015	1.09	2.18	.32	d.31	3.24	ronm	ent 1	n Mi	ssouri	i may	chai	nge r	ate-	appea	l to i	nvest	ors. 1	his n	arks	the	14th
2017	1.20	2.30	.30	d.30	3.50	file i	ug m ts nez	ecnañ kt ger	usms. ieral	ine rates	cases	in A	will pril.	year i Shar	naro esof	spire	e Inc	na ma , do 1	nease:	s. tand	out
Cal- andar	QUARIE Mar.31	ali uiyic Jun 30	enus pal Seo.30	⊎ ⊂∎ Dec.31	Full Year	which	ı coul	d allo	ow for	r bett	er pro	ofitabi	ility.	for	Fimel	iness	. Th	ough	they	offe	r a
2013	.425	.425	.425	.425	1.70	1 nose think	e out the c	comes compa	are ny wi	unce 11 ear	ertain, n \$3.5	out 0 a sl	we hare	uecen the s	t yiek hares	u and offer	i stea little	total	retu	r gro m po	win, [sten- [
2014	.44 46	.44 46	.44 46	44	1.76 1.84	in fis	cal 20	17.	.,			0		tial. I	Most	invest	ors w	ould	be be	st se	rved
2018	.49	.49	.49	.49		The Mobi	integ ileGa	ratio s are	ns of occu	t Will rring	mut . Com	Gas : pletio	and n of	waitir <i>John</i>	ig for E. Sei	a pric ibert J	e dip. 11	De	cembe	r 2. 2	016
2017 1 Fiscal	.525 year erk	ls Sept. 3	10th. (B) 1	Based on	due 1	ate Janua	IV, (C) D	ividends	historical	6 hy S	8.85/sh. (E) (n mil	tons. (F)	Qthy, eas	. may no	Com	panv's P	inancial	Strength	, 2	8++
luted sh	ares outs	tanding, l	Excudes ain from	nonrecur	- paid	in early Ja idend rein	inuary, A	pril, July, Lotan av	and Oct	ober, s	um due to	2013 2	g or char 014 2010	ige in sh	ares out-	Stoc	k's Price	Stability	nce		100
ed opera	i operations: '08, 94¢, Next earnings report Ind. deferred charges, In '14: \$383.8 mB., View local is peratical bible and is created and the solution of the																				
ZUIIS Va	SHER IS N	OT RESPO	STALE FOR	OR ANY EF	al materia RORS O	a is obtain R OMISSIO	NS HERE	sources be 31. This put	exerved to Accelon is	De relati strictly for	e and is subscribers	uroviced 1 ovin, non-	vunout wa commercia	narces d Linternel i	any kind ise. No par	To su	ubscrit	ie call	1-800-V	ALUEL	INE
ir uav pa	reproduced	, resord, sto	190 CF (F2A)S	x 9060 M 20	ly priroad,	FREESOLE OL	omer form,	, or used fo	i generativ	y or merkes	ng any prin	୍ୟ ସଂଶ୍ୱରେ	une publica	201, 5970	e a hoax						

1 X

Schedule PMA-D3 Page 9 of 9



<u>LAC / MGE</u> Summary of Risk Premium Models for <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u>

Schedule PMA-D4 Page 1 of 12

Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies Indicated ROE												
	Der	ived by the Pre	dictive Risk Pre	emium Model (1	D.							
	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]					
	LT Average	Spot	Average		Predicted							
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	Predicted Variance	Predicted Variance	Predicted Variance	GARCH Coefficient	Risk Premium (2)	Risk-Free Rate (3)	Indicated ROE (4)					
Atmos Energy	0.35%	0.28%	0.31%	2.11605	8.16%	3.65%	11.81%					
Chesapeake Utilities	0.34%	0.36%	0.35%	2.14402	9.39%	3.65%	13.04%					
New Jersey Resources Corp.	0.39%	0.28%	0.34%	2.10596	8.94%	3.65%	12.59%					
Northwest Nat. Gas	0.33%	0.32%	0.32%	1.61548	6.38%	3.65%	10.03%					
South Jersey Industries, Inc.	0.37%	0.42%	0.40%	1.71378	8.54%	3.65%	12.19%					
Southwest Gas Holdings Inc	0.45%	0.37%	0.41%	1.46524	7.45%	3.65%	11.10%					
Spire Inc.	0.73%	0.25%	0.49%	0.92462	5.57%	3.65%	9.22%					
						Average	11.43%					
						Medían	11.81%					
					Average of Mea	n and Median	11.62%					

LAC / MGE

Notes:

- The Predictive Risk Premium Model uses historical data to generate a predicted variance and a GARCH (1) coefficient. The historical data used are the equity risk premiums for the first available trading month as reported by Bloomberg Professional Service.
- (2) (1+(Column [3] * Column [4])¹²) 1.
 (3) From note 2 on page 2 of Schedule PMA-D5.
- (4) Column [5] + Column [6].

LAC / MGE Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Through Use of a Risk Premium Model Using an Adjusted Total Market Approach

.

<u>Line No.</u>		Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies
1.	Prospective Yield on Aaa Rated Corporate Bonds (1)	4.68 %
2.	Adjustment to Reflect Yield Spread Between Aaa Rated Corporate Bonds and A Rated Public Utility Bonds	0.21 (2)
3.	Adjusted Prospective Yield on A Rated Public Utility Bonds	4.89 %
4.	Equity Risk Premium (3)	4.62
5.	Risk Premium Derived Common Equity Cost Rate	9.51 %

Notes: (1) Consensus forecast of Moody's Aaa Rated Corporate bonds from Blue Chip Financial Forecasts (see pages 9-10 of this Schedule).

(2) The average yield spread of A rated public utility bonds over Aaa rated corporate bonds of 0.21% from page 4 of this Schedule.

(3) From page 7 of this Schedule.

 $l_{i} = j$

1 .

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Interest Rates and Bond Spreads for <u>Moody's Corporate and Public Utility Bonds</u>

Selected Bond Yields

[2]

[1]

[3]

	Aaa Rated Corporate Bond	A Rated Public Utility Bond	Baa Rated Public Utility Bond
Jan-2017	3.92 %	4,14 %	4.62 %
Dec-2016	4.06	4.27	4.79
Nov-2016	3.86	4.08	4.64
Average	3.95_%	4.16 %	4.68 %

Selected Bond Spreads

A Rated Public Utility Bonds Over Aaa Rated Corporate Bonds:

0.21 %(1)

Baa Rated Public Utility Bonds Over A Rated Public Utility Bonds:

0.52 % (2)

Notes:

1 5

(1) Column [2] - Column [1].
 (2) Column [3] - Column [2].

Source of Information:

Bloomberg Professional Service

LAC / MGE Comparison of Long-Term Issuer Ratings for Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

	Moo Long-Term Januar	ody's Issuer Rating 7y 2017	Standa Long-Terr Janu	Standard & Poor's Long-Term Issuer Rating January 2017				
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	Long-Term Issuer Rating	Numerical Weighting(1)	Long-Term Issuer Rating	Numerical Weighting(1)				
	a fair that a second							
Atmos Energy Corporation	A2	6.0	A	6.0				
Chesapeake Utilities Corporation	NR		NA					
New Jersey Resources Corporation (2)	Aa2	3.0	А	6.0				
Northwest Natural Gas Company	A3	7.0	А+	5.0				
South Jersey Industries, Inc. (3)	A2	6.0	BBB+	8.0				
Southwest Gas Holdings, Inc. (4)	A3	7.0	BBB+	8.0				
Spire Inc. (5)	A1/A2	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	<u> </u>	7.0				
Average	A2	5.8	<u>A-</u>	6.7				

Notes:

(1) From page 6 of this Schedule.

(2) Ratings those of New Jersey Natural Gas Co.

(3) Ratings those of South Jersey Gas Co.

(4) Ratings those of Southwest Gas Corp.

(5) Ratings those of Alabama Gas Corp. and Laclede Gas Co.

Source Information:

Moody's Investors Service Standard & Poor's Global Utilities Rating Service

Moody's Bond	Numerical Bond	Standard & Poor's
Rating	Weighting	Bond Rating
Aaa	1	AAA
Aa1	2	AA+
Aa2	3	AA
Aa3	4	AA-
A1	5	
A2	6	A second A second A second A
A3	7	A-
Baa1	8	BBB+
Baa2	9	BBB
Baa3	10	BBB-
Ba1	11	BB+
Ba2	12	BB
Ba3	13	BB-
B1	14	B+
B2	15	В
B 3	16	В-

Numerical Assignment for Moody's and Standard & Poor's Bond Ratings

 t^{-1}

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Judgment of Equity Risk Premium for <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u>

Line No.	_	Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies
1.	Calculated equity risk premium based on the total market using the beta approach (1)	4.46 %
2.	Mean equity risk premium based on a study using the holding period returns of public utilities with A rated bonds (2)	4.26
3.	Predicted Equity Risk Premium based on Regression Analysis of 752 Fully-Litigated Natural Gas Utility Rate Cases (3)	5.15
4.	Average equity risk premium	4.62 %
Notes:	 (1) From page 8 of this Schedule. (2) From page 11 of this Schedule. 	

(3) From page 12 of this Schedule.

' + T

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Derivation of Equity Risk Premium Based on the Total Market Approach Using the Beta for <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u>

Line No.	Faulty Risk Premium Measure	Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies
1.	Ibbotson Equity Risk Premium (1)	5.52 %
2.	Ibbotson Equity Risk Premium based on PRPM (2)	6,38
3.	Regression on Ibbotson Risk Premium Data (3)	7.40
4.	Equity Risk Premium Based on <u>Value Line</u> Summary and Index (4)	4.60
5.	Equity Risk Premium Based on S&P 500 Companies(5)	8.40
6.	Conclusion of Equity Risk Premium (6)	6.46 %
7.	Adjusted Beta (7)	0.69
8.	Forecasted Equity Risk Premium	4.46 %

Notes:

 Based on the arithmetic mean historical monthly returns on large company common stocks from Ibbotson® SBBI® 2016 Market Report minus the arithmetic mean monthly yield of Moody's Aaa and Aa corporate bonds from 1928 - 2015. (11.68% - 6.16% = 5.52%).

- (2) The Predictive Risk Premium Model (PRPM) is discussed in the accompanying direct testimony. The Ibbotson equity risk premium based on the PRPM is derived by applying the PRPM to the monthly risk premiums between Ibbotson large company common stock monthly returns minus the average Aaa and Aa corporate monthly hond yields, from January 1928 through January 2017.
- (3) This equity risk premium is based on a regression of the monthly equity risk premiums of large company common stocks relative to Moody's Aaa/Aa rated corporate bond yields from 1928 - 2015 referenced in Note 1 above.
- (4) The equity risk premium based on the Value Line Summary and Index is derived from taking the projected 3-5 year total annual market return of 9.28% (described fully in note 1 of Schedule PMA-D5) and subtracting the average consensus forecast of Aaa corporate bonds of 4.68% (Shown on page 3 of this Schedule). (9.28% - 4.68% = 4.60%).
- (5) Using data from the Bloomberg Professional Service for the S&P 500, an expected total return of 13.08% was derived based upon expected dividend yields and long-term growth estimates as a proxy for capital appreciation. Subtracting the average consensus forecast of Aaa corporate bonds of 4.68% results in an expected equity risk premium of 8.40%. (13.08% - 4.68% = 8.40%).

(6) Average of lines 1 through 5.

(7) Average of mean and median beta from Schedule PMA-D5.

Sources of Information:

Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation - Ibbotson® SBBI® 2016 Market Report, Morningstar, Inc., 2016 Chicago, IL. Industrial Manual and Mergent Bond Record Monthly Update. <u>Value Line</u> Summary and Index Blue Chip Financial Forecasts, February 1, 2017 and December 1, 2016

Bloomberg Professional Services

2 ■ BLUE CHIP FINANCIAL FORECASTS ■ FEBRUARY 1, 2017

				Histor	y				Con	sensus	Foreca	sts-Qu	arterly	Avg.
	Av	erage For	Week En	ding	Av	erage For	r Month	Latest Qtr	1Q	2Q	3Q	4Q	1Q	2Q
Interest Rates	<u>Jan. 20</u>	Jan. 13	<u>Jan. 6</u>	Dec. 31	Dec	Nov	<u>Oct</u>	<u>4Q 2016*</u>	<u>2017</u>	<u>2017</u>	<u>2017</u>	<u>2017</u>	2018	<u>2018</u>
Federal Funds Rate	0.66	0.66	0.60	0.66	0.54	0.41	0.39	0.45	0.7	0.8	1.0	1.1	1.3	1.6
Prime Rate	3.75	3.75	3.75	3.73	3.63	3.50	3.50	3.54	3.8	3.9	4.1	4,3	4.4	4.6
LIBOR, 3-mo.	1.03	1.02	1.01	1.00	0.97	0.90	0.88	0.92	1.0	1.2	1.3	1.5	1.7	1.9
Commercial Paper, 1-mo.	0.66	0.63	0.62	0.65	0.56	0.43	0.43	0.47	0.7	0.8	1.0	1.2	1.4	1.6
Treasury bill, 3-mo.	0.53	0.52	0.53	0.51	0.51	0.45	0.33	0.43	0.6	0.7	0.9	1.1	1.3	1.5
Treasury bill, 6-mo.	0.62	0.60	0.63	0.63	0.63	0.58	0.47	0.56	0.7	0.8	1.1	1.2	1.4	1.6
Treasury bill, 1 yr.	0.82	0.82	0.86	0.87	0.86	0.74	0.66	0.75	0.9	1.0	1.3	1.4	1.6	1.8
Treasury note, 2 yr.	1.21	1.20	1.21	1.24	1.19	0.98	0.84	1.00	1.2	1.4	1.5	1.7	1.9	2.0
Treasury note, 5 yr.	1.92	1.89	1.92	2.00	1.94	1.60	1.27	1.60	1.9	2.1	2.2	2.4	2.5	2.6
Treasury note, 10 yr.	2.43	2.38	2.43	2.51	2.47	2.14	1.76	2.12	2.5	2.6	2.7	2.9	3.0	3.1
Treasury note, 30 yr.	3.01	2.98	3.01	3.09	3.10	2.86	2.50	2.82	3.1	3,2	3.4	3.5	3.6	3.7
Corporate Aaa bond	4.04	4.02	4.05	4.14	4.18	4.00	3.69	3.96	4.1	4,2	4.4	4.5	4,6	4.8
Corporate Baa bond	4.64	4.63	4.67	4.75	4.81	4.66	4.34	4.60	4.9	5.0	5.2	5.3	5.4	5.6
State & Local bonds	3.67	3.67	3.73	3.75	3.78	3.51	3.35	3.55	3.7	3.8	3.9	4.1	4.2	4.3
Home mortgage rate	4.09	4.12	4.20	4.32	4.20	3.77	3.47	3.81	4.2	4.3	4.4	4.6	4.7	4.8
~ ~				Histor	y				Co	onsensi	is Fore	casts-(Juartei	·ly
	1Q	2Q	3Q	4Q .	Í IQ	2Q	3Q	4Q	1Q	2Q	3Q	4Q	1Q	2Q
Key Assumptions	2015	2015	2015	2015	2016	2016	2016	2016*	2017	2017	2017	2017	2018	2018
Major Currency Index	89.4	89.9	91.8	93.1	93.3	89.6	90.3	93.7	94.8	95.3	95.6	95.7	95.5	95.1
Real GDP	2.0	2.6	2.0	0.9	0.8	1.4	3.5	1.9	2.2	2.3	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.5
GDP Price Index	-0.1	2.3	1.3	0.8	0.5	2.3	1.4	2.1	2.0	2.1	2.0	2.1	2.1	2.2
Consumer Price Index	-2.9	2.4	1.4	0.8	-0.3	2.5	1.6	3.4	2.5	2.3	2.4	2.4	2.3	2.3

Consensus Forecasts Of U.S. Interest Rates And Key Assumptions¹

Forecasts for interest rates and the Federal Reserve's Major Currency Index represent averages for the quarter. Forecasts for Real GDP, GDP Price Index and Consumer Price Index are seasonally-adjusted annual rates of change (saar). Individual panel members' forecasts are on pages 4 through 9. Historical data: Treasury rates from the Federal Reserve Board's H.15; AAA-AA and A-BBB corporate bond yields from Bank of America-Merrill Lynch and are 15+ years, yield to naturity; State and local bond yields from Bank of America-Merrill Lynch, A-rated, yield to maturity; Mortgage rates from Freddie Mac, 30-year, fixed; LIBOR quotes from Intercontinental Exchange. All interest rate data is sourced from Haver Analysis. Historical data for Fed's Major Currency Index is from FRSR H.10. Historical data for Real GDP and GDP Chained Price Index are from the Bureau of Economic Analysis (BEA). Consumer Price Index (CPI) history is from the Department of Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS).



U.S. 3-Mo. T-Bills & 10-Yr. T-Note Yield



U.S. Treasury Yield Curve As of week January 20, 2017



Schedule PMA-D4 Page 9 of 12

Long-Range Survey:

11

The table below contains the results of our twice-annual long-range CONSENSUS survey. There are also Top 10 and Bottom 10 averages for each variable. Shown are consensus estimates for the years 2018 through 2022 and averages for the five-year periods 2018-2022 and 2023-2027. Apply these projections cautiously. Few if any economic, demographic and political forces can be evaluated accurately over such long time spans.

		_	Av	erage For T	he Year—	.	Five-Yea	r Averages
Interest Rates		2018	2019	2020	2021	2022	2018-2022	2023-2027
 Federal Funds Rate 	CONSENSUS	1.8	2,4	2,8	3.0	3.0	2.6	3.0
	Top 10 Average	2.4	3.1	3.5	3.6	3.7	3.3	3.6
	Bottom 10 Average	1.3	1.5	2.0	2.2	2.2	1.9	2.2
2. Prime Rate	CONSENSUS	4.8	5,5	5.8	6.0	6.0	5.6	5.9
	Top 10 Average	5.4	6.2	6.6	6.7	6.7	6.3	6.6
	Bottom 10 A verage	4.3	4.7	5.0	5.3	5.2	4.9	5.1
3 LIBOR 3-Mo	CONSENSUS	2.1	2.8	3.1	3.2	3.3	2.9	3.2
	Ton 10 Average	27	34	3.8	39	39	35	3.8
	Bottom 10 A verage	17	21	24	25	25	2.2	2.5
4 Commercial Paper, 1-Mo	CONSENSUS	20	21	2.4	37	12	2.2	2.2
4. Commercents upor, 1-140.	Ton 10 Average	2.0	2.2.2	26	27	2.0	2,0	27
	Pottom 10 A vorge	2.5	2,2	2.0	2.7	3.6	J.4 1 2	3.7
6 Transmit Dill Mald 2 Ma	CONCENCIÓ	1.0	2.1	2.3	2.0	2.0		2.0
5. Heasury Bill Field, 5-MO.	CONSENSUS	1.7	2.4	2.8	2,9	2,9	2.0	2.9
	Top TO Average	2,4	3.2	3.3	0.0	3.7	3,3	3.0
	Boltom 10 Average		1.7	2,0	2.1	2.1	1.8	2.1
6. Treasury Bill Yield, 6-Mo.	CONSENSUS	1.9	2.6	2.9	3.1	3.1	2.7	3.0
	Top 10 Average	2.6	3.3	3.7	3,8	3.8	3.4	3.7
	Bottom 10 Average	<u> </u>	1.9	2.1	2.2	2.2	2.0	2.2
7. Treasury Bill Yield, 1-Yr.	CONSENSUS	2.1	2.7	3.0	3.1	3.2	2.8	3.2
	Top 10 Average	2.8	3.5	3.8	3.9	3,9	3.6	3,8
	Bottom 10 Average	1.5	1.9	2.2	2.3	2.3	2.1	2.3
8. Treasury Note Yield, 2-Yr.	CONSENSUS	2.2	2.9	3.2	3.3	3,3	3.0	3.3
	Top 10 Average	2.9	3.6	4.0	4.0	4.0	3.7	4.1
	Bottom 10 Average	1.7	2.1	2.4	2.5	2.5	2.2	2.4
Treasury Note Yield, 5-Yr.	CONSENSUS	2.7	3,2	3.5	3,6	3.6	3,3	3.6
	Top 10 Average	3,3	4.0	4.3	4.3	4.4	4.0	4.4
	Bottom 10 Average	2.2	2.4	2.6	2.8	2,8	2.6	2.8
11, Treasury Note Yield, 10-Yr.	CONSENSUS	3.1	3.5	3,8	3.9	3.9	3,6	3,9
	Top 10 Average	3.8	4.3	4.6	4.6	4.6	4.4	4.7
	Bottom 10 Average	2.5	2.7	29	3.1	3.1	2.8	3.1
12. Treasury Bond Yield 30-Yr.	CONSENSIS	3.8	4.1	4.3	4.4	4.4	4.2	4.5
	Ton 10 Average	45	5.0	5.2	5.2	53	5.0	53
	Bottom 10 Average	31	33	3.5	3.6	36	34	3.6
13 Comparate Ass Bond Vield	CONSENSIS	4.8	51	5.5	5.0	5.5	53	5.0
15. Corporate Aaa Dond Tield	Ton 10 Average	5.4	5.0	61	61	61	50	60
	Pottom 10 Average	J.4 4 7	3,6	4.0	.10	0.1 A Q	17	4.0
12. Comorato Dao Dau d Viald	CONFERENCES	<u> </u>	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.0	4.7	4.9
15. Corporate Baa Bond Tield	CONSENSUS	3.9	0.2	0.4	0.4	0.4	0,3	0.4
	Top to Average	0.0	6.9	7.0	1.1	7.2	6.9	1.2
	Bottom IO Average		<u> </u>	5.8	3.8	5.7	3.0	
14. State & Local Bonds Yield	CONSENSIS	4.3	4,6	4.5	4.8	4.8	4.6	4.8
	Top 10 Average	4.9	5.3	5,4	5.5	5,6	5.3	5.6
	Bottom 10 Average	3.8	3.8	3.5	4.0	4.0	3.8	4.0
Home Mortgage Rate	CONSENSUS	4.9	5.3	5.5	5.6	5.6	5,4	5.6
	Top 10 Average	5.5	6.0	6.2	6.3	6,3	6.0	6.3
	Bottom 10 Average	4.3	4.6	4.7	4.9	4.9	4.7	4.9
A. FRB - Major Currency Index	CONSENSUS	94.6	93.8	93,6	93.5	93.2	93.8	92.1
	Top 10 Average	97.6	97.9	98.3	98.4	98.4	98.1	97.4
	Bottom 10 Average	91,5	89.6	88,7	88.4	87.9	89.2	86.6
		14	Vear (% Change		Five Vear	Awranes
	1. A.	1019		2020	20 Change	2011	3019 1027	3013 1027
B Bool CDD	CONSENSUS	2010	2019	2020	2021	-11	2010-2022	11
ם. ולקמו לולד	Ton 10 August	4.J 2.7	2.2		4.I 14	2.1	4.4 2.5	2.1
	1 op 10 Average	2.1	2.3	2.4	2.4	2,4	2.3	2.2
	Bottom 10 Average	1.9	1.8	1.7	1.8	1.8	8.1	1.8
C. ODP Chained Price Index	CONSENSUS	2.1	2.1	2.1	2.1	2,0	2.1	2.0
	Top 10 Average	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.4	2.2	2.3	2.2
	Bottom 10 Average	1.8	1.8	1.9	1.9	1.9	1.9	1.9
D. Consumer Price Index	CONSENSUS	2.4	2.3	2.3	2.3	2.3	2,3	2.3
	Top 10 Average	2.7	2,6	2.6	2.6	2.5	2.6	2,5
	Bottom 10 A verage	2.1	2.1	2.2	2.1	2.0	2.1	2.1

<u>Line No.</u>			Over A Rated Moody's Public Utility Bonds (1)
1.		Arithmetic Mean Holding Period Returns on the Standard & Poor's Utility Index 1928- 2015 (2):	10.49 %
2.		Arithmetic Mean Yield on Moody's A Rated Public Utility Yields 1928-2015	(6.64)
3.		Historical Equity Risk Premium	3.85 %
4.		Forecasted Equity Risk Premium Based on PRPM (3)	4.34
5.		Regression of Historical Equity Risk Premium (4)	5.50
6.		Forecasted Equity Risk Premium based on Projected Total Return on the S&P Utilities Index (5)	3.36
7.		Average Equity Risk Premium	4.26 %
Notes:	(1)	Based on S&P Public Utility Index monthly total returns an Bond average monthly yields from 1928-2015.	d Moody's Public Utility
	(2)	Holding period returns are calculated based upon income interest) plus the relative change in the market value of a sholding period.	received (dividends and ecurity over a one-year
	(3)	The Predictive Risk Premium Model (PRPM) is applied to t monthly total returns of the S&P Utility Index and the mon rated public utility bonds from January 1928 - January 201	he risk premium of the thly yields on Moody's A 7.
	(4)	This equity risk premium is based on a regression of the m premiums of the S&P Utility Index relative to Moody's A ra yields from 1928 - 2015 referenced in note 1 above.	onthly equity risk ted public utility bond
	(5)	Using data from Bloomberg Professional Service for the S& expected return of 8.25% was derived based on expected of term growth estimates as a proxy for market appreciation. expected A rated public utility bond yield of 4.89%, calcula this Schedule results in an equity risk premium of 3.36%. (P Utilities Index, an lividend yields and long- Subtracting the ted on line 3 of page 3 of 8,25% - 4,89% = 3,36%)

LAC / MGE Derivation of Mean Equity Risk Premium Based on a Study Using Holding Period Returns of Public Utilities

Schedule PMA-D4 Page 11 of 12



LAC / MGE

		Prospective		
		A Rated	Prospective	
		Utility Bond	Equity Risk	
Constant	Slope	(1)	Premium	
7.497094 %	-0.48037	4.89 %	5.15 %	6

Notes:

4

11

(1) From line 3 of page 3 of this Schedule.

Source of Information: Regulatory Research Associates

Schedule PMA-D4 Page 12 of 12

	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	[8]
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	Value Line Adjusted Beta	Bloomberg Adjusted Beta	Average Beta	Market Risk Premium (1)	Risk-Free Rate (2)	Traditional CAPM Cost Rate	ECAPM Cost Rate	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate (3)
Atmos Energy Chesapeake Utilities New Jersey Resources Corp. Northwest Nat. Gas South Jersey Industries, Inc. Southwest Gas Holdings Inc Spire Inc.	0.70 0.65 0.80 0.65 0.80 0.75 0.70	0.65 0.65 0.74 0.59 0.70 0.61 0.66	0.68 0.65 0.77 0.62 0.75 0.68 0.68	7.53 % 7.53 7.53 7.53 7.53 7.53 7.53 7.53 7.53	3.65 % 3.65 3.65 3.65 3.65 3.65 3.65 3.65	8.77 % 8.54 9.45 8.32 9.30 8.77 8.77	9.37 % 9.20 9.88 9.03 9.77 9.37 9.37	9.07 % 8.87 9.66 8.68 9.53 9.07 9.07
Average			0.69			<u>8.85</u> %	9.43 %	9.14_%
Median			0.68			<u>8.77</u> %	<u>9.37</u> %	<u>9.07</u> %
Average of Mean and Median			0.69			8.81	9.40	9.11_%
Notes on page 2 of this Schedule.								

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Through Use of the Traditional Capital Asset Pricing Model (ECAPM) and Empirical Capital Asset Pricing Model (ECAPM).

LAC / MGE

Notes to Accompany the Application of the CAPM and ECAPM

Notes:

(1) The market risk premium (MRP) is an average of five different measures. The first measure of the MRP derives the total return on the market by adding the thirteen-week average forecasted 3-5 year capital appreciation to the thirteen-week average expected dividend yield from Value Line Summary and Index. The projected risk-free rate (developed in Note 2) is then subtracted from the total return to arrive at the projected MRP. The second measure of MRP is based on the arithmetic mean of historical monthly return data of large company stocks less the income return on long-term government bonds from 1926-2015 as published by Morningstar, Inc. The third measure applies the PRPM to the Ibbotson historical data to derive a projected MRP. The fourth measure applies a regression analysis to the Ibbotson historical data to derive a projected MRP. The fifth measure uses data from Bloomberg Professional Services to derive a total projected return on the S&P 500 by using expected dividend yields and long-term growth estimates as a proxy for capital appreciation. The projected risk-free rate is then subtracted from the projected total return to arrive at the projected MRP. The five measures of MRP are illustrated below:

Measure 1: Value Line Projected MRP (Thirteen weeks ending February 10, 2017

Total projected return on the market 3 -5 years hence: Projected Risk-Free Rate (described in Note 2): MRP based on Value Line Summary & Index:	na sananan Sananan tarata	9.28 3.65 5.63	% _%
Measure 2: Ibbotson Arithmetic Mean MRP (1926-2015)			
Arithmetic Mean Monthly Returns for Large Stocks 1926-2015: Arithmetic Mean Income Returns on Long-Term Government Bonds: MRP based on Ibbotson Historical Data:		11.95 5.20 6.75	% _%
Measure 3: Application of the PRPM to Ibbotson Historical Data: (January 1926 - January 2017)		7.20	_%
Measure 4: Application of a Regression Analysis to Ibbotson Historical Data (1926-2015)		8.66	_%
Measure 5: Bloomberg Projected MRP			
Total return on the Market based on the S&P 500: Projected Risk-Free Rate (described in Note 2): MRP based on Bloomberg data		13.08 3.65 <u>9.43</u>	% _%
	Average MRP:	7.53	_%

(2) For reasons explained in the direct testimony, the appropriate risk-free rate for cost of capital purposes is the average forecast of 30 year Treasury Bonds per the consensus of nearly 50 economists reported in Blue Chip Financial Forecasts, (See pages 9-10 of Schedule PMA-D4.) The projection of the risk-free rate is illustrated below:

First Quarter 2017	3.10 %
Second Quarter 2017	3.20
Third Quarter 2017	3.40
Fourth Quarter 2017	3.50
First Quarter 201 8	3,60
Second Quarter 2018	3.70
2018-2022	4,20
2023-2027	4,50 %
	3.65 %

(3) Average of Column 6 and Column 7

Sources of Information:

Value Line Summary and Index Blue Chip Financial Forecasts, February 1, 2017 and December 1, 2016 Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation - Ibbotson® SBBI® 2016 Market Report, Morningstar, Inc., 2016 Chicago, H. Bloomberg Professional Services

LAC / MGE

Basis of Selection of the Group of Non-Price Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

The criteria for selection of the proxy group of sixteen non-price regulated companies was that the non-price regulated companies be domestic and reported in <u>Value Line Investment</u> <u>Survey</u> (Standard Edition).

The proxy group of sixteen non-price regulated companies were then selected based on the unadjusted beta range of 0.44 - 0.70 and residual standard error of the regression range of 1.9593 - 2.3369 of the water proxy group.

These ranges are based upon plus or minus two standard deviations of the unadjusted beta and standard error of the regression. Plus or minus two standard deviations captures 95.50% of the distribution of unadjusted betas and residual standard errors of the regression.

The standard deviation of the water industry's residual standard error of the regression is 0.1095. The standard deviation of the standard error of the regression is calculated as follows:

Standard Deviation of the Std. Err. of the Regr. = <u>Standard Error of the Regression</u> $\sqrt{2N}$

where: N = number of observations. Since Value Line betas are derived from weekly price change observations over a period of five years, N = 259

Thus, $0.0944 = \frac{2.1481}{\sqrt{518}} = \frac{2.4926}{22.7596}$

Source of Information: Value Line, Inc., December 2016 <u>Value Line Investment Survey</u> (Standard Edition)

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Basis of Selection of Comparable Risk <u>Domestic Non-Price Regulated Companies</u>

f

	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	Value Line Adjusted Beta	Unadjusted Beta	Residual Standard Error of the Regression	Standard Deviation of Beta
Atmos Energy Chesaneake Utilifies	0.80 0.65	0.66	2.0450 2.6612	0.0597
New Jersey Resources Corp.	0.80	0.65	2.3606	0.0689
Northwest Nat. Gas	0.65	0.45	2.0380	0,0595
South Jersey Industries, Inc.	0.80	0.69	2.0154	0.0588
Southwest Gas Holdings Inc	0.80	0.63	2.1700	0.0633
Spire Inc.	0.70	0.51	1.7462	0.0510
Average	0.74	0.57	2.1481	0.0627
Beta Range (+/- 2 std. Devs. of Beta) 2 std. Devs. of Beta	0.44 0.13	0.70		
Residual Std. Err. Range (+/- 2 std. Devs. of the Residual Std. Err.)	1.9593	2,3369		
Std. dev. of the Res. Std. Err.	0.0944			
2 std. devs. of the Res. Std. Err.	0.1888			

Source of Information: Valueline Proprietary Database December-2016

.

Schedule PMA-D6 Page 2 of 3

...

LAC / MGE Proxy Group of Non-Price Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

		[1]		[2]	[3]	[4]
Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price- Regulated Companies	VL .	Adjusted Beta	Una	adjusted Beta	Residual Standard Error of the Regression	Standard Deviation of Beta
AmerisourceBergen		0.80	· · · *	0.65	2.1089	0.0616
AutoZone Inc.		0.65		0.46	2.0988	0.0613
Bard (C.R.)		0.80		0.66	2.2216	0.0648
Campbell Soup		0.70		0.49	1,9728	0.0576
Dr Pepper Snapple		0.75		0.55	2.0574	0.0600
Erie Indemnity		0.75		0.62	2.1273	0.0621
Lancaster Colony		0.80		0.63	2.2055	0.0644
Lilly (Eli)		0.80		0.63	2.1902	0.0639
Merck & Co.		0.80		0.66	2.2052	0.0644
Reynolds American		0.70		0.48	2.2439	0.0655
Smucker (J.M.)		0.75		0.54	2.1053	0.0614
Stericycle Inc.		0.80		0.69	2.2738	0.0664
Target Corp.		0.70		0.52	2.2600	0.0660
TJX Companies		0.80		0.65	2,2068	0.0644
Verisk Analytics		0.80		0.64	2.1656	0.0632
Waste Connections		0.75		0.58	2.0257	0.0591
Average		0.76		0.59	2.1543	0.0629
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas					·	
Companies	.	0.74		0.57	2.1481	0.0627

¢

LAC / MGE Summary of Cost of Equity Models Applied to the Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price-Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u>

Principal Methods	Proxy Group Sixteen Non- Price-Regulate Companies	of - ed
Discounted Cash Flow Model (DCF) (1)	11.86	%
Risk Premium Model (RPM) (2)	10.30	
Capital Asset Pricing Model (CAPM) (3)	9.62	-
Mean	10.59	%
Median	10.30	%
Average of Mean and Median	10.45	%

Notes:

Ć

(1) From page 2 of this Schedule.

(2) From page 3 of this Schedule.

(3) From page 6 of this Schedule.

	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	[8]
Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price-Regulated Companies	Average Dividend Yield	Value Line Projected Flve Year Growth in EPS	Reuters Mean Consensus Projected Five Year Growth Rate in EPS	Zack's Five Year Projected Growth Rate in EPS	Yahoo! Finance Projected Five Year Growth in EPS	Average Projected Five Year Growth Rate in EPS	Adjusted Dividend Yield	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate (1)
AmerisourceBergen	1.83 %	11.00 %	9.31 %	10.10 %	9.31 %	9.93 %	1.92 %	11.85 %
AutoZone Inc.	,,,	11.50	11.65	13.80	11.65	12.15	-	NA
Bard (C.R.)	0.47	10.00	11.35	11.20	11.35	10.98	0.50	11.48
Campbell Soup	2.38	5.50	5.30	5.60	5.30	5.43	2.44	7.87
Dr Pepper Snapple	2.39	9.00	9.82	9.40	9.83	9.51	2.50	12.01
Erie Indemnity	2.85	10.00	7.00	10.00	10.00	9.25	2,98	12.23
Lancaster Colony	1.60	7.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	4.00	1.63	5.63
Lilly (Eli)	2.83	9,50	11.18	11.90	11.18	10,94	2.98	13.92
Merck & Co.	3.07	6.00	5.91	6.40	5.92	6.06	3.16	9.22
Reynolds American	5.38	12.50	10.77	10.10	10.77	11.04	5.68	16.72
Smucker (J.M.)	-	7,50	5.30	6.80	4.63	6,06	-	NA
Stericycle Inc.	-	10.81	12.00	10.90	10.81	11.13	-	NA
Target Corp.	3.31	9.50	5.20	9.40	5.20	7,33	3.43	10.76
TJX Companies	1.36	11.00	13.30	10.70	9,75	11.19	1.44	12.63
Verisk Analytics	•	11.00	9.74	11.60	9.74	10.52	-	NA
Waste Connections	0.92	15.00	NA	20.80	12,55	16.12	0.99	17.11
							Mean	11.79 %
							Median	11.93 %
						. Average of Mea	n and Median	11.86_%

LAC / MGE
DCF Results for the Proxy Group of Non-Price-Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to the
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

NA= Not Available NMF= Not Meaningful Figure

(1) The application of the DCF model to the domestic, non-price regluated comparable risk companies is identical to the application of the DCF to the utility proxy group. The dividend yield is derived by using the 60 day average price and the spot indicated dividend as of January 31, 2017. The dividend yield is then adjusted by 1/2 the average projected growth rate in EPS, which is calculated by averaging the 5 year projected growth in EPS provided by Value Line, www.reuters.com, www.zacks.com, and www.yahoo.com (excluding any negative growth rates) and then adding that growth rate to the adjusted dividend yield.

Source of Information: Value Line Investment Survey:

www.reuters.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017 www.zacks.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017 www.yahoo.com Downloaded on 01/31/2017

Schedule PMA-D7 Page 2 of 6

LAC / MGE Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate Through Use of a Risk Premium Model Using an Adjusted Total Market Approach

1

<u>Line No.</u>		Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price- Regulated Companies
1,	Prospective Yield on Baa Rated Corporate Bonds (1)	5.51 %
2.	Adjustment to Reflect Bond rating Difference of Non-Price Regulated Companies (2)	
3.	Adjusted Prospective Bond Yield	5.33
4.	Equity Risk Premium (3)	4.97
5.	Risk Premium Derived Common Equity Cost Rate	10.30 %

Notes: (1) Average forecast of Baa corporate bonds based upon the consensus of nearly 50 economists reported in Blue Chip Financial Porecasts dated February 1, 2017 and December 1, 2016 (see pages 9 and 10 of Schedule PMA-D4). The estimates are detailed below.

First Quarter 2017	4.90	%
Second Quarter 2017	5.00	
Third Quarter 2017	5.20	
Fourth Quarter 2017	5.30	
First Quarter 201 8	5.40	
Second Quarter 2018	5.60	
2018-2022	6.30	
2023-2027	6.40	
Average	5.51	%

(2) The average yield spread of Baa rated corporate bonds over A corporate bonds for the three months ending January 2017. To reflect the Baa1 average rating of the non-utility proxy group, the prosepctive yield on A corporate bonds must be adjusted by 2/3 of the spread between A and Baa corporate bond yields as shown below:

A Corp.		Baa Corp.			
Bond Yield		Bond Yield		Spread	
4.16	%	4.66	%	0.50	%
4.28		4,83		0.55	
4.11		4.71		0.60	_
Average yield spread				0.55	%
1/3 of spread				0.18	[%
	A Corp. Bond Yield 4.16 4.28 4.11 Aver	A Corp. Bond Yield 4.16 % 4.28 4.11 Average	A Corp.Baa Corp.Bond YieldBond Yield4.16%4.664.284.834.114.71Average yield spread1/3 of spread	A Corp.Baa Corp.Bond YieldBond Yield4.16%4.664.284.834.114.71Average yield spread1/3 of spread	A Corp. Baa Corp. Bond Yield Bond Yield Spread 4.16 % 4.66 % 0.50 4.28 4.83 0.55 4.11 4.71 0.60 Average yield spread 0.55 1/3 of spread 0.18

(3) From page 5 of this Schedule.

<u>LAC / MGE</u> Comparison of Long-Term Issuer Ratings for the Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price-Regulated Companies of comparable risk to the <u>Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies</u>

	Long-T	Moody's erm Issuer Rating nuary 2017	Standard & Poor's Long-Term Issuer Rating January 2017			
Proxy Group of Sixteen Non- Price-Regulated Companies	Long- Term Issuer Rating	Numerical Weighting (1)	Long- Term Issuer Rating	Numerical Weighting (1)		
AmerisourceBergen	Baa2	9.0	A-	7.0		
AutoZone Inc.	Baa1	8.0	BBB	9.0		
Bard (C.R.)	Baa1	8.0	A	6.0		
Campbell Soup	A3	7.0	BBB+	8.0		
Dr Pepper Snapple	Baa1	8.0	BBB+	8.0		
Erie Indemnity	NA		NA			
Lancaster Colony	NA		NA			
Lilly (Eli)	A2	6.0	AA-	4.0		
Merck & Co.	A1	5.0	AA	3.0		
Reynolds American	Baa3	10.0	BBB	9.0		
Smucker (J.M.)	Baa2	9,0	BBB	9.0		
Stericycle Inc.	А		NR			
Target Corp.	A2	6.0	А	6.0		
TJX Companies	A2	6.0	A+	5.0		
Verisk Analytics	Baa3	10.0	BBB-	10.0		
Waste Connections	NA		NR			
Average	Baa1	7.7	<u>A-</u>	7.0		

Notes:

(1) From page 6 of Schedule PMA-D4.

Source of Information: Bloomberg Professional Services

•
LAC / MGE Derivation of Equity Risk Premium Based on the Total Market Approach Using the Beta for Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price-Regulated Companies of comparable risk to the

Oup of Sixteen Non-Price-Regulated Companies of Compariate

Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

Line No.	Equity Risk Premium Measure	Proxy Group of Sixteen Non-Price- Regulated Companies
1.	Ibbotson Equity Risk Premium (1)	5.52 %
2.	Ibbotson Equity Risk Premium based on PRPM (2)	6.38
3.	Regression on Ibbotson Risk Premium Data (3)	7.40
4.	Equity Risk Premium Based on <u>Value Line</u> Summary and Index (3)	4.60
5.	Equity Risk Premium Based on S&P 500 Companies(4)	8.40
6.	Conclusion of Equity Risk Premium (6)	6.46 %
7.	Adjusted Beta (7)	0.77
8.	Forecasted Equity Risk Premium	4.97_%

Notes: (1) From note 1 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.

- (2) From note 2 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.
- (3) From note 3 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.
- (4) From note 4 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.
- (5) From note 5 of page 8 of Schedule PMA-D4.
- (6) Average of lines 1 through 5.
- (7) Average of mean and median beta from page 6 of this Schedule.

Sources of Information:

Stocks, Bonds, Bills, and Inflation - Ibbotson® SBBI® 2016 Market Report, Morningstar, Inc., 2016 Chicago, IL.

<u>Value Line</u> Summary and Index Blue Chip Financial Forecasts, February 1, 2017 and December 1, 2016 Bloomberg Professional Services

	[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]	[5]	[6]	[7]	[8]
Proxy Group of Sixteen Non- Price-Regulated Companies	Value Line Adjusted Beta	Bloomberg Beta	Average Beta	Market Risk Premium (1)	Risk-Free Rate (2)	Traditional CAPM Cost Rate	ECAPM Cost Rate	Indicated Common Equity Cost Rate (3)
AmerisourceBergen	0.85	0.92	0.89	7.53 %	3.65 %	10.35 %	10.56 %	10.46 %
AutoZone Inc.	0.75	0.77	0.76	7.53	3.65	9.37	9.82	9.60
Bard (C.R.)	0.80	0.70	0.75	7.53	3.65	9.30	9.77	9.53
Campbell Soup	0.70	0.63	0.66	7.53	3.65	8.62	9.26	8.94
Dr Pepper Snapple	0.75	0.67	0.71	7.53	3.65	9.00	9.54	9,27
Erie Indemnity	0.80	0.79	0.80	7.53	3.65	9.67	10.05	9.86
Lancaster Colony	0.80	0.67	0.74	7.53	3.65	9.22	9.71	9.47
Lilly (Eli)	0.75	0.72	0.74	7.53	3.65	9.22	9.71	9.47
Merck & Co.	0.85	0.89	0.87	7.53	3.65	10.20	10.45	10.32
Reynolds American	0.65	0.69	0.67	7.53	3.65	8.70	9.32	9.01
Smucker (J.M.)	0.70	0.76	0.73	7.53	3.65	9.15	9.66	9.40
Stericycle Inc.	0.85	0.78	0.81	7.53	3.65	9,75	10.11	9.93
Target Corp.	0.80	0.80	0.80	7.53	3.65	9.67	10.05	9.86
TJX Companies	0.85	0.90	0.87	7,53	3.65	10.20	10.45	10.32
Verisk Analytics	0.85	0.80	0.83	7.53	3.65	9,90	10.22	10.06
Waste Connections	0.80	0.60	0.70	7.53	3.65	8.92	9.49	9.20
Mean			0.77			9,45_%	9.88_%	9.67 %
Median			0.76			9.34 %	9.80 %	9.57_%
Average of Mean and Median			0.77			9.40 %	<u> </u>	9.62 %
Not	tes: (1) From Schedu (2) From Schedu (3) Average of C	ile PMA-D5, note : ile PMA-D5, note APM and ECAPM	1. 2. cost rates.					

LAC / MGE
Traditional CAPM and ECAPM Results for the Proxy Group of Non-Price-Regulated Companies Comparable in Total Risk to
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies

Schedule PMA-D7 Page 6 of 6 LAC / MGE Derivation of the Flointion Cost Adjustment to the Cost of Common Eavity -.

Equity issuances and Flotation Costs of Spire Inc. ((armeriv (The Laciade Group, Inc.) Since 2011

		[Column 1]	[Colum	ทก 2]	[Ċ	olumn 3]	[C	olumn 4]		[Column 5]	Įq	េ[បញ្ចារា ចិ]		[Column 7]		[Column 8]		[Column 9]	[Column 10]
Date	Transaction (1)	Shares Issued	Market por St	Prico hare	Offe pe	aring Price or Shnre	Mark	et Pressure	ر 	Underwriting Discount	Not por	Proceeds Share (3)	Gi t	ross Equity issue before Costs (4)	Total	Net Proceeds (5)	Tota	Flotation Costs	Flotation Cost Percentage (7)
05/13/16	Equity Offering	2,185,000	\$ 84	4.7000	\$	83,0500	\$	1,6500	\$	2.0491	\$	61,0009	5	141,369,500	\$	133,286,967	\$	8,082,534	5.72%
06/05/14	Equity Offering	10,350,000	S 47	7.1900	ŝ	46,2500	5	0.9400	\$	1.7113	\$	44.5388	\$	488,416,500	\$	460,976,063	5	27,440,438	5.62%
05/23/13	Equity Offering	10,005,000	\$ 45	5.0900	\$	44.5000	s	0.5900	\$	1.7244	\$	42.7756	2	451,125,450	\$	427,970,128	\$	23,155,322	5.13%
													\$	1,080,011,450	5	1,022,233,157	\$	58,678,293	5,43%

Elotation Cost Adjustment

	Average Dividend Yield	Average Projected EPS Growth Rate	Adjusted Dividend Yield	Average DCF Cost Rate Unadjusted for Flotation (8)	DCF Cost Rate Adjusted for Flotation (9)	Flotation Cost Adjustment (10)	
Proxy Group of							
Seven Natural Gas							
Utilities	2,78	%5,80_%	2,86 %	8,66_%	8.82 %	0,16	%

See page 2 of this Schedule for notes.

LAC / MGE Notes to Accompany the Derivation of the Flotation Cost Adjustment to the Cost of Common Equity

- (1) Company-provided.
- (2) Column 2 Column 3.
- (3) Column 2 the sum of columns 4 and 5.
- (4) Column 1 * Column 2.
- (5) Column 1 * Column 6.
- (6) Column 1 * (the sum of columns 4 and 5).
- (7) (Column 7 Column 8) divided by Column 7.
- (8) Using the average growth rate from page 1 of Schedule PMA-D3.
- (9) Adjustment for flotation costs based on adjusting the average DCF constant growth cost rate in accordance with the following:

$$K = \frac{D(1+0.5g)}{P(1-F)} + g,$$

where g is the growth factor and F is the percentage of flotation costs.

(10) Flotation cost adjustment of 0.16% equals the difference between the flotation adjusted average DCF cost rate of 8.82% and the unadjusted average DCF cost rate of 8.66% of the proxy group of seven natural gas utilities.

Source of Information:

Company provided information

LAC / MGE Derivation of Investment Risk Adjustment Based upon Ibbotson Associates' Size Premia for the Decile Portfolios of the NYSE/AMEX/NASDAQ

		[1]	[2]	[3]	[4]
Line No.		Market Capitalization on January 31, 2017 (1) (millions) (times larger)	Applicable Decile of the NYSE/AMEX/ NASDAQ (2)	Applicable Size Premium (3)	Spread from Applicable Size Premium (4)
1.	LAC / MGE	\$ 2,466.000	5-6	1.56%	
2.	Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies	\$ 3,220.742	4-5	1.24%	
	LAC / MGE	1.3	x		0.32%

(A)		(B) (C)		(D)	(E)	
					Size	
					Premium	
				Recent Average	(Return in	
		Number of	Recent Total Market	Market	Excess of	
	Decile	Companies	Capitalization	Capitalization	CAPM)	
		(millions)	(millions)	(millions)	<u></u>	
	1	193	\$14,835,871.93	\$76,869.80	-0.36%	
	2	209	\$2,942,893.47	\$14,080.83	0.57%	
	3	208	\$1,538,888.75	\$7,398.50	0.86%	
	4	240	\$998,160.99	\$4,159.00	0,99%	
	5	240	\$665,743.39	\$2,773.93	1.49%	
	6	258	\$480,964.63	\$1,864.20	1.63%	
	7	350	\$419,011.59	\$1,197.18	1.62%	
	8	392	\$270,179.79	\$689.23	2.04%	
	9	494	\$175,122.78	\$354.50	2.54%	
Smallest	10	796	\$81,112.94	\$101.90	5.60%	
		*Fr	om Duff & Phelps 2016 Valu	ation Handbook Guide to	Cost of Capital	

Notes:

(1) From Page 2 of this Schedule.

(2) Gleaned from Column (D) on the bottom of this page. The appropriate decile (Column (A)) corresponds to the market capitalization of the proxy group, which is found in Column 1.

(3) Corresponding risk premium to the decile is provided on Column (E) on the bottom of this page.

(4) Line No. 1 Column 3 - Line No. 2 Column 3. The 0.32% in Column 4, Line No. 2 is derived as follows 0.32% = 1,56% - 1.24%.

		Market	<u>LAC / MGE</u> Capitalization of LA	C / MGE and the			
		Proxy Gr	oup of Seven Natur	al Gas Companies	t i t		
		[1]	161	(2)	[71]		[6]
		[*]	[2]	(0)	["]	[2]	[0]
Company	Exchange	Common Stock Shares Outstanding at Fiscal Year End 2015 (millions)	Book Value per Share at Fiscal Year End 2015 (1)	Total Common Equity at Fiscal Year End 2015 (millions)	Closing Stock Market Price on January 31, 2017	Market-to-Book Ratio on January 31, 2017 (2)	Market Capitalization on January 31, 2017 (3) (millions)
LAC / MGE		NA(4)	NA	<u>\$ 1,037-879</u> (-	4) <u>NA</u>		
Based upon the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies							
LAC / MGE						237.6 % (5)	\$ 2,466.000 (6)
Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies							
Atmos Energy	NYSE	101.479	\$ 31.482	\$ 3,194,797	\$ 76.180	242.0 %	\$ 7,730.656
Chesapeake Utilities	NYSE	15.271	23,453	358.138	65.400	278,9	\$ 998.701
New Jersey Resources Corp.	NYSE	85.531	12.942	1,106.956	37.700	291.3	\$ 3,224.535
Northwest Nat. Gas	NYSE	27.427	2B.475	780.972	58.900	206.8	\$ 1,615.450
South Jersey Industries, Inc.	NYSE	70.966	14.620	1,037.539	33.000	225.7	\$ 2,341.865
Southwest Gas Holdings Inc	NYSE	47.378	33.653	1,594.408	80.570	239,4	\$ 3,817.211
Spire Inc.	NYSE	43.335	36.312	1,573.600	65.000	179.0	\$ 2,816.776
Average		55.912	\$ 25.848	<u>\$ </u>	\$ 59.536	237.6 %	\$ 3,220.742

NA= Not Available

Notes: (1) Column 3 / Column 1.

(2) Column 4 / Column 2.

(3) Column 4 * Column 1.

(4) From LAC / MGE 2015 Annual Reports to the Missouri Public Service Commission.

(5) The market-to-book ratio of LAC / MGE on January 31, 2017 is assumed to be equal to the market-to-book ratio of the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies on January 31, 2017.

(6) LAC / MGE's common stock, if traded, would trade at a market-to-book ratio equal to the average market-to-book ratio at January 31, 2017 of the Proxy Group of Seven Natural Gas Companies, 237.6%, and LAC / MGE's market capitalization on January 31, 2017 would therefore have been \$2,466.00 million.

Source of Information: 2015 Annual Forms 10K yahoo.finance.com

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI

In the Matter of Laclede Gas Company's) Request to Increase its Revenues for Gas) File No. GR-2017-0215 Service) In the Matter of Laclede Gas Company) d/b/a Missouri Gas Energy's Request to) File No. GR-2017-0216 Increase its Revenues for Gas Service)

AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF NEW JERSEY)	SS.
CITY OF MARLTON)	

Pauline M. Ahern, of lawful age, being first duly sworn, deposes and states:

1. My name is Pauline M. Ahern. I am an Executive Director of ScottMadden, Inc. My business address is 1900 West Park Road, Suite 250, Westborough, MA 01581. My mailing address is 3000 Atrium Way, Suite 241, Mount Laurel, NJ 08054.

2. Attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes is my direct testimony on behalf of Laclede Gas Company and MGE.

3. I hereby swear and affirm that my answers contained in the attached testimony to the questions therein propounded are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Pauline M. Ahern

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2017ry Public

JUSTICE S. MORALES NOTARY PUBLIC OF NEW JERSEY My Commission Expires 10/20/2019